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For us, the issue of energy is no
longer an isolated topic. It is now
a pivotal component in the much
broader story of sustainability,
human responsibility and changing
economies. We are clear that the
decisions we make today will create
an indelible mark on tomorrow,
affecting the environment in which
we live at both a global and local
level. So, in this report, we aim
to tell the whole story from top
to bottom, highlighting where
the challenges and issues are
and deﬁning what we need to do
and what we have underway to
positively manage our footprint
and impact. We can’t say we have
all the answers, but we’re working
hard to ﬁnd out what they might be.
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What have we
achieved and what
are our challenges?
At a glance, here is
Genesis Energy in
numbers, initiatives
and opportunities.
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SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC PANELS
are installed at six schools participating
in Genesis Energy’s new Schoolgen
programme – a key climate change project.

CONSTRUCTION STARTS in earnest
on the Kupe Gas Project – a joint venture
with Orgin Energy, NZOG and Mitsui.

NEW PLYMOUTH is chosen as the
preferred site for Gasbridge – a potential
import terminal for liqueﬁed natural gas.

THE COUNTRY’S
LARGEST NEW POWER
STATION FOR A DECADE
IS SUCCESSFULLY
COMMISSIONED AT
HUNTLY BRINGING A
MUCH NEEDED 400MW
TO THE MARKET AND
ENABLING US TO
REDUCE OUR CO2
EMISSIONS.

12% DECREASE IN
CO2 EMISSIONS

MILLIONS OF WEB-USERS around
the world download and play ElectroCity,
Genesis Energy’s highly innovative and
educational energy game.

FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS
Net Proﬁt 2007:

$61.3M
$1,774M
718,660
Total Revenue 2007:

Genesis Energy Customers:

HIGHLIGHTS AND CHALLENGES

$2.8M INVESTED IN

COMMUNITY INITIATIVES
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GENESIS ENERGY’S CUSTOMER
CONTACT CENTRE in Hamilton,
operated by SITEL, is named Contact Centre
of the Year at the Telecommunications
Users Association of New Zealand Contact
Centre Awards.

EXPLORATION LICENCE awarded to

GENESIS ENERGY ARGUES
SUCCESSFULLY THAT
HIGH WATER TAKES
FROM THE WAIKATO
RIVER FOR DAIRY FARM
CONVERSIONS WILL
REDUCE OUR ABILITY TO
GENERATE AT
HUNTLY.
NET PROFIT
AFTER TAX
2007
$61.3M
2006
$83.7M
2005
$70.2M
2004
$80.1M
2003
$61.1M

$50M

$60M

$70M

$80M

$90M

$100M

Genesis Energy by Crown Minerals for the
Mangatoa offshore gas prospect.

CHALLENGES
• Development of new renewable
electricity generation in order to
reduce Genesis Energy’s total
greenhouse gas emissions.
• Implementation of new
strengthened guidelines relating to
low income, vulnerable or medically
dependent customers.
• Progress in action with other parties
to prevent the introduction of didymo
into North Island lakes and rivers.
• Reduction of our immediate impact
on our neighbours at the Huntly
Power Station.

03

2OO7

$351m Other Operating Costs

Net Profit After Tax
$44m Tax

$61.3m Net Proﬁt After Tax
Tax

$320m Fuel Cost

TOTAL REVENUE
$1,774m

$427m Energy Distribution Cost

Other Operating Costs

Fuel Cost
$571m Energy Purchase
Energy Distribution Cost
Energy Purchase

Business Development

$14m Business Development

Asset Upgrade / Other

$31m Asset Upgrade/Other

Kupe

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
$181m

Huntly e3p
$70m Huntly e3p
$66m Kupe
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LET’S TALK
BIG ISSUES

Chairman Brian Corban
and Chief Executive
Murray Jackson talk
about the challenges
that face our business,
our industry and
our country, as we
move into what is
probably the most
crucial point of Genesis
Energy’s history.
As we are New Zealand’s largest thermal
generator, the environmental and market
impact of climate change is one of the foremost
strategic challenges facing the company.
Genesis Energy is committed to reducing
greenhouse gas emissions from its electricity
generation. Our long-term strategy is to
reduce our reliance on coal-ﬁred generation
by replacing it with new gas turbines and new
renewable generation projects. On the other
hand, we are also the only electricity generator to
offer the country an insurance policy in the form
of 1,000MW reserve in the event of lower than
normal inﬂows to the country’s hydro schemes.
Genesis Energy’s focus this year has been
directed at planning for a future in a carbonconstrained world, carbon trading and
continued economic growth. We believe that
the introduction of a carbon price, whether by
way of emissions trading or carbon tax, is the
single biggest initiative any government could

introduce to create the right incentives to bring
on investment in low-carbon technologies
especially new renewable options and, in the
longer term, carbon capture and sequestration
technology. Price signals send the right
messages to the market to encourage
innovative responses.
Already our investment in a new high-efﬁciency,
low-carbon-emitting combined cycle gas
turbine (CCGT) is paying off in environmental
terms. In the ﬁrst full month of operation the
new 400MW CCGT at Huntly enabled Genesis
Energy to reduce its CO2 emissions by 32 per
cent compared to the same period in 2006.
This reduction was also achieved without
reducing total generation output.
While these efforts in delivering new generation
and planning for the future were underway, we
were also working hard to ensure our existing
assets were performing for our customers and
stakeholders in the most efﬁcient way.
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while also investing in and investigating a
range of carbon capture technologies aimed at
delivering reduced CO2 emissions.
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Although there were some delays to the
construction of the new 400MW gas turbine,
the ﬁnal commissioning stages of the project
proceeded smoothly and the plant was handed
over on 29 June 2007.

warmer-than-normal winter 2007 which
reduced demand for energy across the country.
These factors also impacted revenue which
decreased from $1,987 million in the previous
year to $1,774 million this year.

“GENESIS ENERGY IS COMMITED TO
REDUCING GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS
FROM ITS ELECTRICITY GENERATION.”
The construction delays – created by welding
and material supply issues – had an impact
on both the economic performance of Genesis
Energy and our carbon emissions for the
year under review. Gas supplies, contracted
for expected commissioning in early 2007,
were consumed instead in the older 250MW
generators at Huntly. As a result we burnt
more expensive gas which displaced coal and
reduced our carbon emissions.
The higher fuel cost was one of a number of
reasons why our annual net proﬁt after tax of
$61.3 million, was down from $83.7 million
in the previous year. Other factors behind the
decrease were lower volumes of generation
from our central North Island hydro schemes,
lower wholesale electricity prices and a

We anticipate a long-term trend of growth
in production as we generate more to meet
electricity demand. The sustained growth in
demand for electricity has shown no sign of
slowing down.

While the introduction of our CCGT, known as
e3p, was eagerly anticipated by the market,
Genesis Energy is not limited to thermal
generation. We generate electricity from
more sources than any other generator in
the country. Our 500MW of hydro capacity is
dependent on regular inﬂows as we operate
with minimal water storage capacity and
within prescribed minimum and maximum
lake levels. Mindful of the need to develop
more electricity generation from renewable
sources, we are progressing a number of
mini-hydro developments within our existing
hydro schemes.

The Board is pleased to record the contribution
Genesis Energy has made to the economy
and the communities in which it operates.
An interim dividend of $9.6 million has been
paid to the Crown. In addition, the construction
of e3p provided signiﬁcant engineering and
civil works contracts for New Zealand ﬁrms
and their employees. During the year the
company also launched new community
initiatives including the Schoolgen programme
which provides solar energy equipment and
energy education in schools.

For the ﬁrst time in a decade we have achieved
an amount of reserve capacity that will enable
Genesis Energy to reduce the level of coalﬁred generation and hence carbon emissions.

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank
our Chief Executive Murray Jackson and the
Executive Team for their efforts during the past
year. It has been a challenging and satisfying
year for the company and its employees.
Thank you to all our people for their continued
commitment, professionalism and vision. I am
conﬁdent we can all look forward to another
successful year ahead at Genesis Energy.

Looking to the future, it is apparent that carbon
pricing and trading will have a signiﬁcant
impact on Genesis Energy. To address the
environmental impact of our business and
the sustainability of thermal generation, we
have embarked on a range of environmental
improvement and efﬁciency programmes,

BRIAN CORBAN QSO
CHAIRMAN, GENESIS ENERGY
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In a year when national reserves for hydro
were above average, Genesis Energy’s total
generation was 200GWh below budget with
gross revenue falling from $1,987 million
in 2005/2006 to $1,774 million in 2006/2007.
Net proﬁt fell from $83.7 million to $61.3
million over the same period.
Genesis Energy was able to complete
construction and commissioning of the
new $506 million Huntly 400MW CCGT by 29
June 2007, bringing some timely relief to a
tight power supply position across
New Zealand. Construction delays of six
months were costly to Genesis Energy which
had secured gas contracts to meet an early
2007 commissioning date for the CCGT.
Delays primarily came from factory and ﬁeld
welding on the Heat Recovery Steam Generator.
Worldwide concern over global warming is
focusing on alternative sources of power
generation. What is our carbon footprint?
How can we reduce emissions from our
generation plant? What will it cost and how
will it impact our business operations and
strategy? What does sustainability mean to
Genesis Energy? How far can we go down
the path of sustainability without risk to the
security of supply?
Our progress towards sustainability at Genesis
Energy resonates through everything we do or
are planning. Last year we published a Corporate
Responsibility Report, separate from the Annual
Report. This year’s Annual Report is a marriage
of the business, environment and community
obligations we have as New Zealand’s largest
energy retailer. Our Corporate Responsibility
includes the promotion of best practice in the
home, factory and ofﬁce for all our customers.
A major project underway is to replace existing
meters with advanced metering technology
that will allow households to make decisions
to reduce peak demand and reduce total power
consumption. Advanced meters will enable
customers to see their own consumption in

real time and therefore will be able to make
decisions about when they use energyintensive appliances such as dishwashers,
and will have remote reading capability.
With over 700,000 electricity and gas accounts
across New Zealand, Genesis Energy has targeted
energy conservation and energy efﬁciency
enhancement as primary goals for industrial,
commercial and residential customers. Audit of
energy use continues to be the major focus for
Time of Use metered customers. During the year
regular workshops and brieﬁngs have covered
home insulation, heat pumps, gas heating and
cooking, energy-efﬁcient lighting and solar
energy in schools. Smart metering technology
will enable more work to be done on measuring
carbon emissions at home and in the workplace
enabling customers to make decisions about
reducing their carbon footprints.
Our Corporate Social Responsibility extends to
how we commute to work and includes regular
monthly no-car days for staff. It also includes
a shift to regenerative battery cars with the
company leasing six Toyota Prius sedans.
The challenge to signiﬁcantly reduce carbon
emissions from all sources is a commitment
the New Zealand government has embraced.
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•

12 per cent decrease in CO2 emissions
from electricity generation

•

Huntly 400MW combined cycle gas
turbine commissioned

•

Mangaio mini hydro project underway

•

60,000 customers contributed to the
Genesis Oncology Trust

•

Exploration permit awarded for the
Mangatoa gas prospect

•

Advanced meter project underway with
tenders being evaluated
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a 48MW open cycle gas turbine to a 120MW
CCGT and the commissioning of the proposed
Rodney 480MW CCGT projects and the recently
commissioned 400MW CCGT would reduce
Genesis Energy carbon emissions from almost
6 million tonnes to 2.4 million tonnes of CO2
per annum when all projects are completed
in 2015.
Genesis Energy is pursuing geothermal, wind
and solar generation opportunities to offset our
residual carbon emissions and achieve carbon
neutrality whilst providing security of
supply. Our 1,000MW Huntly plant would

“OUR PROGRESS TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY
RESONATES THROUGH EVERYTHING WE DO.”
Total carbon dioxide emissions from all sources
in New Zealand amount to 80 million tonnes per
annum with 50 per cent from farming activities.
The power generation sector emitted 10 million
tonnes per annum before commissioning the
Huntly 400MW CCGT.
Genesis Energy has a target to replace
1,000MW of thermal coal generation at Huntly
with 1,000MW of high-efﬁciency gas-ﬁred
generation which will underpin New Zealand’s
renewable energy investments. Conversion of

progressively move to reserve capacity to
protect New Zealand from drought and major
plant failures.
Genesis Energy is a partner in the Australian
based Cooperative Research Centre for
greenhouse gases (CO2 CRC) and is planning
in conjunction with the Australian consortium
to carry out pilot plant trials on capture of
carbon dioxide from the Huntly 1,000MW
coal-ﬁred plant.
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“GENESIS ENERGY
HAS COMMITTED
RESOURCES TO
THE FURTHER
EXPLORATION AND
DEVELOPMENT
OF NEW ZEALAND
OIL AND GAS
RESERVES”

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Signiﬁcant advances in carbon capture
applied to coal-ﬁred generation can bring
sustainability to the world’s abundant reserves
of low cost fossil fuel and over 60 pilot
plant trials are currently underway around
the world. Genesis Energy is committed to
achieving a sustainable future from both
thermal and renewable energy.
Genesis Energy has committed resources
to the further exploration and development
of New Zealand oil and gas reserves.
The expected $1,080 million offshore Kupe
oil and gas ﬁeld is under construction with 85
per cent of the work contracted under alliance
contracts arranged through the operator Origin
Energy Resources. First oil and gas is due to
ﬂow in the ﬁrst half of 2009 with Genesis Energy
receiving 100 per cent of the gas and its 31 per
cent share of oil and LPG from the ﬁeld.
Genesis Energy is a 40 per cent partner
in the Cardiff onshore gas prospect where
further testing of the deep Kapuni sands is
planned for the year ahead. We have been
awarded an exploration licence over the 600hectare offshore Mangatoa gas prospect.
Planning for the acquisition of 3D seismic data
is proceeding ahead of exploratory drilling.
As a contingency, Genesis Energy and Contact
Energy are working together to consent a site
at New Plymouth for importation of liqueﬁed
natural gas if required in the future.
Sustainability applies equally to our skills base
and maintaining and developing our workforce
in a challenging environment has been a
core activity of our Human Resources team.
Our National Apprenticeship Programme
has proven to be very successful with 20 new
recruits enrolled each year with practical
training provided by 20 diverse industrial ﬁrms.

Genesis Oncology Trust continues to be
our primary community initiative. Now in
its ﬁfth year, the Trust is investing up to
$500,000 annually in grants that will lead
to improvements in prevention, detection,
diagnosis and treatment of cancer, and
improvements in the palliative care of patients.
The Trust has over 60,000 customers who
regularly donate to the ﬁght against cancer.
Our staff are committed to sustainability
at work and at home. Our own ClubGen
continues to sponsor regular outdoor and
team events for all our families to enjoy.
Our relationship with community and iwi
groups in the areas of our activity are a high
priority and are mutually beneﬁcial. Genesis
Energy supports Lake Waikaremoana Hapu
Restoration Trust to achieve sustainable
kiwi populations by elimination of predators.
The Central North Island Blue Duck Trust
programme has achieved great success with
an excellent productive year for the blue duck.
On behalf of the management team, I would like
to thank the Chairman, the Board and our 450
staff and equal number of service providers who
have maintained the focus and commitment
needed to deliver sustainability in a large and
diverse energy business.

MURRAY JACKSON
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, GENESIS ENERGY

Landing point for Kupe oil and gas.
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TE PÜRONGO A TE TIAMANA ME TE MANAHAUTÜ
E körero ana te Tiamana a Brian Corban me te Manahautü a
Murray Jackson mö ngä wero kei mua i tö mätau pakihi, i tö
mätau ahumahi me tö tätau whenua, i a mätau e neke ana ki
roto i te wähanga matawaenga rawa atu o te hitori o Genesis
Energy. Nä te mea ko Genesis Energy te kamupene nui
rawa o Aotearoa e whakanao ana i te hiko mai i te wera, ko
te pänga ki te taiao me te mäkete o te huri o te ähuarangi te
whakatara rautaki nui rawa kei mua i te aroaro o te pakihi.
Kei te pümau a Genesis Energy ki te whakaiti i ngä hau
kötuhi mai i ana whakanaonga hiko. Ko te rautaki whäinga
roa ko te whakaiti i tö mätau whirinakitanga ki ngä teihana
whakahiko kai waro mä te whakakapi i ënei ki ngä pukuhiko
kapuni me ngä hinonga pühiko hangarua hou. I tua atu, ko
mätau anake te kamupene whakanao hiko ka whakarato
ki te motu tëtahi “kaupapa rianga” mä roto i ngä täpui
1,000MW, ki te heipü mai te mimititanga o te rerenga wai ki
ngä roto whakaputa hiko o te motu.
E arotahi ana a Genesis Energy i tënei tau ki te whakatakoto
mahere mö tëtahi ao iti te waro, mö te hokohoko waro,
me te tipu haere tonu o te öhanga. E whakapono ana
mätau ko te whakaurutanga o tëtahi utu mö ngä waro
- mä te hokohoko putunga para, mä te täke waro ränei
- ko te kaupapa nui rawa atu hei whakatakoto mä tëtahi
käwanatanga hei hanga i ngä manawarütanga tika ki te
kukume mai i ngä haumi i roto i ngä hangarau he iti te
waro, otirä i roto i ngä köwhiringa hangarua hou, ka mutu
i roto i te roanga o te wä, te hopu waro me ngä hangarau
täpui waro. Ko ngä tohu utu hei tuku i ngä körero tika ki te
mäkete hei whakatenatena i ngä urupare wairua auaha.
Ko tä mätau haumi ki roto i tëtahi pukuhiko kapuni (CCGT)
tino mäia hou, putunga waro iti hoki, kua hua tonu mö te
ähuatanga ki te taiao. I roto i te marama tuatahi e mahi ana te
CCGT 400MW hou i Rähui Pökeka, i ähei a Genesis Energy te
whakaiti i ana putunga CO2 mä te 32 örau ina whakatauritea
ki taua wähanga o te tau 2006. I riro mai tënei whakaititanga
me te kore whakaiti anö i ngä putanga pühiko katoa.
I te wä o ngä mahi ki te tuku i ënei pühiko hou me te
whakatakoto mahere mö ngä rä e tü mai nei, i kakari anö
tä mätau mahi kia möhio ai mätau i te mahi tötika ä mätau
rawa mö ä mätau kaiutu me te hunga whai pänga mai.
Ahakoa i reira ëtahi tömuritanga i te timatanga o te hanga
i te pukuhiko kapuni 400MW hou, i tino pai te haere o ngä
wähanga whakamutunga o te hanga, ä, ka whakawhitihia
atu te pukuhiko hou i te i 29 o Pipiri 2007.
Ko ngä tömuritanga – nä ngä raruraru whakahono mai
i ngä kaiwhakarato o täwähi – i whai pänga mai ki te
whakatutukitanga öhanga o Genesis Energy me ä mätau
putunga waro i tënei tau. I pau kë i ngä whakahiko tawhito
250MW i Rähui Pökeka ngä putunga kapuni i kirimanatia
mö te whakamahitanga kua manakohia hei te timatanga o
te tau 2007. Nä tënei ka tahuna anö e mätau ngä kapuni nui
te utu, ä, ka whakamutuhia te kai waro me te whakaiti i ä
mätau putunga waro.
Ko te whakapiki o te utu mö te kora tëtahi o ngä take maha
i iti ake te huamoni more o te $61.3 miriona i muri o te täke,
mai i te $83.7 miriona i te tau o mua atu. Ko ëtahi atu o ngä
take mö te ititanga ko te iti o ngä rahinga pühiko mai i ä
mätau teihana whakahiko ä-wai i te puku o Te Ika-a-Mäui,
te iti hoki o ngä utu rarawe, me te mahana ake o te takurua
o te tau 2007 ki töna tautoharite, e whakaiti ana i te tononga
püngao puta noa i te motu. I pä anö ënei take ki ngä moni
puta, ä, i taka ënei mai i te $1,987 miriona i te tau ö mua atu
ki te $1,774 miriona i tënei tau.
E tümanako ana mätau i tëtahi ia roa mö te tipu o te huanga
i a mätau e mahi haere tonu ki te tutuki i ngä tononga hiko.
Käore anö kia tau haere te tipu ukauka o te tononga hiko.
Mö te wä tuatahi i roto i te tekau tau, kua tutuki te whakaputu
i tëtahi täpui nui e taea e Genesis Energy te whakaiti te
whakanaonga hiko kai waro me te putunga waro anö hoki.
Mö te titiro atu ki ngä rä e tü mai nei, märama ana te kite
atu i te pänga nui o te utu waro me te hokohoko waro ki a
Genesis Energy. Mö te whakaanga o te pänga taiao ki tö
mätau pakihi me te whakaorangatanga o te whakanao hiko
mai i te wera, kua timata mätau ki ëtahi mahi whakapai i
te taiao, ki ëtahi hötaka tötika hoki, me te haumi anö me
te höpara i ëtahi hangarau hopu waro e hängai ana ki te
whakaiti i ngä putunga CO2.
Ahakoa i kaha te tümanakohia e te mäkete mö te
whakaurutanga o tä mätau CCGT, e möhiotia ana ko te e3p,
käore a Genesis Energy i te noho whäiti ki te whakanao hiko
mai i te wera. Ka whakanao hiko mätau mai i ngä momo
puna katoa, tënä i ëtahi atu kamupene whakahiko i roto i
te motu. E whakamauru ana tä mätau äheitanga 500MW
hiko ä-wai ki ngä rerenga wai auau i a mätau e whakahaere
ana i ngä putunga wai iti rawa i waenga i ngä taumata roto
iti rawa, mutunga rawa hoki. I runga anö i te möhio kei te
matea te whakawhanake i te whakanaonga hiko atu anö

mai i ngä puna ka taea te whakahou, kei te ahu whakamua
mätau i ëtahi whakawhanaketanga iti whakanao hiko ä-awa
i roto i ä mätau teihana whakahiko ä-awa e rua ö näianei.
E koa ana te Poari kia whakamöhiotia te whai wähi a Genesis
Energy ki te öhanga me ngä hapori kei roto nei e mahi ana ia.
Ko te moni hua $9.6 miriona mö tënei wä i utua ki te Karauna.
Hei painga anö, i whakaratohia e te hangatanga o te e3p ngä
kirimana mahi tino nui mö ngä pakihi o Aotearoa me ä rätau
kaimahi. I roto i tënei tau i whakarewahia anö e Genesis
Energy ngä kaupapa hou mö ngä hapori, tae atu ki te hötaka
Schoolgen e whakarato ana i ngä taonga püngao kömaru me
te whakaakoranga i ngä kura e pä ana ki te püngao.
I raro i te maru o te Poari, e hiahia ana au ki te mihi ki tö
mätau Manahautü, a Murray Jackson, me te Röpü Tümu
Whakahaere mö ä rätau mahi mö te tau kua taha ake nei.
He tau tino whakatara me te whakaupa mö Genesis Energy
me ngä kaimahi. Ngä mihi nui ki ä mätau kaimahi katoa mö
tö rätau pümau tonu, tä rätau ngaiotanga me te matakite.
Kare e kore ka taea e tätau te titiro whakamua ki tëtahi tau
angitu anö mö Genesis Energy.
BRIAN CORBAN, QSO
Tiamana, Genesis Energy
I roto i te tau nei, ahakoa i runga ake ngä täpui wai i te tau
toharite, ko ngä whakanaonga hiko katoa o Genesis Energy
i te 200GWh i raro i te tahua whakarite. I taka mai ngä moni
whiwhi mai i te $1,980 miriona i te tau pütea 2005/06 ki
te $1,175 miriona i te tau 2006/07. Ko ngä huamoni more i
taka mai i te $83.7 miriona ki te $61.3 miriona i aua wä anö.
I tutuki i a Genesis Energy te whakamutu i ngä hangatanga
me te whakatuwheratanga o te CCGT 400MW hou e $506
miriona te utu i Rähui Pökeka i te 29 o Pipiri 2007, me te
whakangäwari mai i te iti haere o ngä puna hiko puta noa
i Aotearoa. I pau he moni mai i a Genesis Energy nä ngä
tömuritanga ono marama mö ngä mahi hanga, i te mea
i riro mai anö ëtahi kirimana kapuni mö te tutuki i te wä
kökiri i te timatanga o te tau 2007 mö te CCGT. Ko ngä
tömuritanga matua i ahu mai i te mahi whakahono maitai i
roto i ngä wheketere, i roto hoki i te teihana o te pukuhiko
koromamaoa pupuri wera.
Nä ngä äwangawanga puta noa mö te mahanatanga o te
ao, kei te arotahi atu ki ëtahi atu tümomo puna pühiko. He
aha tö mätau “häraunga waro”, päpätanga waro ränei? Me
pëhea te whakaiti i ngä tukunga moumou mai i tö mätau
teihana pühiko? E hia te utu me te ähua o te pänga mai ki
ä mätau mahinga me tä mätau rautaki? He aha te tikanga
o te äta manaaki i te taiao ki a Genesis Energy? Me pëhea
e taea ai mätau te äta manaaki i te taiao, engari kia kaua e
whakamimitihia te putunga hiko?
Ko tä mätau ahu whakamua ki te äta manaaki i te taiao e
whakaatahia ana i roto i ä mätau mahinga katoa, i roto hoki
i ä mätau kaupapa mö ngä rä kei te tü mai nei. I tërä tau i
whakaputahia e mätau he Pürongo Kawenga Rangatöpü,
ä, he wehe kë tënei mai i te Pürongo ä-Tau. Ko te pürongo
ä-tau mö tënei tau, he hononga nö te ao pakihi me ä mätau
here hapori nä runga i te mea ko mätau te kaihoko hiko
nui rawa atu o Aotearoa. Kei roto i tä mätau Kawenga
Rangatöpü ko te häpai i ngä tikanga pai rawa atu i roto i te
käinga, i te wheketere me te tari mö ä mätau kaiutu katoa.
Ko tëtahi hinonga matua o te wä ko te whakakapi i ngä mita
ö näianei ki te hangarau mita whatutoto, e ähei ngä käinga
te whakarite ki te whakaiti i ngä whao nui me te whakaiti i
ngä whakapaunga hiko katoa. Ka whakamöhio atu aua mita
hou i ngä kaiutu kia kite rätau i ä rätau whakapaunga i tërä
wä tonu, nö reira ka ähei rätau te hanga whakarite mö ähea
rätau whakamahi ai i ngä taputapu e kaha te whakapau hiko,
pënei i ngä mihini horoi pereti, a ka taea te pänui aunoa.
Neke atu i te 700,000 ngä kaute hiko, kapuni hoki puta noa
i Aotearoa, ä, kei te hängai atu a Genesis Energy ki ngä
tiakitanga püngao me ngä häpaitanga tötika o te hiko hei
whäinga matua mö ngä kaiutu ahumai, arumoni, ä-käinga
hoki. Ko te äta titiro i ngä whakapaunga püngao te arotahi
matua tonu mö ngä kaiutu whai mita hiko e utu ana i runga
i te wä whakamahi. I ngä wä o te tau i auau te whakahaere
i ngä awheawhe me ngä tohutohu whakamärama mö te
tirepa i te käinga, ngä pürere whakawhiti wera, ngä kapuni
whakamahana me te tunu hoki, ngä rama püngao iti noa, me
te whakamahi püngao kömaru i ngä kura. Nä ngä hangarau
inehiko matatau e ähei tätau te tätari i ngä tukunga waro mai
i te käinga me te wähi mahi, ä, e ähei hoki ana ngä kaiutu te
hanga whakarite mö te whakaiti i tö rätau häraunga waro.
Ka pä anö tä mätau kawenga rangatopü päpori ki te ähua o
te häereere ki te mahi, kei roto anö i tënei kaupapa ko ngä rä
kore waka mö ngä kaimahi ia marama, ia marama. Kei roto
anö hoki i tënei ko te neke ki ngä waka ä-pühiko whakahou,
me te rihi a te pakihi i ngä waka Toyoto Prius e ono. Ko te

wero ki te tino whakaiti i ngä putanga waro mai i ngä matatiki
katoa, he here e whakaaehia ana e te Käwanatanga.
Ko ngä putanga hauhä katoa puta noa i Aotearoa he 80
miriona tana ia tau, ä, 50 paiheneti o ënei nä ngä mahi
pämu. I mua i te whakatuwheratanga o te CCGT e 400MW i
Rähui Pökeka i whakaputaina e te rängai pühiko 10 miriona
tana ia tau, ia tau.
Ko te whäinga o Genesis Energy he whakakapi i te 1000MW
o te whare hiko kai waro i Rähui Pökeka mä te 1000MW o
te whakahiko ä-kapuni tino whai hua hei tüäpapa mö ngä
haumi püngao hangarua o Aotearoa. Mä te whakawhiti i tëtahi
pukuhiko kapuni huriätea 48MW ki tëtahi CCGT 120MW me
te whakatutuki i te hinonga CCGT 480MW i Rähui Pökeka
ka whakaiti ngä putanga waro a Genesis Energy mai i te
6 miriona tana CO2 ki te 2.4 miriona tana CO2 ia tau ina
whakamutuhia i te tau 2015. Kei te whäia e Genesis Energy
te whanaketanga o ngä momo püngao mai i te ngäwhä, i te
hau me te kömaru hei whakaea i tä mätau tukunga waro e toe
ana me te tutuki i te whakaraupapa i te waro, ä, hei tiaki kei
te whita tonu te rerenga hiko ki te motu. Ko tö mätau whare
hiko e 1000MW i Rähui Pökeka ka äta whakawhitihia hei puna
püngao whakahirihiri mö te whakamarutanga i a Aotearoa
mai i te wä tauraki me ngä raru nui o ngä mihini whakahiko.
Ko Genesis Energy he whakahoa i roto i te Pökapu Rangahau
Mahitahi i Ahitereiria mö ngä hau kötuhi (CO2, CRC), ä, ka
mahi ngätahi mätau ki te töpünga nei ki te whakahaere i ngä
whakamätauranga tuatahi mö te hopu i ngä putanga hauhä
mai i te whare hiko kai waro e 1000MW i Rähui Pökeka.
Mä ngä mahi angitu mö te hopu waro mai i ngä teihana
whakahiko kai waro ka taea te äta manaaki ngä puna
koranehe huhua o te ao he iti te utu. Neke atu i te ono tekau
ngä whakamätauranga kei te ao e whakahaerehia ana. Kei te
pümau a Genesis Energy ki te tutuki i te orangatanga mö ngä
rä e tü mai nei i roto i te ngäwhä me ngä püngao hangarua.
Kua tukuna e Genesis Energy he rawa ki te höpara atu anö
me te whakawhanake i ngä putunga hinu me te kapuni kei
Aotearoa. Ko te papa kapuni me te hinu o Kupe i te moana
e $1,080 miriona te uara tümanako, kei te hangaia i tënei
wä, ä, i whakaritea e 85 örau o ngä mahi kei raro i ëtahi
kirimana whakahoa mä te kamupene whakahaere Origin
Energy Resources. Ko ngä hinu me ngä kapuni tuatahi ka
rere i te wähanga tuatahi o te tau 2009, ä, ka riro i a Genesis
Energy 100 örau o te kapuni me te 31 örau o te hinu me te
LPG mai i te papa.
E 40 örau te pänga whakahoa a Genesis Energy i te putunga
kapuni ki uta o Cardiff, ä, koina te wähi whakamätautau i ngä
onekiri höhonu o Kapuni kua whakaritea mö te tau e tü mai
nei. Kua whakawhiwhia mätau ki tëtahi raihana höparatanga
mö te 600 heketea i te papa kapuni ki tai o Mangatoa. Ko ngä
whakatakoto mahere mö ngä raraunga inerü ahu-toru kei te
haere tonu i mua i te höparatanga poka hinu.
Hei huarahi tuarua, kei te mahi tahi a Genesis Energy me
Contact Energy ki te whakarite wähi i Ngämotu mö te tö ki
uta o te LNG mënä e hiahiatia ä töna wä.
Ka pä atu hoki te kaupapa whanaketanga taimau ki ö mätau
töpünga pükenga, ä, ko te tiaki me te whakapakari i ngä
kaimahi i roto i te ao whakatara tëtahi mahi matua mä tä
mätau wähanga Pümanawa Tangata. Ko tä mätau Hötaka
Pia ä-Motu kua puta töna angitu, ä, 20 ngä pia hou e rëhitatia
ana ia tau. E whakaratohia ana hoki te whakangungu mahi
ä-ringa e ngä pakihi ahumahi rerekë e 20.
Ko te Genesis Oncology Trust tonu tä mätau kaupapa hapori
matua. I tënei wä kei roto te Trust i tana tau tuarima, ä, kei te
haumi atu ki te $500,000 i roto i ngä moni takuhe e pai ake ai te
parepare, te kite, te tätari me te maimoa i te mate pukupuku,
te whakapai ake hoki anö i te äta manaaki i ngä türoro.
Neke atu i te 60,000 ngä kaiutu a te Trust e koha auau ana mö
te whawhai i te mate pukupuku. Ko ä mätau kaimahi kei te
ü ki te oranga tonutanga i te wähi mahi me te käinga. Kei te
tautoko auau tö mätau röpü ClubGen i ngä hui ö waho me ngä
tauwhäinga ä-kapa mö te pärekareka o ngä whänau katoa.
Ko tö mätau whanaungatanga ki te hapori me ngä röpü
ä-iwi i roto i ä mätau mahinga he mea tino nui, ä, he painga
mö ngä taha e rua. I tautokona e Genesis Energy te Lake
Waikaremoana Hapü Restoration Trust kia tutuki i a rätau
ngä taupori taimau o te kiwi mä te whakakore i ngä könihi.
Kua whakakorea hoki anö e te hötaka a te Central North
Island Blue Duck Trust i ngä kararehe kaikikokiko.
I raro i te maru o te röpü whahahaere, kei te hiahia au ki te
mihi atu tö mätau Tiamana, te Poari me ä mätau kaimahi
e 450 me ngä kaiwhakarato anö e pümau ana te arotahi
me te ngäkau tapatahi ki te whakatinana i te kaupapa
whanaketanga taimau i roto i tä mätau pakihi püngao
kanorau, nui hoki.
MURRAY JACKSON
Manahautü, Genesis Energy
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GOAL

GENERATION PERFORMANCE

To deliver our ﬁscal responsibilities while
maintaining sustainable business activities
and work practices.

Higher water inﬂows this year into the country’s
hydro electricity schemes meant our total
generation in 2006/2007 fell back 191GWh
to 7,991GWh. Production levels in 2005/2006
reached record levels due to reduced inﬂows into
the South Island hydro schemes. Both thermal
and renewable generation output were down:
thermal at 6,318GWh (6,394GWh in the previous
year) and renewable at 1,673GWh (1,788GWh).

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY
Genesis Energy is New Zealand’s third largest
electricity generator and largest energy
retailer. Our net proﬁt after tax is impacted
by a number of factors including the cost of
thermal fuels, the level of inﬂows into hydro
schemes, winter conditions and wholesale
electricity prices.
Gross revenue for the year ended 30 June 2007
was $1,774 million, down from $1,987 million
in the previous year. Net proﬁt fell from $83.7
million to $61.3 million over the same period.
During 2006/2007, Genesis Energy contributed
$52.7 million to the community in the form of
taxes paid and a further $9.6 million dividend
paid to the Crown.
2006/07

2005/06

Fuel cost

$320m

$280m

NPAT

$61.3m

$83.7m

Dividends paid

$9.6m

-

Capex

$181m

$265m

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total assets

$2.2bn

$2bn

Debt

$405m

$308m

$1,505m

$1,453m

Equity

FINANCIAL TARGETS
The principal statutory objective of Genesis
Energy, as stated in the State-Owned
Enterprises Act 1986, is to operate as a
successful business. A Statement of Corporate
Intent (summarised on page 93 of this report)
outlines a number of ﬁnancial and nonﬁnancial performance targets in accordance
with the Act.

Despite the age and high output of Huntly
Units One to Four, the plant performance
was excellent with 89.09 per cent Equivalent
Availability Factor (EAF measures the
proportion of time plant is available allowing
for planned maintenance) and generated
5,578 GWh. The P48 open cycle gas turbine
achieved 78.47 per cent EAF and generated
246GWh. Our Hau Nui Wind Farm contributed
31GWh to the market.
GENERATION BY FUEL TYPE
(GWh)
12000
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Renewable

FINANCIAL TARGETS (FROM THE STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT PAGE 93)
TARGET FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007

ACTUAL (YEAR-END
30 JUNE 2007)

Achieve a 2.8% net operating profit after tax return on average capital

3.3%

Achieve a 3.3% net profit after tax return on average shareholder funds

4.1%

Achieve a 4.7% earnings before interest and average tax on total assets

5.0%

Have a debt to debt + equity ratio of 33.0%

21.0%

Achieve consolidated shareholders’ funds to total assets ratio of 60.0%

69.0%

Undertake an investigation to identify any further appropriate financial and
non-financial performance measures (beyond the above financial targets and
benchmarks identified elsewhere in the Annual Report)

OUR ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

RETAIL MARKET SHARE
Genesis Energy is New Zealand’s largest
retailer of electricity and gas. The following
graph, sourced from the Electricity
Commission, shows Genesis Energy has the
highest electricity market share at 29.4 per
cent. Genesis Energy is the largest supplier in
the retail reticulated natural gas market with
approximately 50 per cent market share.

Bay of Plenty Electricity

11

King Country Energy

Other Reta

Other Retailers

Meridian Energy

Todd Energ
TrustPower

King Coun

Genesis Energy

RETAILER MARKET SHARE
BY ENERGISED INSTALLATION
CONTROL PANELS

At the end of the ﬁnancial year to 30 June 2007,
Genesis Energy had a total of 715,033 customer
accounts. Of this total there were 84,153
commercial electricity consumers and 433,823
residential electricity consumers. In addition,
our wholly owned subsidiary, Electricity Online
had a total of 58,057 customers.
In the reticulated natural gas market our
customer base grew to a total of 133,878
including 5,275 commercial customers and
128,603 residential gas customers.
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Huntly 400MW CCGT hidden behind a curtain
at the grand opening 31 August 2007.
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1.

1. CHAIRMAN BRIAN CORBAN, QSO, MA (Hons),

6. ANNABEL COTTON, BMS (Accounting and

LLB, FInstD, FNZIM – Brian Corban is a professional
company director, lawyer and business and community
leader. He has experience in successfully leading
companies through restructuring and deregulatory
changes in the television, telecommunications,
transport and electricity sectors. He is currently
Chairman of Radio New Zealand Limited, the
Melanesian Mission Trust Board, Ngatarawa Wines,
and a number of private companies, and a trustee of
various community trusts. In 2000, Brian Corban was
appointed a Fellow of the Institute of Directors in
New Zealand and in 2001 was appointed a Fellow of
the New Zealand Institute of Management.

Finance), ACA, CSAP – Through her consultancy
ﬁrm Merlin Consulting Limited, Annabel Cotton
advises New Zealand-based listed companies on
their investor relations programmes. A qualiﬁed
investment analyst and accountant, Ms Cotton
is a member of the New Zealand Securities
Commission. She is also a Director of NZX-listed
Kingﬁsh Limited and Barramundi Limited, and of a
number of private companies.

2. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN MIKE WILLIAMS,
MA (Hons) – Mike Williams is the President of
the New Zealand Labour Party, Chairman of the
Transport Board Reference Group, a Director of
the Institute of Geological and Nuclear Sciences,
Auckland Regional Transport Authority and the
New Zealand Railways Corporation, and is a Trustee
of Enterprise Waitakere and an Authority member of
Transit New Zealand Limited.

3. GERALDINE BAUMANN, LLB –
Geraldine Baumann is a member of the Energy
Efﬁciency and Conservation Authority, a Trustee of the
Royal New Zealand Ballet Trust and Meridian Energy
Katherine Mansﬁeld Fellowship, and senior legal
adviser to the New Zealand Historic Places Trust.

4. JOHN STACE – John Stace returned to
New Zealand in February 2005. He is a member of
NZTE’s Beachhead Advisory Board having previously
been Chairman of the UK Beachhead Board.
He is Deputy Chairman of Aardvark EM, a UK-based
environmental consultancy, a Trustee of The Tank
Museum at Bovington in Dorset, UK, and a Vice
President of Save the Children UK. His career in
London centred on ﬁnancial services and more
particularly Lloyd’s of London. He founded Stace
Barr Underwriting Agencies which was subsequently
acquired by Angerstein Underwriting Trust plc (now
Amlin plc) of which he was its ﬁrst CEO, he was
Deputy Chairman of Lloyd’s in 1995 and 1996 and
was Master of The Worshipful Company of World
Traders, a London Livery Company, in 2002-2003.

5. NICOLA CRAUFORD, BSc, PhD, FIPENZ,
MInstD – Dr Nicki Crauford is the Chief Executive
of the Institute of Directors. She is a Director of
the Centre of Advanced Engineering, Director and
minority shareholder of iYomu Limited and a Director
of a number of private companies. She has over
20 years’ experience in the oil, electricity and gas
sectors in the UK and New Zealand and holds a
Doctorate in engineering.

7. DENIS MCNAMARA, LLB (Hons) –
Denis McNamara is a senior partner in the law
ﬁrm Simpson Grierson, the Honorary Consul of
Mexico, Deputy Chairman and board member of the
New Zealand Committee of the Paciﬁc Economic
Cooperation Council and is a Director of a number
of private companies. He is also a member on the
Advisory Board of the New Zealand Centre for Latin
American Studies at Auckland University and is a
council member on the Inter-Paciﬁc Bar Association.

8. IAN KUSABS, MSC (Hons) BIOLOGICAL
SCIENCES – Ian Kusabs is of Ngati Tuwharetoa
and Te Arawa descent and resides in the Te Arawa
district. He is Principal of his own consultancy
specialising in freshwater ﬁsheries, is a freshwater
advisor to the Tuwharetoa Maori Trust Board,
Chairman of the 2020 Taupo-nui-a-tia project, and a
member of the Taupo-nui-a-tia management board.
He is a member of the Lake Taupo Liaison subcommittee and is also a member of the Royal Society
of New Zealand, New Zealand Freshwater Society
and a ﬁsheries associate of Wildland Consultants
and Charles Mitchell and Associates.

9. JOANNA PERRY, MA Econ (Cantab),
FCA (ICAEW), FCA (NZICA) – An independent
professional director and accountant, Joanna
Perry’s current appointments include independent
Director of Kiwi Income Property Limited, PSIS and
Pod Limited, and independent member of the Audit
Ofﬁce’s Audit and Risk Management Committee.
She has been a member of the Securities
Commission for 10 years. Joanna chairs the
Financial Reporting Standards Board, is a member
of the Australian Accounting Standards Board and
the Trans-Tasman Advisory Group on Accounting
and Auditing Standards. She was awarded the
New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants’
2006 Most Valued Contribution Award. Joanna was
a KPMG New Zealand partner for 17 years until
March 2006. In that time she was audit engagement
partner for some of New Zealand’s leading
companies as well as KPMG’s National Technical
Partner and Chairman of KPMG’s Auckland/
Wellington Management Board.
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1.

1. MURRAY JACKSON, MBA, BEC, FTSE,
FIEAust, FIPENZ –
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, GENESIS ENERGY.
Charged with overall management and
strategic leadership of all Genesis Energy’s
business interests, Murray has more than 40
years’ experience in the Australasian power
industry. Prior to joining Genesis Energy, he was
Commissioner for the Snowy Mountains Hydro
Electric Scheme in southern New South Wales and
Director of Production for Paciﬁc Power (NSW).
Murray is Chairman of the Genesis Oncology
Trust, Chairman of Energy Online Ltd and a Board
member of the Gas Industry Company.

2. MAUREEN SHADDICK, LLB, BA –
GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY
SECRETARY, GENESIS ENERGY.
As General Counsel, Maureen is responsible
for management of the provision of legal services
to the company and legal compliance and
regulatory support. She is the Company Secretary
of Genesis Energy and Deputy Chair of the Genesis
Oncology Trust.

managing Genesis Energy’s fuel
investment projects inlcuding the Kupe
Oil and Gas Field. Allan is a member
of the Petroleum Exploration and
Production Association of
New Zealand executive committee.

7. BOB WEIR, MBA, BEe, MIEAust,
CPEng, MIPENZ –

GENERAL MANAGER PRODUCTION,
GENESIS ENERGY.
Bob is responsible for the management and
operation of all Genesis Energy’s generation
assets, trading strategy development
and implementation, transmission and
intra-generator hedge trading desk and
environmental impacts.

8. MALCOLM ALEXANDER, LLB, BA ((Hons
Hons)) –
GENERAL MANAGER CORPORATE AFFAIRS,
GENESIS ENERGY.

Nic is responsible for managing the Energy Online
retail business, providing leadership to ensure the
ongoing successful operation of Genesis Energy’s
wholly owned subsidiary.

Malcolm’s role includes management of
Genesis Energy’s strategic planning, corporate
environmental policy, government relations,
regulatory affairs, public relations and corporate
social responsibility programmes. Malcolm is
a member of the Government’s Digital
Strategy Advisory Group, Chair of the
Telecommunications Carriers’ Forum, and
a member of the Electricity Commission’s
Transmission Advisory Group.

4. RICHARD PEARCE, MBA, BE (Hons) –
GENERAL MANAGER GENERATION
DEVELOPMENT, GENESIS ENERGY.

9. PEGGY MOLYNEUX, MBA, BA, MIPM
– GENERAL MANAGER CORPORATE
SERVICES, GENESIS ENERGY.

Richard is responsible for the management
of Genesis Energy’s generation development
interests, including major renewable energy and
thermal development projects, and investigation
of carbon capture and sequestrian technology.

Peggy’s role includes management of
property and administration, Genesis
Energy’s recruitment, development
training, NZQA training, e-learning and
performance, employee relationships,
payroll services, health and safety,
remuneration and internal communication.
Peggy is also Project Manager for the
Rodney Power Station 480MW project.

3. NIC MCCONDACH, CA –
GENERAL MANAGER, ENERGY ONLINE.

5. MARK ANDERSON, BCom, CA –
GENERAL MANAGER FINANCE,
GENESIS ENERGY.
In addition to the management of Genesis Energy’s
ﬁnancial, audit, treasury and insurance functions,
Mark has responsibility for the company’s
information systems and risk management
framework including management of Genesis
Energy’s trading risk position and risk reporting
to the Board.

6. ALLAN MELHUISH, BE (Hons), BCA (Hons),
PGDipBusAdmin –

GENERAL MANAGER FUEL DEVELOPMENT,
GENESIS ENERGY.
Allan is charged with the management of fuel
purchases and fuel transportation, building
and growing Genesis Energy’s portfolio of fuel
development and exploration prospects and

10. DEAN CARROLL, BSc –
GENERAL MANAGER RETAIL,
GENESIS ENERGY.
Dean is responsible for the management
of Genesis Energy’s retail business,
leading the retail business unit to provide
gas and electricity services driven by
the needs of our customers in the
residential, commercial, industrial
and derivative markets.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Who do we expect to use this report?
This report is aimed at all our stakeholders.

Our corporate vision is to Make a Difference
to New Zealand. This vision is delivered
through a variety of strategies and actions.
Making a difference to New Zealand runs
through our investment activities and
ongoing operations, and into the regions we
operate in. Genesis Energy has determined
that creating a sustainable organisation is an
integral part of Making a Difference to
New Zealand.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING
GUIDELINES

THE REASON FOR THIS REPORT

The GRI guidelines provide a voluntary
reporting framework used by organisations
around the world as the basis for sustainability
reporting. The GRI is the generally accepted
framework for ‘measuring, disclosing, and
being held accountable to internal and external
stakeholders for organisation performance
toward the goal of sustainable development’.

Producing a sustainability report is part of the
process of deﬁning what being a responsible
organisation means, to us and our stakeholders.
It will help promote discussion both within
the company and in the communities in which
we operate. Genesis Energy is committed to
operating responsibly, efﬁciently and proﬁtably
for customers, stakeholders, employees
and shareholders. We are committed to
providing responsible energy solutions for our
customers while working actively to protect
people and the environment.

MATERIALITY
This is Genesis Energy’s ﬁrst sustainability
report, containing information about the
company’s economic, environmental and
social policies, and about its performance.
In the past Genesis Energy has reported
on these three areas in our Annual and our
Corporate Responsibility and Environmental
Performance Reports.
This report is a combination of the two reports
and is a comprehensive report that identiﬁes
the areas that we believe are the most
important to Genesis Energy’s sustainability.
This report offers a frank discussion of the key
challenges and risks facing the company.
To determine which issues are of material
importance, management considered
issues that: might impact the operation
of the company; impact the environment
or communities in which we operate; and
substantially impact our individual customers
and stakeholders.
The ﬁve material issues and challenges we
have identiﬁed are:
• Climate change
• Security of supply
• Environmental footprint
• Community engagement
• Access to energy

This Annual Report, along with additional
information is available on Genesis Energy’s
website, www.genesisenergy.co.nz, is compiled
with reference to the Global Reporting Initiative
(GRI) Sustainability Reporting Guidelines
Version 3.0 (G3) and meets the content
requirements of Application Level (C).

The GRI consists of a framework and guiding
principles as well as a range of ‘indicators’
that reporting organisations can report
against. Indicators are chosen on the basis
of materiality or signiﬁcance to the business
and/or stakeholders. Not all indicators are
reported against in this report.
We have used the G3 standards as well as
some indicators being developed as part of the
GRI Electric Utility Sector Supplement.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
We have reviewed GRI’s G3 Reporting
Principles in an effort to provide a balanced
and reasonable representation of Genesis
Energy’s sustainability performance.
We have applied the key principles of
materiality, completeness, context,
comparability, accuracy, timeliness, clarity,
reliability and boundary setting. For the
purposes of this ﬁrst sustainability report,
we have drawn upon the outcomes of our
frequent and formal stakeholder engagement
programme to inform materiality. Next year
we will seek more speciﬁc feedback on report
content from our stakeholders.

REPORTING PERIOD, ACCURACY
AND COMPLETENESS
This report is based on the performance and
information for the ﬁnancial year to the end of
June 2007. Some data on our environmental
performance for the ﬁnancial year is not
included in this report due to data analysis
completed after the deadline for this report.
This information is available in the State of the

Environment reports produced for individual
power schemes and on our website
www.genesisenergy.co.nz
Genesis Energy uses in-house reporting
systems to collect data for the GRI
process. Much data is provided via a formal
Environmental Management System; other
data is collected from individual business units.
We are developing a more comprehensive
information management system as part of
our ongoing sustainability practices.

BOUNDARY OF THE REPORT
Wholly owned subsidiary companies of
Genesis Energy, such as Energy Online, are
included in the scope of this report.
Joint ventures or investments such as the
Kupe Oil and Gas Project and the Cardiff deep
gas prospect are not included for the purposes
of sustainability reporting as they are operated
and reported on by joint venture partners. Also
outside the scope of this report are outsourced
customer services provided by SITEL and a
variety of ﬁeld services contractors.

EXTERNAL ASSURANCE
This year, URS undertook a high-level review
of our draft report against GRI principles and
disclosure requirements. The review ﬁndings
have informed some ﬁnal aspects of this year’s
report and will inform further developments
next year. It is our intention to seek a full
assurance of our report next year. Our ﬁnancial
statements have again been audited by
Deloitte on behalf of the Auditor-General.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
Our many and diverse stakeholders are key
to the successful generation and delivery of
electricity to homes, businesses and industry
throughout New Zealand. It is vital that we
engage with our stakeholders in effective
dialogue and develop relationships built on
mutual respect and honesty and a desire to
ﬁnd a balanced outcome for a diverse array
of stakeholders. We seek to be open and
transparent with our key stakeholders and
acknowledge that in some instances the
impact of our activities cannot be mitigated.
We operate an open door policy at Genesis
Energy and do not seek to exclude any
stakeholder groups from our engagement
processes. We are seeking feedback from any
interested parties on this report in particular via
the feedback form at the back of this report.

ABOUT THIS REPORT
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STAKEHOLDER

DIALOGUE

KEY INTERESTS AND CONCERNS

HOW WE RESPOND

GENERATION
COMMUNITIES

• Community meetings on key
topics of interest

• Impact of power generation on
communities including transport of
goods and staff

• Targeting 100 per cent compliance with consent
conditions

• Health of biodiversity values

• Environmental Management Systems

• Impact on recreational areas around
generation sites

• Charitable donations and community projects

• Regular community group
meetings
• Stakeholder surveys
• Charitable donations and
community projects

• Local employment
• Contribution to economic and sustainable
development of the communities

TANGATA WHENUA

• At our generation sites regular
formal and informal meetings
with iwi are held

• Policy of hiring locally
• Development of a Corporate Social Responsibility
Strategy
• Acknowledge that tangata whenua have issues with
how the power schemes were developed.

• The ongoing impact and degradation on
tangata whenua cultural and spiritual
values

• Acknowledge that our activities do have an impact on
the values held by tangata whenua.

• Desire to understand those activities Genesis
Energy does undertake from on- site
maintenance to high-level decision-making

EMPLOYEES

• Mitigation projects

• Tangata whenua are kaitiaki of resources
and taonga within their rohe

• Concern over the ongoing environmental
footprint of the operation

CUSTOMERS

• Where possible, third-party agreements have been
reached with iwi impacted by operations.
• Respect the role of tangata whenua on Maori as
kaitiaki of the natural resources and taonga within
their rohe

• Customer surveys – Colmar
Brunton

• Cost and access to energy

• Engagement through customer
newsletter

• Genesis Energy and customer
contribution to climate change

• Everyday engagement through
call centre team

• Energy efficiency

• Staff surveys

• Work/life balance

• ‘Illuminate’ staff newsletter

• Competitive rates of pay

• Development of a Corporate Social Responsibility
Strategy

• Staff intranet

• Working for a socially and
environmentally responsible employer

• Provision of a staff superannuation scheme and
associated insurance benefits

• Staff benefits

• Ongoing improvement of staff WellNess programme

• Contribution to climate change

• Climate Change Strategy

• Impact on local communities – positive
and negative

• Agreements with NGO’s to acquire resource consent

• Direct engagement on key topics
of interest

17

• Customer service

• Committed to following government disconnection
guidelines
• Energy efficiency advice to customers
• Committed to continual improvement of customer
service

• Company reputation

• Quarterly company meetings
• Staff social club
NONGOVERNMENTAL
ORGANISATIONS

• Meetings to discuss key topics
of interest
• Partnerships and funding to
deliver community projects

• Development of Corporate Social Responsibility
Strategy

• Respond to information
requests

• Development of a CO2 reduction target

• Membership of relevant
organisations
GOVERNMENT
STAKEHOLDERS
and
SHAREHOLDERS

• Submission to the New Zealand Energy Strategy

• Regular briefings with Ministers
and officials

• Return on investment

• Climate change strategy

• Security of supply

• Submissions on policy

• Corporate Social Responsibility of the
company

• Commitment to following government guidelines on
disconnection and vulnerable customers

• Contribution to development of
policy

• Shareholder value

• Submission on the New Zealand Energy Strategy and
other key energy policy documents

• Contribution of Genesis Energy to New
Zealand’s carbon footprint

• Development of Corporate Social Responsibility
Strategy

• Investment decisions and other activities
that may impact Government

• Development of a CO2-reduction target

• Submissions on Electricity
Sector policy

• Huntly’s key role in security of supply in
the short to medium term

• Submission on the New Zealand Energy Strategy

• Participation in utility forums
e.g. electricity generators’
environmental management
forum

• Working together on mutual interests
related to planning and regulation

SUPPLIERS AND
CONTRACTORS

• Contractual arrangements
• Procurement policy

• Requirements of Genesis Energy clearly
communicated

• Development and implementation of a sustainable
procurement policy

CIVIL SOCIETY

• Media releases

• Keeping the lights on uninterrupted

• Climate change strategy

• Public meetings

• Contribution to climate change

• Submission to the New Zealand Energy Strategy

• Direct mail communications

• Cost and access to energy

• Advertising

• Impact on local communities – positive
and negative

• Development of Corporate Social Responsibility
Strategy

• Participation in working groups,
conferences and meetings

ELECTRICITY
SECTOR

• Participation in working groups, conferences and
other key forums on key topics of mutual interest

• Development of a CO2 reduction target
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GLOBAL CHALLENGE

FROM A
GLOBAL
PERSPECTIVE
19

CLIMATE
CHANGE
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GLOBAL CHALLENGE

Our world is changing
and demanding that
we change with it.
What are the
inﬂuences and how
are we responding
to them?

GENESIS ENERGY’S
APPROACH TO
CLIMATE CHANGE
MANAGEMENT
As we are New Zealand’s largest thermal
generator, the environmental and
market impact of climate change is one
of the foremost strategic challenges facing
the company.
Genesis Energy has long accepted the science
of climate change and has been an advocate
for some time of focused and sensible policy
to address its effects. In the company’s view,
such policy should have as one of its key
objectives the attainment and retention of
public support for both the need to take action
to address climate change and the shape that
that action should take.
For its part, Genesis Energy believes that
the introduction of a carbon price, whether
by way of emissions trading or carbon tax, is
the single biggest initiative any government
could introduce. It would create the right

CLIMATE CHANGE
– A QUICK GLANCE
• The Intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change (IPCC) has found that
concentrations of carbon dioxide (CO2)
in the atmosphere have increased by
35 per cent in the past 250 years, by far
exceeding natural variations over the
past 650,000 years, and probably the
past 10 million years.
• The IPCC has concluded that to a very
high conﬁdence level the global average
net effect of human activities on the
atmosphere has been one of warming.
• Evidence of warming includes
observations of increases in average
air and ocean temperatures,
widespread melting of snow and ice,
and rising global mean sea level.
• Eleven of the last twelve years (1995–
2006) rank among the 12 warmest
years in the instrumental record of
global surface temperature.
• New records were set for the highest
temperatures reached during
the summer of 2006 at locations
across Europe, the UK and the USA,
including the highest European mean
temperature on record for July.
Source: Reporting the Business Implications
of Climate Change in Sustainability Reports,
KPMG and the GRI

21

incentives to bring on investment in low carbon
technologies especially new renewable options
and, in the longer term, carbon capture and
sequestration technology. Price signals send
the right messages to the market to evolve
innovative responses.
Aside from the development of national policy
to respond to climate change, Genesis Energy
has in place its own climate change response
strategy. This has three key components.
The ﬁrst concerns the company’s generation
development plans. The company acknowledges
that the Huntly Power Station is a signiﬁcant
contributor to the country’s emissions proﬁle and
is actively focused on generation development
plans that will allow Huntly to be retired from the
market without undue risk to security of supply.
Genesis Energy believes that this will be best
accomplished by a mix of renewable energy and
high efﬁciency combined cycle gas generation,
and is actively working on bringing both types
of investment to the market as soon as is
possible. A real example of the gains that can be
seen is the company’s recently commissioned
400MW CCGT at Huntly. That generation is now
displacing coal-ﬁred generation from the Huntly
Power Station and could result in a reduction
of up to 1.8 million tonnes of carbon emissions
each year.
The second key area is by working with our
customers to assist them to be as energy
efﬁcient as possible. This makes economic
sense for them and helps manage the overall
growth in demand for electricity year on
year. As the country’s largest energy retailer,
Genesis Energy believes that action at this
level can make a real contribution to both
educating the public about the impacts of
climate change and providing them with real
tools to assist them to be part of the solution.

Finally, we are not neglecting our own patch.
Within the company we have in place strong
initiatives to manage our own daily carbon
footprint including initiatives such as the
introduction of sustainable procurement rules,
waste minimisation, and the adoption of low
emission motor vehicles, and work in areas such
as these continues.

Genesis Energy developed a climate change
strategy in 2005 which aims to responsibly
manage its impact on the environment by
achieving the following ﬁve objectives:

Genesis Energy intends to continue with, and
develop further, initiatives across the breadth
of its business in order to play its part in the
positive management of the challenges of
climate change.

3. To encourage and assist customers and
stakeholders to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions

CLIMATE CHANGE
STRATEGY
CARBON DIOXIDE
The level of generation emissions (ktCO 2) is
calculated by multiplying the amount of fuel used
for electricity generation by associated emission
factors. The type and level of fuel consumed to
produce electricity (PJ) have been obtained from
internal records. The emission factors by fuel type
(ktCO2 /PJ) have been derived from the Energy
Greenhouse Gas Emissions 1990–2006 publication,
MED (June 2007).

CARBON DIOXIDE EMISSIONS (kte)
6000
5000
4000

2. To reduce the greenhouse gas intensity of
Genesis Energy’s non-generation activities

4. To measure and accurately report Genesis
Energy’s greenhouse gas emissions
across all areas of its business
5. To develop and constantly improve internal
policies and strategies to allow Genesis
Energy to effectively respond to external
climate change policies and regulations
In our 2006 Corporate Responsibility Report we
identiﬁed tasks to help us achieve the Climate
Change Strategy objectives. This year we report
back on these tasks and, recognising that we
need to place ever more priority and focus
on responding to climate change, we have
identiﬁed new targets and actions to drive us
towards achieving our objectives.

GENESIS ENERGY’S
GENERATION
PORTFOLIO
OUR PERFORMANCE
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OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION 2007/2008

To reduce the
carbon intensity of
Genesis Energy’s
generation portfolio
over time

Reduce carbon intensity
by 30 per cent below
2005/2006 levels by
2015

Identify and implement opportunities for improving the
efficiency of existing plant
Implement three projects identified for improving
efficiencies at Huntly, including a condenser upgrade
project to improve cycle efficiency, complete tuning of
the CandI system, and installing efficiency software
Identify and pursue opportunities for investing in new
generation that uses zero or less-carbon-intensive fuels

Consent and construct
300MW of renewable
energy projects by 2015

1. To reduce the carbon intensity of Genesis
Energy’s generation portfolio over time

Work with joint venture partners to develop 300MW of
suitable wind farm sites
Establish land owner agreements and relationships with
stakeholders of suitable wind farm sites
Investigate, consent and construct 10MW of mini-hydro
opportunities in the Tongariro Power Scheme assets
Work with partners to develop up to 150MW of
geothermal energy

Genesis Energy primarily emits CO2 from
the generation of electricity at Huntly Power
Station. An increasing reliance on coal in place
of diminishing gas has seen our emissions rise
signiﬁcantly at Huntly since 2003. However,
we have achieved a 12 per cent decrease in
our total emissions over the past year, due
largely to two factors. Firstly, the high capacity
of hydro generation in New Zealand means
we didn’t need to run Huntly as much during
the winter months. Secondly, the introduction
of e3p has seen the carbon intensity of our
generation portfolio decrease by 9.8 per cent.
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CARBON INTENSITY PROFILE
tCO2/GWh
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GLOBAL CHALLENGE

RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT
Genesis Energy’s research and development
strategy is to work with external suppliers of
research and development to evaluate and
test emerging technology in wave, solar and
energy conservation.

700
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Primarily, Genesis Energy is committed to
developing and championing new renewable
energy technology and carbon capture and
sequestration research.

300
200
100
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Carbon intensity is the ratio of carbon
emissions to energy production. For the
2006/2007 year, the carbon intensity of all our
generation assets (excluding Te Awamutu)
was 630 tonnes CO2 (tCO2) per GWh (see graph
above). The carbon intensity proﬁle for our
thermal power generation units alone was 803
tCO2 per GWh.
Genesis Energy has identiﬁed a target to
reduce carbon intensity by 30 per cent by
2015. Some parties have criticised the use of
carbon intensity as a target or measurement.
Genesis Energy believes that reducing the
carbon intensity of our existing portfolio
is a crucial focus for reducing our overall
carbon footprint. This is due to the current
uncertainty around the amount of baseload
supply that New Zealand can produce
from renewable energy with its irregular
supply capacities.
Our thermal assets also emit small amounts
of methane (CH4) and nitrous oxide (N2O).
We are currently seeking to gain a better
understanding of the impact of these gases on
our overall climate change impact.

As a diverse generator, Genesis Energy is active
in pursuing emerging technology for renewable
energy generation. One area of real interest
is ocean energy, and for that reason Genesis
Energy is a founding member of AWATEA, the
New Zealand ocean energy association.
The company has entered into discussions
with several research organisations with
the intent of supporting the research and
development of new technologies.
Genesis Energy has also been working with the
Cooperative Research Centre for Greenhouse
Gases of Australia on carbon capture and
sequestration technology. This technology,
when commercially available, would enable the
capture of CO2 gases from thermal generators
and then involve a range of storage options for
the gas or liqueﬁed gas.
In order to advance this technology, and
particularly with dual fuel boilers, Genesis
Energy intends to retroﬁt a pilot carbon
capture plant at the Huntly Power Station.
By retroﬁtting a carbon capture plant to
one of the coal/gas units at Huntly, the
company believes it can advance this
emerging technology.

OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION 2007-2008

To reduce the carbon
intensity of Genesis Energy’s
generation portfolio over time

Advance the commercialisation of
wave and tidal energy generation
technology in New Zealand

Identify a technology suitable for
commercialisation

Champion NZ inc generation
initiatives for carbon capture and
sequestration

Investigate opportunities to
develop (plan and construct)
CO2 capture pilot plant (post
combustion) on PF coal and gas
units at Huntly

GREENPEACE PROTEST
AT HUNTLY POWER
STATION
With climate change and global warming
ﬁrmly at the top of the political and media
agenda at the beginning of 2007, Greenpeace
took the opportunity to publicise its position
on climate change by entering the Huntly
Power Station in February 2007.
Nine activists scaled the coal conveyor and
reached the top of one of the two 150m
chimneys on the site. Attempts to unfurl a
banner from the chimney were thwarted by
winds and the climbers were asked by Genesis
Energy staff and Huntly Police to come down
from the high structures and leave the site.
Since the February event, Genesis Energy
managers have met with Greenpeace climate
change campaigners and stressed that,
while Genesis Energy was more than happy
to discuss climate change issues and the
steps Genesis Energy is taking to reduce its
carbon emissions with Greenpeace, it was
not prepared to see the security of electricity
supply or human safety put at risk by activism.
Genesis Energy has a duty of care to protect its
assets, production and safety of its personnel
and others within its sites. Safety on a power
station site is paramount and no amount
of training by climate change activists can
mitigate the dangers faced in abseiling off
chimneys or power houses.
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GENESIS ENERGY’S
NON-GENERATION
ACTIVITIES

OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION

To reduce he carbon
intensity of Genesis
Energy’s nongeneration activities

All non-generation activities
to become carbon neutral
by June 2008 and annually
thereafter through a mix
of emissions reduction and
offset by carbon neutral
technologies

Offset all non-generation emissions that can’t
be reduced over 2007/2008

Achieve office energy
performance within the
Energy Efficiency and
Conservation Authority’s
EECA low typical usage
benchmark of
200-280kWh/m2

Undertake energy audits in all office buildings
and implement audit recommendations with a
payback period of five years or less

OUR PERFORMANCE
The non-generation activities that are targeted
by the Climate Change Strategy include:
• Electricity purchased for ofﬁce buildings
and generation site buildings
• Genesis Energy’s vehicle ﬂeet
• Rental vehicles used by Genesis Energy

Implement the Sustainable Building
Refurbishment Guidelines in any new
building projects

• Water consumption
• Waste management

Benchmark our current fuel
consumption in all Genesis
Energy fleet vehicles and
rental vehicles

We have been gathering data on travel and
electricity use since mid 2004 and have also
developed our own greenhouse gas calculator to
analyse our emissions from these activities. The
results have depicted a trend of increasing total
emissions over the last three years reﬂecting
the growth the company has experienced over
this time-frame. This is tempered by an overall
decrease in tCO2 per Full Time Equivalent (FTE).
NON GENERATION CO2 EMISSIONS
AND t/CO2 PER EMPLOYEE
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The graph above shows our total non-generation
emissions (excluding mileage claims for staff
travel). Genesis Energy’s non generation
emissions have been calculated by multiplying car
rental, air travel and electricity consumption by
associated emission factors. Consumption data
was obtained from suppliers. Emission factors
from WBCSD/WRI GHG Protocol Initiative Version
2 (June 2006) have been used to calculate the
level of emissions associated with car rental and
air travel. Emission factors from the Ministry of
Economic Development ‘Energy Greenhouse
Gas Emissions 1990–2006’ (Table 4.8) publication
have been used to calculate the level of emissions
associated with electricity consumption (primarily
reﬂecting ofﬁce facilities).

Investigate the need for a review of Genesis
Energy’s vehicle fleet
Where appropriate, replace Genesis Energy’s
vehicle fleets that need replacing with hybrids
Give full consideration to re-establishing video
conferencing facilities available to staff to
reduce staff travel

Reduce waste to landfill
from all office buildings
by 30 per cent below 2007
levels by June 2008

All sites to have and maintain waste
minimisation programmes

Reduce waste to landfill
from all generation sites
by 30 per cent below 2007
tCO2/FTE
levels by June 2008

All sites to have and maintain waste
minimisation programmes

Car Travel

800

Benchmark our performance against the EECA
low usage benchmark and identify a time-frame
within which to achieve low typical usage

Fully implement
Environmental Purchasing
Air TravelGuidelines into all office
and stationery purchasing
Electricitydecisions

In 2006/2007 our non-generation activities
produced 954 tCO2 in total with each (FTE)
responsible for 2.1 tonnes of CO2 (tCO2).

ELECTRICITY USE
Our combined ofﬁce electricity use in 2006/2007
was 1,370,297kWh and was responsible for the
production of 315 tCO2. This ﬁgure includes
all energy use associated with our Hamilton,
Wellington, Greenlane, New Plymouth and
Palmerston North ofﬁces. Operational electricity
use (e.g. pumps at our hydro power schemes) is
accounted for in our generation emissions.
As our business has grown over the past
three years, so has our electricity use – by a
total of 56 per cent compared with 2004/2005.
However, our tCO2 (from electricity) per
employee had a small corresponding increase
from 0.4 to 0.7 tCO2 per employee between
2004/2005 and 2005/2006. Tonnes of CO2 per
employee remained stable compared with last
year at 0.7 tCO2 this year.

Establish an annual waste audit procedure for
all offices

Establish an annual waste audit procedure for
all sites
Implement variety of activities including
integration into staff induction, establish a
monitoring system for guidelines, and office
purchasing staff training

TRAVEL
Over the past three years our emissions from
staff travelling on Genesis Energy business,
both by car and plane, have decreased in terms
of kilometres travelled and total tCO2 produced.
A total of 639 tCO2 was produced by all workrelated travel (excluding commuting and mileage
from personal car use) this year.
Our emissions from staff travelling on Genesis
Energy business by car and plane has decreased
from 1.8 tonnes per employee in 2004 to 1.4
tonnes per employee in 2006/2007.

MOVING FORWARD
While Genesis Energy primarily emits greenhouse
gases through its electricity generation activities,
we acknowledge that every aspect of Genesis
Energy’s operations emits greenhouse gases at
some stage of its life cycle and that we have a
responsibility to our staff and to New Zealand to
operate as sustainably as possible.
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Genesis Energy recognises that being
sustainable at work is how businesses must
now operate, but additional beneﬁts such as
risk management, cost reductions through
increased efﬁciencies, building staff moral and
engagement, being an employer of choice and
leading by example are all reasons why Genesis
Energy has taken up the sustainability challenge.
To achieve our corporate responsibility goals
and to support the company’s climate change
strategy an in-house sustainability team was
established in 2006 to create and encourage a
culture of sustainability within Genesis Energy.
Some of the key achievements of this group
have been Staff Sustainable Product Offers,
Leave-your-car-at-home days, and the
adoption of Sustainable Purchasing and
Building Guidelines.
Going forward this group will be focusing on:
• Sustainable Purchasing
• Waste
• Staff travel
• Energy efﬁciency
• Offsetting emissions
• Staff involvement

CUSTOMERS’ AND
STAKEHOLDERS’
GREENHOUSE GAS
EMISSIONS
OUR PERFORMANCE
Genesis Energy continues to be committed to
encouraging our customers to reduce their own
carbon footprints through energy-efﬁcient actions.
We have been active in this space over the past
year and have achieved some notable successes,
driven largely by the dedication of staff.

HEAT PUMPS SAVE ENERGY
Genesis Energy offered 300,000 customers
the opportunity to save hundreds of dollars
on home heating with a heat pump offer.
We worked with Panasonic, the Energy
Efﬁciency and Conservation Authority and
WEL Networks to offer our customers up to
$400 off the cost of an installed heat pump.
The campaign resulted in sales of 1,024
heat pumps. The combined energy saving
from the campaign was 1.9GWh based on
a 3.6kW heat pump operating at 100 per
cent, compared to two electric heaters with
a combined output of 3.6kW.

GLOBAL CHALLENGE

OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION 2007/2008

To encourage and assist
customers and stakeholders
to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions

Identify and offer a suite of
climate change campaigns
that will provide measurable
energy emissions reductions

Establish a measurement and monitoring
system to evaluate the effectiveness of
climate change campaigns
Report on the energy emissions reductions
from the 2007/2008 climate change
campaigns
Identify a quantifiable target for reduction of
emissions from climate change campaigns

DEMAND SIDE
ENERGY AUDITS
MANAGEMENT: FUTURE Genesis Energy, EnergyPro Systems and
Perry Group were successful applicants
PROOF BUILDING
Genesis Energy has recently signed an
exclusive 18-month partnership agreement
with Future Proof Building (FPB).
FPB is an initiative developed to promote
a change in the construction industry from
cost-driven construction to solution-driven
construction, so that buildings will be better
to live in now and will be worth more in the
future. FPB reinforces the ideals of quality and
excellence, which are of paramount importance
to reinforcing consumer conﬁdence in the
building industry and to improve the overall
quality of New Zealand homes.
Genesis Energy recognises the importance
of FPB both to the trade industry and to our
customers. Through our partnership with
FPB, Genesis Energy hopes to increase new
connections both from trade customers
– through our Kustom Konnections team
– and from residential customers.
To date, Genesis Energy has participated in
road shows which act as education tools for
the building industry and has sponsored FPB
show homes. The show homes demonstrate
FPB practices and act as education centres for
people thinking of building or renovating.
FPB is committed to educating the building
industry and the general public about the
need for better buildings built to suit the
lifestyle of the end user, through better energy
efﬁciency, building health and safety, resource
responsibility, space management, lifecycle costing, sound and quality control, and
security and automation.

for the Energy Efﬁciency and Conservation
Authority’s pilot ‘Energy Management Support
Grant’. The scheme is a new initiative aimed at
assisting organisations wishing to engage an
energy management professional to run their
energy management programme for them.
The EECA pays a subsidy which covers up to
half the cost of engaging this service.
Perry Group is a long-standing customer of
Genesis Energy and an iconic name in the
Waikato. Genesis Energy and EnergyPro
Systems approached Perry Group to take part
in this new initiative.
Under the scheme, Genesis Energy is supporting
the cost of the programme further by providing its
component of the energy management services
at no charge. Perry Group has recently embarked
upon a programme of sustainability and readily
accepted the opportunity to participate.

ECOBULBS™ CAMPAIGN
Genesis Energy subsidiary Energy Online worked
with Electra, the Electricity Commission and
Energy Mad to promote discounted energysaving Ecobulbs™ to Kapiti and Horowhenua
power consumers.
The project exceeded expectations with
more than 100,000 energy-saving Ecobulbs™
purchased during the six week period.
The project goal was 76,000 Ecobulbs™
which equated to approximately ﬁve
Ecobulbs™ into 40 per cent of the homes in
the region.
Over their lifetimes, the 100,000 Ecobulbs™
have the potential to:
• Save up to $13 million on power bills
• Save enough electricity to power over
7,300 houses for one year
• Reduce greenhouse gas emissions
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Because of the lifespan of the Ecobulbs™,
another beneﬁt is the reduction of waste
going to landﬁll and the associated costs of
transport, wear and tear on the roads, rubbish
bags and physical space in the landﬁll.
The project will prevent 900,000 ordinary
lightbulbs from going to the landﬁll.
This project is also making a positive contribution
to reducing greenhouse gas emissions.
Ecobulbs™ use 80 per cent less power than
ordinary lightbulbs do, and therefore will reduce
greenhouse gas emissions, equivalent to taking
more than 8,600 cars off the road for one year.
Energy Online is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Genesis Energy with 58,000 customers.

COOLSTORE SEMINAR
Genesis Energy developed an energy efﬁciency
seminar speciﬁcally for coolstores, freezing
works, controlled-atmosphere operations and
other food-processing facilities where large
amounts of refrigeration are required.
The seminar was held on 29 March 2007 at
Mount Maunganui and was attended by around
65 people from various industry groups.
It was well attended by the kiwifruit processing
industry including Zespri Ltd. The seminar was
relevant to both management and engineering/
technical staff.
The main focus of the seminar was on
practical energy efﬁciency opportunities from
plant design to daily operation. Broader issues
covered were opportunities emerging from the
Government’s response to climate change.

The principal presenter was Professor Don
Cleland from Massey University a highly
respected industry expert in this ﬁeld.
Other speakers included Zane Murray, from
Genesis Energy who provided an insight
into the future direction of the electricity
marketplace and John Penny of Vectek
whose presentation included the bottom-line
beneﬁts of power factor correction.
Feedback from the seminar has been very
positive with many companies from the
industry indicating that staff returned to work
with new motivation to take action.
Zespri Ltd have advised that as a result of
attending they commissioned an energy audit
of two kiwifruit coolstores and the results
should be completed shortly.
Zespri Ltd will provide the energy audit results
to Professor Don Cleland who will use the
information to develop a best-practice document
that will be circulated to all kiwifruit industry
coolstore operators. Zespri Ltd is hopeful that
energy savings and better operational practices
will ﬂow from the coolstore seminar initiative.

BARNZ AUXILIARY
POWER PROJECT
Every day many aircraft arrive at Auckland
International Airport (AIAL). While being
refuelled, catered and loaded with passengers
and baggage, the aircraft rely on their Auxiliary
Power Units (APUs) for power. These APUs are
generally small jet engines in the aircraft tail
and are fuelled by aviation fuel.
In 2006 BARNZ (Board of Airline
Representatives New Zealand Inc) agreed with
AIAL to ﬁnd a solution to supply the visiting
aircraft with mains power. As power supplier
for AIAL, Genesis Energy entered the project
as a partner and electricity supplier.

Genesis Energy devised a system of one
electricity meter at each of the 10 aircraft
gates that will be operated by swipe cards
by each airline. BARNZ and Genesis Energy
also invested in a billing system to generate
invoices for each airline on a monthly basis.

RESULT
By converting from jet fuel generation to a
mains power supply, around 190 tonnes of
carbon dioxide will be saved per year.

SCHOOLGEN
In a time when the threat of climate change is
present in our everyday lives, Genesis Energy
recognises the need to teach the younger
generation the importance of renewable
energy, energy efﬁciency and climate change
in an interesting and engaging way.
To address this need, Genesis Energy
developed Schoolgen, a programme which
assists selected primary and secondary public
schools in New Zealand to install a
two kilowatt (2kW) photovoltaic (PV) system.
The PV system is designed to reduce the
ﬁnancial and environmental impacts of the
school’s energy use, while increasing the
community’s awareness and acceptance of
solar energy. Students, teachers and parents
will see how solar energy is generated and will
learn how it is used in their day-to-day lives.
A Schoolgen website (www.schoolgen.co.nz)
has been developed as a comprehensive
resource for the programme. Students are able
to view and download the electricity generation
data directly from the Schoolgen website as
part of in-class experiments and projects.
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Data from the PV systems will also aid property
developers for future housing and building
designs. By incorporating solar power into
future homes and buildings it is possible to
greatly improve energy generation and usage.
No pollutants are generated by the system
during operation and the system will keep
generating power as long as the sun shines.
Schoolgen has assisted six schools in the
greater Auckland area in 2006/2007. Genesis
Energy will be rolling out the programme to
other regions in New Zealand over the next
three years.
Genesis Energy believes that if Schoolgen
can educate the next generation of decisionmakers about the importance of renewable
energy and the need to reduce our reliance on
fossil fuels, then the programme would have
succeeded in its key objectives.
This year, Schoolgen was supported by a
grant from the Minister for the Environment’s
Sustainable Management Fund, which is
administered by the Ministry for the Environment.

GLOBAL CHALLENGE

OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION 2007/2008

To measure and
accurately report
Genesis Energy’s
greenhouse gas
emissions across all
areas of its business

Report all non-generation emissions
in accordance with an internationally
recognised standard

Amend the current tool used to
measure non-generation emissions
to ensure compliance with an
internationally recognised standard

Report all generation emissions in
accordance with an internationally
recognised standard

Measure generation emissions in
accordance with an internationally
recognised standard
2007/2008 emissions independently
verified

Develop a policy on supply chain
boundaries for non-generation and
generation suppliers in the context
of sustainable procurement and
reporting

COMMUNITIES FOR
CLIMATE PROTECTION
UPDATE
Genesis Energy has continued to support
the Communities for Climate Protection –
New Zealand programme (CCP-NZ)
in 2006/2007.
As part of its alliance with ICLEI-Local
Governments for Sustainability, Genesis
Energy offers to CCP-NZ councils:
• Advice and mentoring for in-house energy
management
• Essential elements of a successful energy
management programme
• Steps needed to move forward on saving
energy, money and greenhouse gas
emissions
Genesis Energy also offers 2-step Energy Audit
up to the value of $2,500 per council to CCPNZ councils as part of its alliance with ICLEILocal Governments for Sustainability. Under
this assistance programme, Genesis Energy
undertakes an initial scoping audit to establish
the scale of savings and likely pay-back period
on an identiﬁed council building.
Genesis Energy also assisted council
delegates from New Zealand to attend the
Local Action Sustainability ICLEI Oceania
Conference May 2007 in Melbourne, an
international gathering of leaders in local
government, ICLEI Campaigns and sustainable
development from the Oceania region. Genesis
Energy recognised that this was an important
event for New Zealand councils to attend
as it focused on strengthening the capacity
of councils for effective and lasting action
towards climate change.

Investigate the extent to which it is
appropriate to report on the energy
supply footprint of gas and electricity
including gas, gas consumption,
transmission and distribution

Genesis Energy will be continuing to work with
ICLEI-A/NZ in 2007/2008 to deliver practical
energy management advice and support to
New Zealand councils.
Genesis Energy maintains several other
active programmes in the community
that are focused on education and health.
These programmes have the dual beneﬁt
of contributing to our objective of helping
customers to achieve greenhouse gas
reductions and are discussed in more detail
later in this report.

MOVING FORWARD
Our climate change strategy is placing
increased focus on ensuring that our
programmes and offerings to help customers
and stakeholders reduce their greenhouse
gas emissions are effective and measurable.
We also believe that it is important to identify
a quantiﬁable target for customer reductions
from our climate change programme offers.
However, we want to ensure that our target
is informed by hard data and modelled
upon real or planned actions that we take to
progress energy efﬁciency uptake amongst our
customers and key stakeholders.

INTERNAL POLICIES
AND STRATEGIES

to allow Genesis Energy to effectively
respond to external climate change policies
and regulations

OUR PERFORMANCE
Genesis Energy recognises that, to be
successful, our climate change strategy needs
to be implemented across the company and
supported by all the staff. As a result, Genesis
Energy’s Chief Executive is the company’s
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climate change champion and cross-functional
climate action teams were established to
provide a forum for people across the company
to engage in and implement the strategy.
The climate action teams have seen several
successes and have experienced several
challenges in the implementation of our
climate change policy, not least of which
has been ensuring uptake across a diverse
and geographically spread organisation.
The importance of keeping the strategy alive
and fresh has become apparent as has the
need to ensure that teams responsible for
implementation are supported and capable of
meeting on a regular basis.
Genesis Energy has been very active in the
development of New Zealand’s climate change
policy this year, particularly the New Zealand
Energy Strategy. As we move towards carbon
trading we will continue to be actively engaged
in this area of policy development, which we
consider to be critical to New Zealand’s future
economic, social and environmental well-being.

OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION 2007/2008

To develop and constantly
improve internal policies and
strategies to allow Genesis
Energy to effectively respond
to external climate change
policies and regulations

Actively participate in the
development of national climate
change policy

Genesis Energy anticipates policy
development in a timely manner, and
communicates Genesis Energy’s views
at appropriate opportunities
Implement processes, systems and
strategies to prepare for emissions
trading in New Zealand

Review the Genesis Energy
climate change strategy annually

MOVING FORWARD
Last year we stated that development of
annual climate action business plans to ensure
long-term commitment was a key task to
implementing our strategy. However, this has
not been practically achievable and Genesis
Energy is looking at new ways to ensure that
climate change considerations are embedded
in our business decision-making processes.

Review of climate change strategy by
June 2008

A review of the climate change strategy will
occur by June 2008 and will focus on how best
to ensure that all activities of the company
are clearly focused on emission reduction
strategies. The review will also need to fold
the Climate Change Strategy into our new
Corporate Social Responsibility Strategy – an
integral part of which is responsibly managing
our impact on the climate.

Murray Jackson with our new ﬂeet of hybrid cars.
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NATIONAL CHALLENGE

HOW WE BEST
SERVE OUR
COUNTRY
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GENERATION
AND FUELS
DEVELOPMENT
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NATIONAL CHALLENGE

New Zealand wants to
be green, but it is
growing at a strong rate.
How does an energy
company increase its
generation capability
while reducing its
impact? We’re looking
at today’s demand
against tomorrow’s
projection and putting
a plan in place that will
manage both.

GROWTH OF THE
ENERGY MARKET
Genesis Energy’s strategic response to
growth in electricity demand is to make a
difference by building new generation.

SITUATION
Genesis Energy has a strategic aim of
contributing to a low-emissions and energysecure future for the country by building an
appropriate mix of new generation to meet
the continuing growth in consumer demand.
Genesis Energy acknowledges there is a case for
more investment in demand-side management
and energy efﬁciency programmes. We detail
our efforts in this area on page 24. Despite the
best efforts of government agencies, network
companies and electricity retailers, the electricity
market has not delivered demand-side response
to rising energy demand.
Growth in energy demand will still require
building new generation of at least 150MW
per annum.
As System Operator, Transpower recorded
a New Zealand peak demand of 6,919MW
between 5.30pm and 6pm on 20 June 2007.
This was 171MW or 2.5 per cent higher than
the peak demand last winter of 6,748MW.
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As well as new peak demand ﬁgures, the
total amount of electricity being used by
New Zealanders is breaking records.
New Zealand’s total demand for electricity
on 20 June was 136.2GWh. The previous 24hour record was 132.6GWh on 26 June 2006.
Despite the mild weather in April and May,
New Zealand’s total electricity use in the ﬁrst
half of 2007 was 2.5 per cent above the same
period last year.
Forecast demand analysis by Transpower
(System Security Forecast 2006) based on
historical demand and statistical analysis
found that the change in demand from 2005
to 2017 assumed a medium level of growth
of 31 per cent. That represented an annual
average growth rate of 2.3 per cent.
Growth rates also varied from region to region,
and demand in the Auckland region was
forecast to grow 4.0 per cent per annum.
Forecasts by the Electricity Commission show
that electricity demand is expected to grow as
the country’s economy grows.
YEAR

GIGAWATT HOURS

2005

41670 Actual 1

2006

42056 Actual

2010

42444 2

2015

47097 2

2020

51473 2

2025

55497 2

2030

59267 2

1

Sources: 1. Ministry of Economic Development
Energy data; 2. Electricity Commission Mean
Demand Forecast May 2005

Genesis Energy will continue to focus its
generation investment strategy on highefﬁciency gas turbine generation to replace
coal-ﬁred generation and renewable energy
projects, where these are economically
viable. The introduction of a price for carbon
will assist in improving the economics of
renewable investments including wind, hydro
and geothermal.

Forecasts by the Ministry of Economic Development in the 2006 Energy Outlook below show
which electricity generation types are expected to grow in order to meet demand.
ELECTRICITY SUPPLY BY ENERGY TYPE (PJ)

INSTALLED NEW ELECTRICITY
CAPACITY (MW)

2005

2010

2015

2020

2025

2030

Hydro

84

90

90

91

91

91

CoGen

7

6

7

7

8

9

Geothermal

10

10

13

17

17

17

Coal

18

15

18

18

18

21

Gas

25

34

30

31

35

41

Oil

0

0

0

0

0

0

Wind
TOTAL

2

5

13

19

23

24

145

159

172

182

193

202

2010

2015

2020

2025

2030

0

0

43

0

0

30

30

30

30

30

115

120

140

10

0

0

0

0

0

66

365

109

30

194

320

195

552

407

297

53

Source: Energy Outlook to 2030, Ministry of Economic Development Nov 2006
OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION 2007/2008

Increase renewable
generation portfolio
whilst maintaining secure
base load generation
growth

Grow Genesis Energy’s renewable energy
generation portfolio (refer to Climate Change
Strategy for renewable energy targets and
actions on page 20)

Develop opportunities
for low-emission-efficient,
and reliable generation
within the constraints of
market requirements

Provide robust generation
solutions

Maintain the reliability and availability of
our existing generation capacity – 90 per
cent availability for hydro and 87 per cent
for thermal

Displace less-efficient generation technology
within the constraints of the market

GENERATION
DEVELOPMENT
Genesis Energy’s generation investment
strategy is to operate and develop a diversity
of generation to maintain security of supply
while reducing the company’s carbon footprint.
Further generation investment also supports
growth strategies for our retail business.

GROWTH DRIVERS
• Reduce the carbon intensity of our business
• Satisfy the growth demands of our
retail business
• Contribute new renewable energy capacity
to meet national demand
Genesis Energy’s thermal strategy involves
adding capacity to maintain a sound level
of reliable, dispatchable generation, while
reducing Genesis Energy’s carbon intensity by
constructing high-efﬁciency/low-emissions
thermal plant and by replacing higheremission thermal capacity.

Genesis Energy’s strategy for renewable generation
development provides for an additional 300MW of
a combination of new wind generation, mini-hydro
developments in geothermal generation.

E3P COMMISSIONED
On 29 June 2007, Genesis Energy formally
took over the ownership and operation of the
400MW combined cycle gas turbine (CCGT)
known as Huntly e3p from the lead contractor
Mitsubishi Corporation.
The CCGT will not only add much needed extra
generation capacity to the energy market,
but will enable Genesis Energy to reduce its
greenhouse gas emissions by up to 1.8 million
tonnes of CO2 per year. The reduction will be
achieved due to the higher efﬁciency of the
CCGT and lower emissions from natural gas
compared to coal.
The takeover of the plant followed a fourmonth-long commissioning programme
which has proved the machine’s reliability
and capability to run at 400MW. At the peak of
construction, the gas turbine project employed
more than 600 contractors’ staff.
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CONDENSER FROM PFS
PFS Engineering were contracted to
manufacture and install e3p’s steam
condenser. It comprised eight modules.
The total weight empty is more than
200,000kg and incorporated over 11,000
tubes. PFS worked 24 hours a day to meet
the original delivery and delivered ahead
of schedule.

The planning and hard work over the past four
years to bring the Huntly project to completion
is now paying off as New Zealand’s electricity
peak demand exceeded 6,900MW in June 2007.
During the construction period of 33 months,
a wide array of local and international
contractors worked on the e3p project.
The procurement contract with Mitsubishi
Corporation stipulated that local suppliers
should be contracted where appropriate.
The Industry Capability Network, a business
unit of New Zealand Trade and Enterprise,

WAS SUPPLIED LO-RES, HAVE
UP RES’D BUT NOW AT 146%
OF ACTUAL SIZE

NATIONAL CHALLENGE

worked with our lead contractor to identify
potential local suppliers. Although much
of the physical equipment was supplied
from offshore, most of the civil, electrical
and engineering work was supplied by
New Zealand ﬁrms. Notable local suppliers
were PFS Engineering of Hamilton for
the condenser and Brian Perry Civil for
strengthening of the Tainui Bridge.
In addition, the many welders, electricians
and mechanical engineers on the project were
New Zealanders, sourced from the Waikato or
further aﬁeld. In total 1.75 million man hours
were worked to complete the project.
This represents a signiﬁcant contribution to
the economy.

WIND FARM DEVELOPMENT
Genesis Energy is investigating onshore
wind farm opportunities with the aim
of adding 300MW of new wind generation
to its portfolio. These wind farm
development projects are primarily
located in the Waikato and Hawkes Bay
and are to be implemented through joint
venture partnerships.
Genesis Energy will continue a programme
of identiﬁcation of potential wind resource
through a well-deﬁned process of advanced
meteorological modelling, project formulation,
and economic assessment. Genesis Energy
is developing an evaluation database
which compares wind energy, consenting,

construction and transmission issues for wind
farm prospects and ranks sites to identify
those most favourable for further wind data
acquisition and detailed assessment.
Genesis Energy holds resource consents for
a wind farm on the Awhitu Peninsula in the
Franklin District. During 2006, due to the
development of adverse project economics
a decision was made to defer construction.
Depending on ﬁnal turbine conﬁguration, the
Awhitu project is estimated to have a resource
of approximately 20MW.

NEW GAS GENERATION
Demand for electricity is growing rapidly; in
the ﬁrst six months of 2007, national demand
grew by 2.5 per cent. While Genesis Energy’s
new CCGT at Huntly will meet demand in
growth and other new renewable projects
may be commissioned, it is necessary to
keep maintaining the pace of new generation
development, as all of these projects take
many years to bring to fruition.
Following in-house and independent analysis
of demand and generation availability north
of Auckland, in October 2005 Genesis Energy
announced a proposal to build a CCGT north
of the transmission constraint through the
Auckland isthmus.
Genesis Energy is the incumbent retailer north
of Auckland Harbour and is experiencing rapid
growth in demand.

WAS SUPPLIED LO-RES, HAVE
UP RES’D BUT NOW AT 175%
OF ACTUAL SIZE

Hau Nui wind farm.
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The project proposal has developed in the past
year to consist of two 240MW combined cycle
gas turbines built in two stages. The land for
the project, acquired from landowners in 2007,
totals 48.8 hectares.
Genesis Energy has commenced discussions
with the Rodney District Council over
building a new wastewater treatment plant
in Helensville. If the proposed Helensville
Wastewater Reuse Project proceeds, treated
water would be taken from the wastewater
treatment plant and pumped to the power
station for use in the generation process.
Once used in the generation process, the water
would be treated again and then discharged.
Using town wastewater in the cooling process
at the power station would be a sustainable use
of the local wastewater resource.
Negotiations with the preferred supplier for
the ultimate 480MW plant have resolved to use
stand-alone dry cooling rather than salt water
cooling and reduce the number of reheat
boilers from three to two. The station will
retain its distinctive aerofoil or wing shape with
a rooﬂine that curves into the hillside.
Following resolution of the engineering,
design and environmental assessment, the
ﬁnal application to the Rodney District Council
for a District Plan change was lodged in July
after the balance date. At the same time an
air and water use/discharge resource consent
application was lodged with the Auckland
Regional Council.

The power station would utilise combined
cycle gas turbine technology which enables
high-efﬁciency thermal generation. The use
of natural gas as a fuel source would produce
little smoke and will produce up to 60 per cent
fewer carbon dioxide emissions than the same
volume of energy from conventional coal-ﬁred
power stations. The CCGT station would provide
a ﬁrm, reliable supply of electricity, providing
security of supply to the national grid when
commissioned in 2010. The power station would
have an initial nominal 240MW development
stage, with a further 240MW stage to be
developed in 2015 to meet demand growth.

Central to this design are issues of acoustic
isolation, landscape integration, amenity and
the creation of a safe and comfortable working
environment. A curved building design was
chosen to integrate with the landscape and to
capture maximum rainfall. The administration
building paint, steel, sheet metal rooﬁng,
glazing, concrete, insulation and other such
products would be developed using carbon
neutral manufacturers and/or recycled
products. Solar panels on the roof are also
proposed. External lighting at the power station
required at night could be directionally focused
and shaded to minimise light spill.

Throughout the project, a number of features
have been integrated into the development
to provide signiﬁcant environmental and
community beneﬁts. These features
were identiﬁed through project planning,
consultation and environmental assessments.
Included in these features are aspects
relating to the building design, landscaping,
technology, water supply and wastewater
systems, and roading upgrade.

Earth that is removed to establish the platform
of the power station would be utilised on
site to create landforms contiguous with the
existing landform. The landforms to be created
on site aid in reducing the visual impact by
integrating the site into the rural landscape.

MINIMISING IMPACT
Leading experts were engaged by Genesis
Energy to develop a comprehensive building
and site layout. The power station building has
been designed to contain the various parts
and elements within a single uniﬁed structure.

Native ﬂora would be used throughout and
the planting would provide an important
wildlife corridor link between the proposed
Kaukapakapa Scientiﬁc Reserve Area and the
bush remnants to the south of the site. Wetland
planting is also proposed on the banks of the
Kaukapakapa River. Riparian planting, fencing
and the retirement of the stream margins would
restrict cattle access to the river. As introduced
species are in high numbers on the site, native
species will be re-introduced to the area and
would be left to regenerate. These features
would provide signiﬁcant environmental
enhancements in the area.

REDUCING RODNEY’S
IMPACT
Genesis Energy has made sure that
sustainability considerations are
fundamental and indistinguishable aspects
of the development of the proposed 480MW
Rodney Power Station.

WAS SUPPLIED LO-RES, HAVE
UP RES’D BUT NOW AT 175%
OF ACTUAL SIZE

The new, high-efﬁciency power station in the
Rodney District would use combined cycle gas
turbine (CCGT) technology, in itself providing
a highly efﬁcient and low-carbon-emitting
thermal generation option. Genesis Energy
would provide an enduring and sustainable
facility at the site and considers that the Rodney
Power Station would play an ongoing and
important role in the development of the region.

Public consultation day for the Rodney project.
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REDUCED WATER TAKE
An air-cooled system has been selected for
the station, which has dramatically reduced (by
more than 90 per cent) the quantity of water
required for the project. Some water is still
required for plant operation.
The preferred option of water supply for the
power station is the reuse of Helensville
wastewater and Rodney District Council
has agreed to work with Genesis Energy to
implement this. This would involve treating
the wastewater for use at the station
(excluding human use) then returning
wastewater from the site to the Helensville
wastewater treatment plant. This process
would result in an overall improvement in the
Helensville wastewater discharge and would
utilise productively what would otherwise
be a waste needing to be discharged into
the environment. Further investigations
are underway to conﬁrm the details of this
option. These options, which have not been
used elsewhere in New Zealand for this type
of development, extend the sustainability
considerations for the project beyond the
power station development itself and into
important community infrastructure.
A run-off and rainwater collection system
would be designed to maximise the collection
of rainwater from the roofed area to provide
the primary source of potable water for human

NATIONAL CHALLENGE

use on the site. This would also help reduce
run-off and stormwater discharges.
The Inland Road/State Highway 16 intersection
currently does not meet roading and
intersection standards and would be upgraded
as part of the project. This wouuld improve
the safety and efﬁciency of the intersection,
beneﬁting the existing road users and allowing
safe entry to, and exit from, the power station.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
Genesis Energy opened the Helensville
Information Centre in December 2006.
The purpose of the information centre is to
operate as a drop-in centre for residents
interested in the Rodney Power Station project
or who would like to learn more about Genesis
Energy. Consultation has been an important
part of shaping the Rodney Power Station
development, including local iwi with whom
Genesis Energy has an ongoing relationship with.
Genesis Energy has undertaken beneﬁcial
community projects such as sponsorship of the
hospital development managed by the Helensville
District Health Trust. Other community
sponsorships include projects associated with
the Te Awaroa Youth Club, Kaipara College
Dragon Boat Team, the Kaukapakapa Rural
Fire-ﬁghters and the Helensville Agricultural
and Pastoral Association.

Economic beneﬁts for the community include
the need for a construction workforce for the
power station, requiring over 300 workers.
This offers both employment opportunities and
economic spin-offs for the local community.
Training and development programmes are
to be developed for local trainees for both
construction and permanent station staff.
These features have formed an integral part of
the Rodney Power Station project development.
They have been developed through technical and
environmental analysis, community engagement
and with sustainability goals at the forefront.
The Rodney Power Station would bring large
gas supply capability to the Helensville district to
support industrial, rural and domestic growth.

HUNTLY P48 STAGE II
A project is under investigation to improve
the cycle efﬁciency and overall capacity of
Huntly Unit 6 – a 48MW open cycle gas turbine
commissioned in 2004. A feasibility analysis is
underway to identify the optimal conﬁguration
for incorporating the existing 48MW open cycle
gas turbine plant into a combined cycle gas
turbine process by adding an additional gas
turbine, a heat recovery steam generator and
steam turbines.

NEEDS
CLEARCUTTING

NEEDS
CLEARCUTTING
Doug Tucker at Mangaio project.
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MANGAIO MINI HYDRO
We are committed to reducing our carbon
footprint by bringing new renewable
electricity generation to the market.

MEETING DEMAND:
FUEL SUPPLY
The key drivers of Genesis Energy’s fuel
supply strategies are:

Within the boundaries of the existing
Tongariro Power Scheme are several
opportunities to create new mini-hydro
electricity power stations. One of these
opportunities is currently under construction.

• To have a portfolio of ﬂexible supply
contracts, together with coal stockpile
capacity, to provide fuel cover across the
demand range determined by dry or wet
year scenarios;

Located within the Tongariro Power Scheme
at the Mangaio Tunnel outfall into Lake
Moawhango, the Mangaio station will have
a 2MW generator and will connect to the
Genesis Energy Moawhango Tokaanu 33kV
transmission line. The single Francis turbine
will utilise up to 4.5 cubic metres/second at
approximately 51m net head before returning
the water to the Mangaio stream downstream
of the existing outfall drop structure.

• To utilise domestic supply as far as
possible; and

Construction of the powerhouse structure
continued through June 2007 with ﬁnal wall
sections, roof and steelwork and ﬁttings
completed in July. The ﬁnal major component of
the civil works contract, the 33kV line connection,
is to be constructed through September and
October 2007. Commissioning of the mini-hydro
power station is expected in April and May 2008.

• Successful commissioning of the Kupe
gas ﬁeld;

• To secure long-term fuel supply contracts
or options to support investment in
existing and new generation capacity.

GAS SUPPLY
The key gas supply challenge for New Zealand
is the continuing availability of adequate
domestic supply. Our activities are centred on:

COAL SUPPLY
Our demand for coal in any year can vary
considerably as a result of hydrology
conditions and thermal plant availability.
This variability is managed through the coal
stockpile. Coal burn over the past 12 months
was 1.9 million tonnes.
We aim to maintain a coal stockpile of between
800,000 and one million tonnes.
The supply chain includes a mix of domestic
and imported coal. Domestic supply is based
on supply from the Waikato coalﬁelds where
Genesis Energy has contracted the development
of the 11 million tonne Awaroa 4 mine.
Imported supply extends from the coalﬁelds
of Kalimantan, Indonesia, through shipping to
Port of Tauranga and the purpose-built coal
handling facilities at the port and then via rail
to Rotowaro from where it is trucked to the
end of the Genesis Energy conveyor or the
West Mine stockpiles.

• Identifying and participating in upstream
exploration and development opportunities
in order to bring more gas to market; and
• Resource consenting an LNG import
terminal as a back-up option.

Also within the Scheme, investigations have
been restarted on a proposed 8MW mini-hydro
power station on the Wairehu canal.

NEEDS
CLEARCUTTING

Allan Melhuish at Kupe Production Station (left, and centre-right).
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The coal stockpile is an essential part of the
supply chain in order to absorb swings in
demand created by varying hydrology. Its size
will vary according to time of year, demand
and supply. The absolute size of the stockpile
at any point in time is in itself not relevant
without the associated supply chain status.
Once stockpile C at West Mine is developed,
Genesis Energy will have a stockpile capacity
of up to 1.3 million tonnes.

COAL SUPPLIERS
Our domestic supply is dominated by Solid
Energy but we support other local miners who
are able to produce coal to a low-sulphur and
low-ash speciﬁcation that is acceptable at the
Huntly Power Station. We currently have three
such supply contracts.
We purchase our imported coal from
Glencore, an international coal trader/broker,
which in turn contracts with major coal
producers in Indonesia. These coal miners

NATIONAL CHALLENGE

have long-term coal access agreements with
the Indonesian Government. Indonesian coal
has identical qualities to Huntly coal and
ﬂexible supply arrangements provide back-up
to domestic supplies.

GASBRIDGE
STRATEGY

Work within a joint venture partnership with
Contact Energy to develop an option to import
liquefied natural gas (LNG) during the decade
2010–2020
OBJECTIVE

Safeguard current gas turbine generation
investment by consenting a site for importing
LNG
TARGET

Gain a resource consent for a LNG importation
terminal in New Plymouth by 2010

Genesis Energy and its joint venture partner
Contact Energy announced a preferred site for
a LNG import terminal at New Plymouth in
October 2006.

Since announcing an intention to apply for
WAS SUPPLIED LO-RES, HAVE resource consent for a LNG terminal at Port
UP RES’D BUT NOW AT 155% Taranaki, Gasbridge representatives have
been meeting with a range of local community
OF ACTUAL SIZE
groups including iwi, surﬁng groups, marine
reserve proponents and local residents.

This consultation has enabled Gasbridge to learn
of concerns held and address these concerns
ahead of applying for resource consents.
Following the announcement of Port Taranaki
as the preferred site, a Gasbridge website has
been launched, an information line was set up
and a fact sheet was distributed to letter-boxes
in the neighbouring streets.

FUEL DEVELOPMENT
Fuel is a critical input into the energy supply
chain and cost-effective, reliable fuel supplies
are fundamental to Genesis Energy’s business,
both in terms of its current investments and its
future business initiatives.
In particular, to support Genesis Energy’s
strategy of diverse generation sources,
Genesis Energy has a need for secure
and ﬂexible fuel supplies. This enables
the ﬂexible use of thermal generation to
support weather-dependent wind and
hydro generation and also enables Genesis
Energy to meet the volatile gas demands
of residential customers. To address this
Genesis Energy aims to ‘Bring more fuel to
market’. Genesis Energy aims to achieve this
by a variety of means - contracting additional
fuel from known and potential fuel supply
sources, through its upstream interests and
playing an active role in exploration activities,
and by developing the LNG option.
Over the course of the last year, Genesis
Energy has embarked on many initiatives in
order to ‘Bring more fuel to market’.
These include:
• Genesis Energy was awarded a Petroleum
Exploration Permit (PEP 38 1204) in respect
of the Mangatoa prospect. Over the ﬁrst
three years of the permit programme,
Genesis Energy will conduct various studies
and acquire new seismic data ahead of
potential well-drilling activities. Work is
already underway on these activities.

Loading rock for Kupe Project.

• Genesis Energy, along with its joint venture
partner Contact Energy, announced in
October 2006 the selection of Port Taranaki
as the preferred site for the LNG regasiﬁcation terminal. The Genesis Energy
and Contact joint venture ‘Gasbridge’ is now
moving ahead with resource consenting
and consultation activities. Developing a
real option around the importation of LNG
ensures that the substantial investments
that the company has committed to gasﬁred generation will not be stranded by an
absence of indigenous gas.
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• Genesis Energy accepts that coal is not as
environmentally sustainable as are other
technologies. Nevertheless, Genesis Energy
ﬁrmly believes that hydrocarbons have an
important role to play to ensure security of
supply and a ﬂexible electricity system, and
one that enables weather-dependent wind
and hydro generation to come to market
optimally. To this end, Genesis Energy
acquired the Mokau Coal permit in early
2007 and is progressing a work programme
that looks to the future. In particular,
Genesis Energy supports the research
and development into carbon capture and
sequestration through its membership of
the CO2CRC and developments in this ﬁeld
coupled with the developments in clean coal
technology mean that coal is likely to have a
role to play in the future.
• Genesis Energy is a key participant of the
Kupe Gas ﬁeld development. This project
was committed in late June 2006 and work
is now well underway with 85 per cent of
the project committed to contract at 30
June 2007. The fabrication of the platform
jacket in Thailand was completed and the
jacket arrived in New Zealand in August
2007. The Ensco 107 drilling rig is expected
to arrive in September 2007.
Construction of a mattress of crushed rocks
to carry the subsea pipeline and umbilical
over the boulder ﬁelds approximately 2km
offshore was successfully completed.
Drilling of the two ‘Horizontally Directionally
Drilled’ tunnels from the production station
location, under the cliffs and emerging
1.8km offshore, was also successfully
completed and both holes have now been
lined with steel casing and are ready for
installation of the line pipe and umbilical.
Earthworks and civil works are well
advanced at the Production Station site in
South Taranaki.
• First gas from Kupe is due to ﬂow in the
ﬁrst half of 2009.

PUBLIC POLICY
STRATEGY
Genesis Energy’s public policy strategy
is based on a simple approach – we seek
to engage and be involved in the creation
of sound and appropriate public policy,
legislation and regulation.
We do so in order to continue to provide our
customers with safe, reliable, reasonably
priced electricity and gas in a manner that

minimises the environmental impact and
protects the communities we operate within.
Like most businesses, we seek certainty from
public policy that allows us to invest in more
sustainable ways of doing business while
providing our customers, stakeholders and
shareholders with what they need.
There are a number of public policy objectives that
are critical to Genesis Energy’s sustainability:
1. Help our customers manage their growing
demand for electricity in innovative ways
such as the introduction of advanced
metering technology and energy
efﬁciency programmes
2. Contribute towards meeting Government
energy strategy objectives and Kyoto
Protocol commitments
3. Make increased efforts towards
environmental sustainability
4. Expand and reinforce the transmission
infrastructure
During the year, Genesis Energy responded
to many public policy initiatives and took part
in a wide range of consultation exercises with
national and regional government. We report
below on our response to the draft New Zealand
Energy Strategy. Submissions on other public
policy issues can be found on the Genesis
Energy website under the About Us heading.

DRAFT NEW ZEALAND
ENERGY STRATEGY
(NZES)
From a regulatory perspective, industry
attention in recent months has focused
on the NZES. The chief focus of the NZES
is the management of climate change, and,
once ﬁnalised, is likely to have a signiﬁcant
impact on the industry and particularly on
Genesis Energy.
Genesis Energy considers that the chief outcome
of the NZES process will be the introduction
of a carbon trading regime. Genesis Energy
agrees with pricing the environmental effects
of carbon emissions of fossil fuels. The company
considers that this will be best achieved through
the introduction of an Emissions Trading
Scheme. We look forward to the regulatory and
investment certainty that will emerge once this
is implemented.
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MANAGING OUR
IMPACT

39

ENVIRONMENTAL
FOOTPRINT
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What is the impact
we have made in
the areas in which
we operate, and
how do we act
responsibly and
restore and assist
our environment
for the future?
NEEDS
CLEARCUTTING

APPROACH TO
ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT
Genesis Energy recognises that there
is more to a business than delivering a
service or product and as a result, has a
strategic approach of delivering energy in
an environmentally responsible manner.
To ensure effective delivery of environmental
management, Genesis Energy has a sizeable
environmental team under three environmental
managers: the Thermal Environmental
Manager and the Renewable Environmental
Manager who report through to the General
Manager Production; and the Corporate
Environmental Manager who reports to the
General Manager Corporate Affairs.
Our approach to environmental management
is underpinned by our environmental values
and three key tools:
• Environmental Management System (EMS)
• Resource Consents Management System
(RCMS)
• Stakeholder Communications Strategy
The EMS sets out our minimum requirements
for environmental management across all
of our generation and administration sites.
It aims to be broadly consistent with the
AS/NZS ISO 14001 standard and has been
tailored to suit the speciﬁc nature of Genesis
Energy’s business, our particular legislative
requirements and our stakeholders’ needs.
In 2007, an independent review of Genesis
Energy’s Environmental Management System
was undertaken, benchmarking it against
internationally recognised best practice.
The ﬁndings of the review highlighted the
high level of commitment and performance
delivered by our environmental team and the
strength of our systems and tools in place to
handle non-compliance and environmental
events. The review also identiﬁed some areas
where our delivery of the EMS could
be strengthened.
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The RCMS was acknowledged as a strength
of our environmental management approach
by the EMS reviewers. The system holds all
information pertaining to resource consents,
deﬁnes prompts and monitors actions required
by resource consent conditions and reports on
the status of resource consents.
The open and transparent manner in which
we communicate with our environmental
stakeholders is another strength of our
approach. The Stakeholder Communications
Strategy formalises this approach with key
elements such as open dialogue, listening to
stakeholders, incorporating their views into our
environmental decision-making and sharing
information on our environmental effects.
This year, we have reviewed our existing
company-wide environmental management
objectives and established some new
targets to help us achieve our objectives.
These targets aim to complement our
existing site-speciﬁc targets (some of which
are reported on in the Annual Environmental
Reports for Waikaremoana and Tongariro
Power Schemes available online at
www.genesisenergy.co.nz).

MANAGING OUR
WASTE
Genesis Energy is working towards zero
waste using the principle of the waste
management hierarchy (the hierarchy of
reducing, reusing, recycling, recovering and
residual disposal of water).
To action our strategy we are developing a new
waste minimisation programme under the
auspices of the non-generation climate action
team. The programme involves launching an
education programme for all staff focused

2006/2007 WASTE
MINIMISATION PERFORMANCE

TONNES OF WASTE
TO LANDFILL PER
ANNUM

% OF RECYCLABLE WASTE
SENT TO LANDFILL
RECYCLABLE OR
COMPOSTABLE PER ANNUM

AMOUNT OF
PAPER USED (KG)

GENERATION SITES
Huntly

264

n/a

50

6,500

Tuai

*

n/a

*

220

Tokaanu

*

n/a

*

820

Greenlane

12

0.09

74

5,510

Hamilton

*

*

*

1,280

Wellington

*

*

*

410

New Plymouth

*

*

*

100

OFFICES

* NOT MEASURED DURING 2006/2007 REPORTING PERIOD

on reducing waste and operating new and
improved recycling facilities (including
composting). The programme will initially be
implemented at our Greenlane ofﬁce and at
Huntly Power Station (HPS) and then rolled
out across the company to achieve our target
of 30 per cent reduction of all ofﬁce and
generation site waste by June 2008.
Our signiﬁcant waste streams include:
• General ofﬁce waste of which paper and
card is our most signiﬁcant;
• Green waste from water intakes at HPS
and Tongariro power stations;
• Oil, solvents and other engineering wastes
at all generation sites;
• Synthetic Mineral Fibre (particularly at
HPS) used as insulation;
• Small amounts of asbestos and leadcontaminated material, and small
amounts of mercury from broken
instruments at generation sites;
• Reasonable tonnage of scrap metal
recovered from HPS; and
• Ash from coal at HPS.

OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION 2007/2008

To ensure that all
reasonable steps are
taken to manage the
adverse effets that our
activities have on the
environment

Continuously improve our
Environmental Management
System to achieve best practice

Implement appropriate
recommendations from the
Environmental Management
System Review

Hold all relevant resource consents
and successfully implement and
manage these to achieve 100 per
cent compliance

Obtain all approvals as required for
activities

All generation sites to have an
Annual Environmental Report by
June 2009

Continue to produce an Annual
Environmental Report for Tongariro
Power Scheme and Waikaremoana
Power Scheme

To mainstream
environmental
considerations into the
business

TONNES OF
WASTE/FTE PER
ANNUM

Resolve all resource consent noncompliances at Huntly

Produce an Annual Environmental
Report for the Huntly Power Station
by June 2008

ENVIRONMENTAL VALUES
• Act with integrity at all times
• Foster close relationships with the
community and stakeholders, so that
their views can be incorporated into
the environmental decision-making
• Acknowledge that our activities
affect both the environment and the
communities within which we operate
• Respect the role of tangata whenua
as kaitiaki of the natural resources
and taonga within the rohe
• Investigate to better understand the
nature of our environmental effects
and share this information with the
community and stakeholders
• Seek environmental improvements in
all aspects of our business

In the ofﬁce, paper is one of our most signiﬁcant
sources of waste. As a result, we have changed
to 100 per cent recycled content paper use for all
our ofﬁces this year. We have recycling in place to
capture scrap metal with 100 tonnes recovered
from Huntly over the year. Used IT equipment
is donated to schools in the community and
mobile phones are reused within the company.
Fluorescent tubes, oil, and a proportion of our
generic ofﬁce waste is recycled.
Audits were undertaken at Greenlane and
Huntly in early 2007 in order to establish areas
to focus on and as a baseline for measuring our
performance against our target. Over the next
year, we aim to identify a complete picture of our
waste minimisation performance by developing a
company-wide measurement system.
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MANAGING OUR
HYDRO SCHEMES
TONGARIRO POWER SCHEME
(TPS)
Genesis Energy owns and operates the TPS,
generating electricity at two power stations
using the energy of rivers and streams that
ﬂow from the mountains of the central
volcanic plateau. The scheme is located in
the headwaters of four major catchments:
Whangaehu, Whanganui, Moawhango and
Tongariro. The majority of water is sourced from
the Kaimanawa Ranges and the central North
Island volcanoes: Mt Ruapehu, Mt Tongariro
and Mt Ngauruhoe. The TPS uses a series of
lakes, canals and tunnels to bring this water
to Rangipo and Tokaanu Power Stations before
discharging the water into Lake Taupo.
The TPS is located within the Kaimanawa
Forest Park and Tongariro National Park,
both of which have high ecological values
and provide habitat for a wide range of native
species, including the nationally endangered
whio (blue duck). Design features of the TPS
have taken the location of the power scheme
into consideration. For example, Rangipo Power

REGIONAL CHALLENGE

Station in the Kaimanawa Forest Park was
constructed 63 metres underground to reduce
the footprint of effect in the Forest Park.
Signiﬁcant amounts of research and
consultation have been undertaken around the
TPS to determine the effects of the ongoing
operation of the power scheme. Where
appropriate, changes have been made to power
scheme operations, monitoring programmes
have been established or enhanced, or
mitigation undertaken. This work is ongoing.
Even though resource consents for the ongoing operation of the Tongariro Power Scheme
were made operative in December 2004, the
legal process to obtain resource consents for
the on-going operation of the Tongariro Power
Scheme continues. A tentative date for a Court
of Appeal heaing is scheduled for March 2008.

WAIKAREMOANA POWER
SCHEME (WPS)
Genesis Energy owns and operates the WPS
generating electricity using water from Lake
Waikaremoana and the Waikaretaheke River
and some of its tributaries at three power
stations: Kaitawa, Tuai and Piripaua.
Lake Waikaremoana is the primary hydro
storage lake for the WPS and water is
abstracted from Lake Waikaremoana via an
intake structure. From here water is diverted
via a series of penstocks, lakes, a natural
riverbed and a canal.
The WPS is Iocated within, and adjacent to, Te
Urewera National Park in the northern Hawke’s
Bay region. The Lake Waikaremoana area has
a high native aquatic plant species diversity and
contains the best remaining example of native
aquatic vegetation assemblages in a large, deep,
clear lake in the North Island. The lake also
contains a trout ﬁshery now considered to be of

national importance. Te Urewera National Park
area is well known for whio (blue duck), bats,
native freshwater ﬁsh, giant native land snails
and threatened plant species such as ngutukaka
(kaka beak) and Dactylanthus (wood rose).
Research and consultation has been
undertaken around the WPS to determine
the effects of the ongoing operation of
the power scheme. Where appropriate,
changes have been made to power scheme
operations, monitoring programmes have
been established or enhanced, or mitigation
undertaken. This research is ongoing.

BIODIVERSITY CHALLENGES
AND MITIGATION
Genesis Energy maintains close working
relationships with tangata whenua and
Department of Conservation to maintain the
environmental values of the National Parks
associated with the TPS and WPS.

BLUE DUCK (WHIO)
The results of this year’s blue duck monitoring
surveys show that the 2004 establishment
of increased base ﬂows of 0.5 cumecs on
the Mangatepopo and 0.3 cumecs on the
Whanganui) continues to have a very positive
effect on the resident blue duck population.
The surveys recorded the highest level of
reproduction, from the greatest number of
territory holding pairs, since detailed records
began in 1998.

BLUE DUCK EGG REMOVAL
Between 7 and 23 October 2006 the Tokaanu
Intake at Lake Rotoaira was shut-down to
install a new screen cleaner at the intake.
The shut down of the Tokaanu intake resulted in
the return of natural ﬂows to the Mangatepopo,
Whakapapa and Whanganui Rivers. Genesis
Energy carried out an Assessment of
Environmental Effects. Due to the potential
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impacts on the nesting blue duck population,
a preliminary assessment was undertaken.
The outcome of this report deemed that the
reinstatement of natural ﬂows into these
streams would not have any signiﬁcant impact
on blue duck and this position was conﬁrmed
by the Department of Conservation.
However, concern was raised by the
Department of Conservation around the
communication process between Genesis
Energy and the department: more speciﬁcally
around the limited notiﬁcation time and the
issue of who was responsible for contacting
other key stakeholders. The lack of
disseminating information resulted in some
adverse media comment. As a result, Genesis
Energy has worked with DoC to ensure that
there are clear and robust communication
processes now in place.

DIDYMO
Genesis Energy is playing an important
role in developing a coordinated interagency approach to the threat of the algae
Didymoshenia germinata establishing in the
Central North Island. Genesis Energy, together
with Fish and Game, the Department of
Conservation, the New Zealand Recreational
Canoeing Association, Tuwharetoa Maori Trust

Board and Regional and District Councils,
is part of a Regional Partner Group, set up
by Biosecurity New Zealand, to develop and
implement a Regional Didymo Action Plan.

LAHAR RESPONSE
On 18 March 2007, a catastrophic failure of the
tephra dam at the outlet of the Mt Ruapehu
crater lake sent a lahar down the Whangaehu
River. Since the 1995/1996 eruptions of Ruapehu,
Genesis Energy staff have been planning for
such an event. The actions Genesis Energy took
around the lahar event proved successful in all
three objectives the company had set for the
event: the protection of people, the environment
and physical assets (the power scheme).
Damage to Genesis Energy’s assets from the
lahar was conﬁned to the scouring out of ﬁll
material around the Mangaio Tunnel (transports
water to Lake Moawhango) and a ford crossing
the Whangaehu River. The integrity of these
structures was checked and repairs were made
at the Whangaehu Ford.

NEEDS
CLEARCUTTING

Although no effects were known to any rivers
or streams throughout the hydro scheme,
a programme of river quality testing was
undertaken to ensure this was the case.
No contamination was found in any rivers or
streams diverted by the scheme including the
Waihianoa Aqueduct.
While the lahar had a huge impact on the
Whangaehu River, there was no impact to
the environment from the actions taken by
Genesis Energy staff or by the operation of the
scheme. The lahar remained contained in the
Whangaehu River.

MOAWHANGO WILLOW REMOVAL
The successful removal of willows from a
further 1.3kms of river-bank on the Moawhango
River at Moawhango Village brings the total
area controlled to almost 3kms in the ﬁrst two
years of the control programme. Most of the
willows treated in 2006 are completely dead and
little re-infestation has occurred, transforming
treated sections of the river.

TONGARIRO TROUT MONITORING
Understanding the secrets of juvenile trout
survival in the Taupo Fishery is a critical issue for
Department of Conservation ﬁshery managers.
The challenge of unlocking this ‘black box’ is a
high-tech project that is being assisted by the
Genesis Energy Tongariro Enhancement Fund.

Jarrod Bowler water sampling on the Tongariro River.
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HYDROLOGICAL COMPLIANCE
Genesis Energy monitors waterways around
the hydro power schemes for operational and
compliance purposes. During 1 July 2006 –
1 July 2007, compliance of basic hydrometric
indicators was very good.
AVERAGE COMPLIANCE FOR MAINTENANCE OF
MINIMUM FLOWS AND LAKE LEVEL RANGES
POWER SCHEME (average)

PERCENTAGE
COMPLIANCE

Waikaremoana Power Scheme

99.98%

Tongariro Power Scheme

99.90%

For more detailed information about Genesis
Energy’s hydrometric compliance please visit
www.genesisenergy.co.nz to see the Tongarriro
and Waikaremoana Power Schemes’ Annual
Environmental Reports.
For more information on river ﬂows and lake
levels around the Tongariro Hydro Power
Scheme visit www.hydro.genesisenergy.co.nz

FLOW STATION AT
MANGATEPOPO INTAKE
The Mangatepopo Intake ﬂow monitoring site
had proved to be unreliable over time and
provided data of variable quality that did not
meet Genesis Energy’s standards for data
collection. The site has been redesigned
so that the 500L/s minimum ﬂow can be
accurately monitored. Regular readings have
shown the consented minimum is being met.

REGIONAL CHALLENGE

MANAGING HUNTLY
POWER STATION
Huntly Power Station (HPS) is New Zealand’s
largest thermal power station. It has six
units in total: four separate generating
units of 250MW utilising conventional boiler
and steam turbine technology. Each unit is
capable of burning coal, natural gas, or a
combination of the two.
In addition, the station has recently
commissioned e3p or Unit 5: a high efﬁciency
combined cycle gas turbine power plant of
400MW. Unit 6 is a 48MW open cycle gas turbine.
The operation of the Huntly Power Station
units has an acknowledged impact on the
surrounding environment and the community
in which it operates. Resource consents have
been in place since 1994 to manage these
impacts. The key environmental impacts along
with performance against resource consent
compliances are outlined below, while impacts
on the community are discussed on page 52.
The major environmental impacts that Huntly
Power Station needs to manage are climate
change (previously discussed in this report),
effects on the health of the Waikato River and
land surrounding it, and air quality for the Huntly
community and surrounds.

YELLOW PLUME EVENTS
During the commissioning of e3p,
Environment Waikato (EW) received
two complaints regarding two separate
events of a visible ‘haze’ from the unit’s
stack, which were communicated to
Genesis Energy. Stack emissions data
for the period were analysed and in both
cases Genesis Energy was shown to not
have exceeded consent limits.
Advice from Mitsubishi Heavy Industries
relates the visible emission from the
stack (the ‘haze’), to higher NO2 as a
percentage of total NOX in the exhaust
gas, compared to normal operation.
When the gas turbine is at low loads,
there is a lower combustion and exhaust
gas temperature, consequently there is
a higher concentration of NO2.

AIR QUALITY
CHALLENGES AND
MITIGATION
BOUNDARY DUST
Particulate matter (or airborne particles) can
arise from natural sources as well as from
human activity. The impact of the particulate
matter on the environment depends on a
number of chemical and physical properties.
These include colour, abrasiveness, corrosivity,
stickiness, pH, chemical composition and size.
MAXIMUM NOx CONCENTRATION
(ppm, 10-minute average)
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MONITORING EMISSONS: CEMS

HUNTLY AMBIENT AIR QUALITY – PM

CEMS is the acronym for Continuous
Emissions Monitoring Systems. The systems
referred to are systems designed to
determine the concentration and/or emission
rate of pollutants in stack gases.

CROFT TCE 01
CROFT TCE 02
CROFT TCE 03
CROFT TCE 04
CROFT TCE 05

Huntly Power Station now has ﬁve permanent
CEMS, one for each of the four original 250 MW
units and one for e3p. These CEMS are known
as dilution systems because the stack gas is
diluted with clean air as it is withdrawn from
the stack. This allows the diluted sample to
be transported from the dilution probe in the
stack, down to the analysers located in an airconditioned hut at the stack’s base, without the
loss of components we wish to measure.

CROFT TCE 06
PUKEKAPIA RD 01
PUKEKAPIA RD 02
PUKEKAPIA RD 03
PUKEKAPIA RD 04
PUKEKAPIA RD 05
PUKEKAPIA RD 06
RALPH RD 01
RALPH RD 02
RALPH RD 03
RALPH RD 04
RALPH RD 05
RALPH RD 06
I-SITE CENTRE 06
40

20

60

80

ACCEPTABLE
(33-66% OF GUIDELINE)

EXCELLENT (<10% OF GUIDELINE)

100

All ﬁve CEMS measure NOX, SO2, CO, CO2
O2, temperature and moisture and allow for
us to better assess our emissions against
resource consents, give added feedback on
plant efﬁciency, and get a more accurate
measurement of our CO2 emissions.

ALERT (66-100% OF GUIDELINE)

GOOD (10-33% OF GUIDELINE)

ACTION (>100% OF GUIDELINE)

YEAR
PARAMETER

UNITS

CONSENT LIMIT

Oxides of nitrogen

ppm (10-min average)

400ppm

Sulphur dioxide

mg/m (1-hour average)

1200 mg/m

Particulate

mg/m3

50 mg/m3

3

3

PM10 refers to particles with an aerodynamic
diameter of less than 10 microns.
Particulate matter less than 10 microns is
of particular interest from a human health
perspective as it can penetrate the
respiratory system.
Genesis Energy monitors continuous PM10
levels around Huntly. The data shows that
during 2006, more than 70 per cent of the time
PM10 levels were ‘good’ or ‘excellent’ in the
Huntly area.
We have also compared the previous ﬁve years
of data, except for the i-Site Centre monitoring
location which was set up late in 2005
approximately 800 metres to the east of the
Station. There have been some recordings of
levels in the ‘action’ category during 2006.
After investigation these appear to not be
directly related to the Station – PM10 comes
from many sources including trafﬁc, agriculture
and ﬁres. In summary, we cannot identify a
trend associated with this information.

01
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06

286

352

290

275

269

293

753

776

364

416

534

507

10

32

16

27

11

6.7

NITROGEN AND SULPHUR
DIOXIDE STACK EMISSIONS
Genesis Energy records maximum levels
(recording emissions while burning 100 per
cent coal at full load) of oxides of nitrogen (NOX),
sulphur dioxide (SO2) and particulate matter on
an annual basis. In addition, the NOX and SO2
emissions are measured on a continuous basis
by the Continuous Emission Monitoring System
(CEMS).
The table above shows the results for the last
six years of annual testing. There has been
an overall trend of improved performance
for all of the parameters tested.

NEEDS
CLEARCUTTING
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AVERAGE, MAXIMUM AND MINIMUM FLOW RATES (M3/S) AT COOLING WATER INTAKE.

The new unit – e3p – uses river water but is more efﬁcient than units 1–4 as it recycles water on
average seven times before discharging back to the Waikato River.
45
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BIODIVERSITY
CHALLENGES AND
MITIGATION
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Comparing the water quality of the groundwater
monitoring wells around the Ash Ponds for
agricultural use, i.e. livestock consumption, the
tolerance consumption concentration of boron in
water has been estimated to be between 40 and
150 milligrams per litre (mg/L) (ANZECC 2000)1.
Comparing the water quality of the groundwater
monitoring wells to boron concentrations
recommended in the ANZECC guidelines, all of
the groundwater wells had boron concentrations
below 150mg/L and the majority of the
groundwater wells were below 40mg/L.

2001-2002

2002-2003
MAX

2003-2004
AVERAGE

WATER QUALITY
CHALLENGES AND
MITIGATION
The Waikato River is a national and regional
icon holding signiﬁcant economic, social and
environmental values. On its journey, the
Waikato River churns through the turbines of
eight dams, lighting much of the North Island
and is vital to the operation of the HPS. The
speciﬁc impact the site has on the Waikato is
outlined below.

WATER TAKE AND COOLING
WATER DISCHARGE
Water is taken from the Waikato River and
used as part of the cooling process for
power stations. Water intake for 2006/2007
was compliant with our resource consent
conditions (consent limit of 40m3/s).
The average water intake was 33.5m3/s, with
the maximum intake at 40m3/s and minimum
intake at 18m3/s.
Resource consent conditions place a strict
limit on the temperature of cooling water
discharged back to the river. However, since
its commissioning in January 2006, the helper
cooling tower has resulted in up to 250MW of
unconstrained generation from one of Huntly
Units 1–4 and there has been minimal noncompliance with conditions as a result.
The new e3p plant does not rely on the
Waikato River for cooling.

2004-2005

2005-2006

2006-2007

MIN

WATER QUALITY
Genesis Energy has an ongoing water quality
programme that seeks to assess the impact of
the site’s operations on the water quality of the
Waikato. Monitoring data from 2002–2007 has
indicated that Genesis Energy has complied
with the majority of the water consent
conditions and assessment of the station’s
discharges has not indicated any potential for
adverse environmental effects.
Monitoring parameters upstream and
downstream of Huntly Power Station include
boron (found in the coal and ash), copper,
ammonia and aluminium. There are often
high levels of boron and copper in water
discharges from Huntly Power Station.
Whilst there are no limits set by resource
consents for boron or copper, the levels are
above recommended guidelines values.
The mean and maximum concentrations
of copper are high and above the ANZECC
guidelines. However the replacement of Units
1–4 tubes with copper-free material has been
approved and replacement commences on
the Unit 4 survey in 2008. We should see a
progressive decline in copper over the next
few years.

FISH HEALTH
Ambient river temperatures account for most
of the variation in ﬁsh health status. In hotter
years, ﬁsh have poorer health and their sexual
reproduction may be delayed. The thermal
discharge from HPS makes river water on the
true left bank hotter. When gonad production
was compared between 2004, 2005 and 2007, it
suggested that ambient river temperature has
a larger inﬂuence on gonad production in the
lower Waikato River than the discharge from
Huntly, which affects ﬁsh only from a relatively
small length of river.

HAKARIMATA FISHERIES
ENHANCEMENT PROJECT
The resource consent concerning the
discharge of cooling water has a number of
conditions related to researching the biology
of the Waikato River. To offset some of the
unforeseen effects from discharging cooling
water to the river, a ﬁsheries enhancement
project was introduced.
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The Hakarimata Fisheries Enhancement
Project has met the objective of consent
conditions to increase ﬁsh numbers by over
50 per cent in the streams that have been
enhanced or introduce at least two new
species of ﬁsh. This project commenced in
1996 and the objective was met 10 years
later. This objective was met through riparian
enhancement of three tributary steams of
the Waikato River all with headwaters in
the Hakarimata Ranges near Huntly and
Ngaruawahia.

PORT WAIKATO SPAWNING
HABITAT ENHANCEMENT
PROJECT
Some of our resource consents have been
altered since their granting in 1994 to better
reﬂect the effects of our activities, and a
further ﬁsheries and riparian enhancement
project has been undertaken.
The Whauwhautahi Stream is located
near Port Waikato and was chosen as a
site to undertake inanga spawning habitat
enhancement works.
We are now close to completing the ﬁrst stage
of this enhancement project. Maintenance of the
six channels and pond that were installed and
planted in early-mid 2005 has included release
and replacement of plants as necessary and
weed and pest control.
All of the plantings have established well
and are now growing strongly. The channels
and pond have recently been surveyed by a
freshwater ﬁsh biologist and shown to provide
enhanced spawning habitat for native ﬁsh.
It is expected that further improvement in the
quality of the habitat will occur as the native
wetland vegetation in the enhancement area
continues to develop.

WAAHI STREAM
The Waahi Stream is a mitigation project
that has recently been initiated to address
issues related to work not completed during
construction of Huntly Power Station. It is the
result of an agreement between Environment
Waikato, Waahi Paa and Genesis Energy
to clean up Waahi Stream. This will involve
clearing willows, riparian planting, contouring
of Waahi Paa land and will take place in
September and October 2007.

HUNTLY POWER STATION
CONSENT COMPLIANCE
The Huntly Power Station resource
consents were granted in 1994.
During the drafting of these resource
consents, some of the effects from the
station were not known or understood.
To enhance understanding of HPS‘s
environmental effects, large monitoring
programmes have been implemented.
There have been several breaches of our
resource consent conditions for the station
over the intervening years (details on the
material breaches for the 2006/2007 year
can be found in the Environment section at
www.genesisenergy.co.nz).
These breaches need to be appreciated
in light of the lack of understanding that
accompanied initial condition setting.
These breaches are ‘technical’ in nature
and no adverse effects have resulted from
them. For many of the breaches Genesis
Energy anticipates that within the next
few years we will resolve any technical
issues that have caused them. We will
apply for consent variation for those
resource consent conditions that greater
understanding of effects would suggest
are no longer best ﬁt for the environment
nor for the power station’s operation.

BEYOND COMPLIANCE:
WAIKATO RIVERCARE
The Lower Waikato River Enhancement
Society Inc (trading as ‘Waikato RiverCare’)
works with various organisations
concerned with protection of the economic,
social, cultural, and environmental values
of the Waikato River. They achieve this
through implementation of riparian habitat
restoration. Incepted in 1999, the group
is supported by a range of community
stakeholders with a common vision and
purpose. Genesis Energy was a founding
member of the organisation and continues
to be actively involved today.
The geographic area covered by the project
is north of Hamilton City along the Waikato
River (downstream) to the river mouth at
Port Waikato. Waikato RiverCare aligns
with several other environmental projects
in the area and could be considered as a
potential model for management of natural
resources. The group’s objectives are to

stabilise the banks of the Waikato River,
improve the habitat for bird and animal life
and build community ownership.
There are now 13 sites earmarked
for improvement, ranging from north
Hamilton to Port Waikato, to include
Taupiri, Meremere, Huntly, Ngaruawahia
and Hakarimata. The group has recently
completed a funding drive and now has
long-term funds to further increase
planting. Two new staff have been
employed to manage sites.

MEREMERE POWER STATION
CONSENT COMPLIANCE
The Meremere Power Station was
decommissioned during the 1990s. Prior
to 2006/2007, Genesis Energy undertook
signiﬁcant rehabilitation works on the old
ash disposal areas associated with the
Power Station. The majority of this work
occurred in 2004. Approximately 100,000m2
(10 ha) of ash surface was re-contoured and
covered with an engineer-designed clay
cap to minimise stormwater contact with
(and seepage through) the ash. The cap
effectively retains the ash, and contaminants
within the ash, on the site. The capped areas
were subsequently covered with 50mm of
topsoil and planted in grass. The area is
currently grazed by light stock.
Genesis Energy obtained resource consents
for the rehabilitation of the site.
The consents included monitoring to
understand the effectiveness of the clay cap
and imposed limits on various parameters.
There have been some breaches (details
on the material breaches for the 2006/2007
year can be found in the Environment
section at www.genesisenergy.co.nz) for
two of the resource consents held. Further
monitoring is in place to understand the
cause of the breaches.
Rehabilitation of the old Power Station
buildings continued during 2006/2007.
Specialist demolition contractors (Nikau
Contractors Ltd) were engaged to
dismantle the old boiler hall and some
ancillary buildings. A substantial amount
of scrap steel was recovered and recycled.
The old turbine hall has been retained and
recently recladded. The site is now suitable
for a range of industrial activities and has
been sublet to Nikau Contractors.

48

GENESIS ENERGY ANNUAL REPORT 2007

Clients of the Huntly Curtain Bank.
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LOCAL
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What we do not only
powers towns, but
builds and impacts
communities. Are we
making a difference
and do we need to
do more? What will
it take to operate on
a more effective
human level?

OUR NEW
CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY
STRATEGY
Making a difference to local communities and
to our people is part of our Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Strategy. Recently we
reviewed our substantial and wide-ranging
social and environmental programmes and
developed a strategic framework to guide our
CSR efforts in the future.
We believe that CSR is a challenging and
exciting journey that brings our values to
the forefront of how we behave as citizens,
employees and as a business.
We believe CSR is about more than simply
complying with legal requirements and
obligations, or making contributions to
worthy philanthropic causes. Genesis Energy
is committed to a model of CSR that looks
beyond the ﬁnancial bottom line as an
indicator of business success.
For Genesis Energy, CSR is about contributing
to economic development while behaving
ethically and improving the quality of life of
our workforce and their families, the local
communities in which we operate and to
New Zealand as a country.
We are embedding the values and practices
of CSR into the heart of our business process
and ways of operating. That is why we are
committed to:
• Open and transparent business practices
• Ethical behaviour
• Respect for stakeholder groups
• Strong performance on economic, social
and environmental issues

TO BE CLEARCUT

Our CSR programme has three focus areas:
1. Building practical ways to address the
impacts of global climate change in
New Zealand
2. Managing and reducing Genesis Energy’s
environmental footprint

PIC OF GOT PERSON
TANJA OTTAWAY ON
CD??

3. Making a positive difference in the
communities where we operate
and beyond

Tanja Ottaway working on a cancer survival project,
supported by the Genesis Oncology Trust.
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OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION 2007/2008

To respect the
social, economic and
environmental well-being
of the world around us

Genesis Energy’s CSR
practices are at best practice

Specific actions are outlined throughout
this report
Implement the Comprehensive Hello
Tomorrow CSR programme
Measure and manage our corporate community
contributions using the internationally
recognised London Benchmarking Group
Genesis Oncology Trust grants to exceed
$1 million by 2012

To engage employees
in the Corporate Social
Responsibility Strategy

Develop and offer an employee
volunteering programme

Launch the Genesis Energy employee
volunteering programme

OUR IMPACT ON THE
COMMUNITY

HUNTLY POWER STATION

TANGATA WHENUA

In 2006, Tainui began discussions with the
Crown relating to the Waikato River. A draft
agreement in principle has been created and
the Crown and Tainui are now discussing the
agreement with key stakeholders. Genesis
Energy takes water from, and discharges
water back to, the Waikato River. We support
Tainui and congratulate them on progress to
date with their settlement and look forward to
working with Tainui in the future.

Genesis Energy acknowledges that tangata
whenua have issues with how our existing
generation assets were developed and that
for many iwi, separating historical actions and
the present company that is Genesis Energy
is impossible. While this issue is a discussion
to be had between the Crown and speciﬁc iwi,
Genesis Energy as a State-Owned Enterprise
is attributed responsibility as well.
At all times, Genesis Energy seeks to respect
the role of tangata whenua as kaitiaki of the
natural resources and taonga within their
rohe. Genesis Energy is mindful that while
the company endeavours to move forward in a
positive and honest way, that we do carry some
historical baggage. Genesis Energy works hard
to develop long-term, positive relationships
with iwi through a variety of formal and
informal processes.

TAINUI’S WAIKATO RIVER CLAIM

ENGAGEMENT WITH TAINUI
Genesis Energy meets with Tainui on an ‘as
and when required’ basis with an aim to meet
every three to six months with key executive
staff. No one-on-one meetings were held in
the past ﬁnancial year, despite both parties
aiming to meet. Genesis Energy meets with
Waahi Whaanui Trust every six weeks to keep
abreast of developments in the community
and to regularly communicate to them our
activities and act on any concerns immediately.

TO BE CLEARCUT

ENGAGEMENT WITH LOCAL IWI
We aim to meet with marae neighbouring
Huntly Power Station every three months, to get
to know our neighbours and for our neighbours
to get to know us. A recent concern raised
for Te Ohaaki Marae, Hukanui Amuri Marae,
Kaitumutumu Marae and Te Kauri Marae was
trucks and road safety, following the trucks that
would transport ash for the Ash Management
Project. Genesis Energy responded to these
concerns by erecting bus shelters and bus pullover bays along Te Ohaaki and Hetherington
Roads, widening Te Ohaaki Road, installing
thresholds to reduce speed and implementing
road safety programmes.

GENESIS ENERGY’S
HYDRO ASSETS
Genesis Energy acknowledges that some iwi
view the establishment of the Tongariro Power
Scheme and Waikaremoana Power Scheme as
breaches of Treaty of Waitangi rights.
Through the re-consenting of the Tongariro
Power Scheme there has been a suite of thirdparty agreements reached with different iwi.
These agreements are designed to mitigate
the ongoing physical and cultural impact of the
Tongariro Power Scheme. These agreements
also provide a platform on which Genesis
Energy and the iwi can continue to build a
long-term relationship.
We are also looking at other areas of
common interest such as monitoring of
waterways where we can work together.
We are continuously looking to build on our
communications and relationships outside of
third party arrangements.
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OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION 2007/2008

Engage our communities
and stakeholders through
regular communication,
seeking their feedback on the
environmental and community
impacts of our activities

Continue our regular stakeholder
and community forums/meetings

Continue with appropriate
meetings and report on significant
outcomes

Gauge our stakeholders’ perceptions
of the way we do business; what are
our perceived strengths and areas
for development?

Identify appropriate opportunities
to engage with stakeholders
to gauge perceptions of our
performance

HAPU RESTORATION TRUST
Ngati Hinekura and Ngati Ruapani assert
mana whenua over Lake Waikaremoana.
In 1992 they formed the Lake Waikaremoana
Hapu Restoration Trust, which is responsible
for carrying out key ecological enhancement
projects within the Lake Waikaremoana
catchment, part of Te Urewera National Park.
For the Trust, the restoration of Kiwi population
numbers within the lake catchment is a
powerful symbol and a critical project. Genesis
Energy recognises it operates within this
special environment and therefore supports
the commitment and achievements of the Lake
Waikaremoana Hapu Restoration Trust.

OUR NEIGHBOURS
Genesis Energy acknowledges that we have
both a positive and negative impact on the
communities in which we operate our assets.
Engagement is a two-way street: helping
the community understand what we do and
why we do it both locally and nationally is
very important. We also need to understand
some of the issues and drivers for the
communities in which we operate our assets.
Genesis Energy engages with a wide variety
of community groups. This engagement is
based at both formal and informal levels.

WORKING WITH OUR NEIGHBOURS
AT HUNTLY POWER STATION
COAL STOCKPILING AT HUNTLY
WEST MINE
In January 2007, Solid Energy was granted a
new resource consent to stockpile additional
coal at West Mine. The new stockpile (termed
Stockpile C) will be constructed and operated
by Genesis Energy and will provide an additional
350,000 tonnes of stockpiled reserve.

As part of the West Mine consenting process,
a residents’ group was formed. The group now
meets quarterly (as per consent conditions).
The meetings ensure that residents are updated
on site activities and have an opportunity to
have their views heard. Meeting minutes are
distributed to the West Mine residents group.
As Solid Energy is the consent holder and
Genesis Energy leases the site, meetings are
alternatively held by Solid Energy and Genesis
Energy. Common concerns from the residents
group relate to noise, dust and lighting from
the site. Steps have been taken to minimise or
eliminate these concerns.
To ensure the impacts from increased
activities at West Mine are minimised, the coal
conveyor, which brings coal from West Mine
to the Station, has been steadily upgraded
over the past two years to reduce noise and
improve reliability. The Mine’s operation is now
compliant with District Plan noise standards.
Further work is being considered to increase
the delivery rate of the conveyor.
As part of the mitigation of the coal stockpiles,
old exotic plants have been removed and
replaced mostly with natives, with a dual aim
in mind: increase biodiversity while limiting
coal dust off site.

ASH MANAGEMENT PROJECT
AND TRUCK MOVEMENTS
Since the conversion of Huntly Power Station
from a predominantly gas-fuelled to a
predominantly coal-fuelled power station,
production of coal ash has increased to the
level where it cannot all be managed on
site. Genesis Energy was granted consent to
recover ash from the ash ponds and transport
it off site for ﬁnal disposal and use in early
2006. During the consenting process it was
anticipated that the resulting increased truck
movements would be a signiﬁcant issue for
the Huntly community. At the same time
Genesis Energy was running coal trucks due to
problems with the coal conveyor.

Discussions were held with key community
groups (maraes, council and key residents)
to identify community concerns around the
proposed activity. The key concern raised
at meetings was compromised road safety.
Genesis Energy and Waikato District Council
took a partnership approach to address
this. The council investigated road safety
improvements and drafted improved road
designs and Genesis Energy funded the works.
The ﬁnal programme of works included bus
pull-over bays, bus shelters, and road safety
training for children along Te Ohaaki and
Hetherington Roads.
In order to assess the effectiveness of the
mitigation implemented and establish any
further concerns, Te Ohaaki and Hetherington
Road residents were invited to a meeting prior
to the ash project commencing and afterwards.
No complaints have been received following
project commencement nor since then, with the
effects less than anticipated by the community.

ASH MANAGEMENT PROJECT
AND SOIL AND WATER
CONTAMINATION
A drinking water and soil sampling
programme has been conducted to address
perceived risks associated with drinking
water supplies sourced from roof-waters as
a result of the Ash Management Project.
All sampling is carried out two weeks prior to
transportation commencing, during the project
and two weeks after transportation season
ceases (October–May annually). Roof-water
samples were collected weekly and tested for
boron. Boron is an element commonly found
in ash. If boron levels were high this would
indicate that ash dust from the ash ponds was
entering roof-water. The New Zealand drinking
water guidelines set a limit of 1.4ppm for
boron in water. The boron concentrations in
the water were below this level.
Soil and grass were sampled as part of the
sampling programme at 14 locations two
monthly over ash season. No evidence of
boron contamination was found. Genesis
Energy also monitors particulate matter with
no complaints received from members of the
public around this issue.
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CONTRIBUTING TO
COMMUNITIES
Genesis Energy strives to improve the lives of
people in the communities where it operates
– whether near a generation asset or in an
area where Genesis Energy is the incumbent
energy supplier.
The company is proud of its community
partnerships that are speciﬁc to the needs of
the people in each area.

THIS YEAR, GENESIS ENERGY IS
PROUD TO BE SUPPORTING:
The Huntly Curtain Bank, a community
partnership with the Huntly Energy Efﬁciency
Trust has been developed to put curtains
in the homes of low-income families in the
Waikato area. Having thermal-lined curtains
in the home brings beneﬁts associated with
energy efﬁciency – they keep the heat in – and
therefore lowers the amount the families need
to spend on heating. The Curtain Bank has
achieved some fantastic results in the last year
with 600 donations of good-quality, secondhand curtains received from the community
and 450 sets of curtains hung in the homes of
Curtain Bank recipients.

The Turangi Health Centre was long overdue
for the people of Turangi. Previously, people
in the community have had to travel to Taupo
and further aﬁeld for health services but the
Turangi Health Centre provides high-quality
medical facilities in one central location.
The Helensville Medical Centre complex
has become a reality. The complex provides
medical and health professionals with safe and
uncongested working conditions and ensures
residents from Helensville and its surrounding
areas have access to leading medical services.
Upgrading the Wanganui Splash Centre will
provide the people of Wanganui with a highquality recreation facility. The Splash Centre
will boast two hydro-slides which will stand
approximately 11 metres high with one chute
running faster than the other for extra fun!
The Duffy Books in Homes Programme gives
students at Huntly Primary School and Huntly
West Primary School up to three books every
year to take home and keep. Genesis Energy
staff are also involved with Duffy Assemblies
three times per year where well-known
New Zealanders visit the schools to share with
students how important it is to learn to read.

CONTRIBUTIONS:
ELECTROCITY
In May we launched ElectroCity, an online
game in which players work towards a
balance of sustainable energy, city growth
and a happy population. Players have 150
turns to create a city, generate revenue, build
power generation and manage the resulting
environmental impact while keeping their
citizens happy.
The game, which is downloaded in seconds
from a website (www.electrocity.co.nz), was ﬁrst
launched to New Zealand schools along with
curriculum-matched teacher resources and a
competition designed to encourage students to
play the game.
ElectroCity was designed to complement
Genesis Energy’s other educational initiatives
such as Schoolgen. As well as being an
interesting and engaging game, it is a catalyst
for school children to learn about climate
change, different types of energy generation
and the importance of sustainability.

needs clear cutting

GM Retail Dean Carroll with winning students from
Farm Cove School in Howick.
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The game is designed for year 7 to 9
(intermediate) students. It demonstrates, in a
sophisticated and entertaining way, the decisions
and trade-offs needed to create sustainable
communities. The layered design means that it
appeals across different age-groups.

RESULT
Two months after the game was launched,
there were up to 55,000 daily visitor sessions
on the www.electrocity.co.nz site, with the
average length of a session more than 10
minutes. More than 7.7 million page views
were recorded in the ﬁrst two months and over
370 schools registered to play the game.

GENESIS
ONCOLOGY TRUST
The Genesis Oncology Trust provides grants
that support New Zealand-based initiatives that
will lead to improvements in the prevention,
detection, diagnosis or treatment of cancer, and
improvements in the palliative care of cancer
patients (hospice and home care).
The Trust is a strong supporter of professional
development. Its Professional Development
Awards allow established cancer researchers and
cancer care professionals to travel and participate
in advanced training programmes and scientiﬁc
meetings, both in New Zealand and overseas.
This year, the Trust introduced two
Professional Development Award rounds
which made it easier for grant applicants to
plan ahead. Outcomes of the ﬁrst round were

COMMUNITY CHALLENGE

announced in early May, and the results of the
main grant round which closed in late August
are announced in early December. In the April
2007 round 17 Professional Development
Awards were made. Of these, seven were for
health workers to attend conferences related
to their specialty, seven were for research
workers to participate in international
research conferences, two were for advanced
post-graduate training in palliative care
nursing and one was for advanced training in
diagnostic pathology. Additional grants in this
category will be announced in December.
Since its inception, the Genesis Oncology Trust
has conducted an annual competitive grant
round. The number, diversity and calibre of grant
applications received continue to be of a high
standard. This year we have entered our sixth
annual grant round with results to be announced
in December 2007. This year up to $500,000 will
be distributed to successful applicants. The grants
awarded cover post-graduate scholarships,
professional development awards, research
project grants and special purpose grants.
More detail of the Trust’s activities are available on
its website: www.genesisoncology.org.nz
To date the Genesis Oncology Trust has
supported:
• Seven postgraduate students
undertaking PhDs;
• 20 research projects in progress;
• 48 surgeons, doctors, nurses and
technicians who are receiving advanced,
specialist training in New Zealand and
overseas; and
• 29 special purpose projects on cancer.
The Genesis Oncology Trust has recognised the
need to further invest in cancer research and
education and with the generous support of our
many customers, we continue to grow the capital
invested to carry out this important work.
Annual contributions from our customers, along
with other donations have reached the $1 million
milestone after three years.

needs clear cutting
Professor Brian Cox and Dr Mary Jane
Sneyd, University of Otago.

Some customers asked if they can increase
their monthly donation, so they now have the
option of donating either $1, $2 or $3 via their
energy bill. The work of the Trust has been
considerably enhanced by the contribution of
our Genesis Energy customers.

NEW CANCER RESEARCH
GRANT MILKS THE BENEFITS
Is drinking plenty of milk as a child the key to
preventing bowel cancer in later life?
Associate Professor Brian Cox thinks so. He is
investigating the link between New Zealand’s
long-since-abandoned school milk programme
and the reduced risk of developing bowel
cancer among those who drank the milk.
New Zealand has the highest rate of bowel
cancer in the world. However, work by Associate
Professor Cox of the Hugh Adam Cancer
Epidemiology Unit at the University of Otago has
shown that the risk of developing bowel cancer is
signiﬁcantly reduced in men and women born in
New Zealand between 1941 and 1956.
Professor Cox is a medical epidemiologist,
a doctor who studies the health of whole
populations, and ﬁnding out why this group has
a lower incidence of bowel cancer could help
ﬁnd ways to prevent the disease. Professor Cox
believes the answer may lie in the fact that this
group of people attended school during the
period when all school children aged 7–12 years
received a free half-pint of milk each school day
(from 1937 to 1967). This hypothesis is based
on the observation that supplementing the diet
with calcium is known to reduce the occurrence
of certain types of bowel cancer, and the free
milk would have provided about 75 per cent
of the daily calcium requirement for many
children of the time.
Having made the initial link, Professor Cox and
Dr Mary Jane Sneyd now plan to investigate
further with the help of a research grant from
the Genesis Oncology Trust. They will recruit
1,000 New Zealanders aged 25 to 69 years,
some with bowel cancer and some without the
disease. Using questionnaires, all participants
will be asked about their recollections of
school milk consumption, and some other
aspects of their diet.
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TURANGI RETROFIT

which also provided 30 homes in Tuai with
essential energy efﬁciency upgrades.

OUR PEOPLE

Genesis Energy’s ﬁnancial contribution to a
community-based insulation retroﬁt project
in the Turangi district is providing 25–30
homes with essential energy efﬁciency
upgrades – absolutely free.

Genesis Energy’s contribution to the existing
Healthy Homes Turangi project has been
utilised to stretch funding from: the Energy
Efﬁciency and Conservation Authority; the
Ministry of Health; the Lakes DHB; the Local
Area Management Board; Taupo Community
Board; and Ruapehu Community Board. In
total the project will provide ‘retroﬁts’ to more
than 150 homes throughout the district.

PROVIDING A TRAINING
PATHWAY

Designed to improve energy efﬁciency and
make homes warmer, drier and healthier,
the intervention provides top-quality ceiling
insulation, underﬂoor damp-prooﬁng and
insulation, draught-stopping around doors and
where possible, hot water cylinder wraps.

GREEN RIG

The insulation measures dramatically reduce
heat loss, making it easier and more affordable
to heat homes. It’s estimated that households
will save more than $500 per year in energy
and fuel costs. Even more signiﬁcantly,
householders are also likely to notice signiﬁcant
health beneﬁts with fewer coughs, colds and
visits to the doctor being common observations
amongst project participants.

Genesis Energy has embarked on an exciting
10-year partnership with Horizons Regional
Council to be the primary sponsor of the
Green RIG (Regional Info 2 Go!).

The beneﬁts of the project rapidly spread beyond
the four walls of the house – healthy children
attend school regularly, their parents are able to
stay in employment and there are, quite simply,
shorter queues at the medical centre.

Genesis Energy recognised the Green RIG as a
new and innovative project to be involved with,
building on the important relationships the
company has with a variety of stakeholders in
the Manawatu-Wanganui region.

Genesis Energy is committed to supporting
the communities where we operate and this
initiative ﬁts with other initiatives supported by
Genesis Energy in the Turangi area, such as
the Turangi Medical Centre, and complements
other energy efﬁciency programmes supported
by Genesis Energy. These include the Huntly
Curtain Bank which distributes good-quality
used curtains to low income families in the
Waikato area, and the Tuai retroﬁt programme

Utilising a ‘hands-on’ approach, interactive
exhibits and displays, and curriculumlinked programmes, the Green RIG presents
environmental information in an engaging and
readily accessible fashion. The Green RIG’s
primary themes of WATER, LAND and HABITATS
and messages of sustainable environmental
management are key to the way Genesis Energy
manages its own operations and assets.

The Green RIG is a mobile, custom-built semitrailer and truck which takes the message of
environmental awareness and sustainability to
the Manawatu-Wanganui region.

From secondary school through to
scholarships in polytechnic preindustry courses and onto our National
Apprenticeship Programme, Genesis Energy
is looking to the future to ensure we can
maintain high levels of competent people to
run and maintain our generation assets.
At three levels of education, Genesis Energy
works with the communities and associated
industries to ensure a sustainable ﬂow of
skilled and professional employees into
our organisation.

TRAINING TARGET
One of our corporate objectives is to have
10 per cent of our workforce as trainees.
Wherever possible, we will consider offering
opportunities to people who are new to the
workforce and this includes new graduates,
apprentices, school-leavers or other people
retraining and having a career change.

Staffed by two mobile environmental educators,
the Green RIG will be travelling the roads of
the Manawatu-Wanganui region visiting towns,
schools and rural communities.

needs clear cutting

Right: Candice Tiananga – Former student trainee, Genesis Energy Huntly Power Station.
Above: Green RIG set-up.

TO BE CLEARCUT
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NATIONAL APPRENTICESHIP
PROGRAMME

Students on the WelGen course.

The electricity industry has an ageing
workforce and not enough new trainees are
coming into the industry. That means, over
time, the electricity industry is going to have a
real shortage of skilled workers.

IN 2007, GENESIS ENERGY AWARDED THE FOLLOWING PRE-INDUSTRY SCHOLARSHIPS:
Brett Whittock

National Certificate in Electrical Engineering level 2

Cameron J Chapman

Engineering Degree Electrical

Jacqueline Cassis Kelly

Bachelor of Commerce

Craig Daily

Certificate in Electrical Engineering

Daryl Hodges

National Certificate in Electrical Engineering level 2

David Waldron

Certificate in Engineering Light and Heavy Fabrication Course

Kenton Starr

Conjoint Law and Science Degree (environmental)

Lauren Roberts

Natural Resource Engineering BE (HONS)

Nicholas D Byron

Engineering Degree Mechanical

GATEWAY
Genesis Energy is part of the national Gateway
programme which looks to assist schools
to make learning relevant and to broaden
students’ options by offering them both
traditional and workplace learning.
Throughout the year where appropriate,
Genesis Energy sites host students one day a
week as part of their workplace training.
With 120–150 students going through Genesis
Energy Gateway programmes every year we
take the opportunity to promote industry and
Genesis Energy training programmes with
the view of supporting Gateway students into
industry tasting courses, industry pre-trade
scholarships and the Genesis Energy National
Apprenticeship Programme.

WELDGEN
In 2006 Genesis Energy added WeldGen to
the Gateway programme looking to promote
engineering skills while students are still
at school to increase interest in our 2008
Apprentice intake.
The purpose of WeldGen is to guide specially
selected students towards a lucrative career
in the welding industry which is suffering
shortages of trained and skilled staff long term.

To answer this future shortage, in 2004
we launched a National Apprenticeship
Programme in association with the Wellington
Technology Institute in Petone and a number
of ‘host companies’. The programme consists
of an intake of electrical, mechanical
and technical apprentices each year. The
apprentices train and work within a variety
of ‘host companies’ throughout New Zealand
selected by Genesis Energy. Their training fees
and salaries are met by Genesis Energy.

Schools involved in the WeldGen programme
include: Huntly College, Te Kauwhata College
and Ngaruawahia High School.

Starting with a four-week induction process
at one of our power stations and time with the
pre-selected host company, the apprentices
then go on to WelTec for a six-month
residential programme. They then join their
host company for on-the-job training and
assessment until the full apprenticeship is
completed at the end of three years. In years
two and three block courses are held at
WelTec in Petone.

The WeldGen programme is a course of one
day per week over 18 weeks designed to
introduce students to fabrication and prepare
them for apprenticeships in a well-paid and
challenging career.

There are currently 15 apprentices remaining
from the ﬁrst intake of 20 into the programme.
Two completed the apprenticeship programme six
months early in June/July 2007 to become trainee
plant operators at the Huntly Power Station.

The students build an electric Go-Kart which
they race on the ﬁnal day. Apart from achieving
industry unit standard credits in safety
and welding, the students develop skills in
measuring, cutting, ﬁtting, welding, steering,
ergonomics and also problem-solving.

Genesis Energy is currently looking at the
remaining apprentices who are due out of their
time in January to pick the top performers
to join our maintenance teams or go onto
engineering training pathways.

On average one to three Genesis Energy
Gateway students take up positions in the
industry tasting courses and approximately
ﬁve to 10 are successful in gaining a Genesis
Energy pre-industry scholarship.
In 2008, Genesis Energy will be looking to draw
from the pool of Gateway students with a view
to ﬁlling some of our apprenticeship positions
in the mechanical and electrical trades.

TOTAL NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
as at 30 June 2007
500
450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100
50
PERMANENT

FIXED TERM

CONTRACTORS
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OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION 2007/2008

To retain talented
staff and offer
development within
the organisation

Staff voluntary turnover of less than
5 per cent

Review and develop employee value
proposition (so that staff perceive
they receive benefits to the value of
their worth) as an ongoing action,
i.e. staff benefits, remuneration

Quantify our non-technical training spend
by June 2008

UNIVERSITY SCHOLARSHIPS

10 per cent of workforce are trainees

To have a culture
that will support
our goal of being an
employer of choice

At least 70 per cent of employees think that
Genesis Energy is a great place to work

• Engineering Scholarship at Auckland
University as above

RETAIN OUR STAFF AND OFFER
DEVELOPMENT
We pride ourselves on being a learning
organisation. What that means to us is that
our people are encouraged to take up learning
opportunities in a range of different ways.
New technologies, business change
projects and growth are the background
to an environment where people have the
opportunities to learn on the job and stretch
themselves. In addition, development comes
through support we provide with tertiary study
and formal courses. A range of programmes
developed in-house allow people to meet
others from across the company and gain

300

Female

250

Male

TOTAL EMPLOYEES BY BUSINESS UNIT
June 2007

100

50

50

ENERGY ONLINE

100

WELLINGTON

150

WAIKAREMOANA

65 PLUS

• Values-based culture.

150

TOKAANU

FEMALE

55-64 YRS

• An active and popular social club; and

200

NEW PLYMOUTH

MALE

35-54 YRS

• Development opportunities both on and off
the job;

300

HUNTLY

25-34 YRS

• A drug and alcohol-free workplace;

250

HAMILTON

UNDER 25

• Well-developed wellness programme;

200

GREENLANE

50

• Comprehensive beneﬁts including
superannuation, life insurance, trauma
and income protection insurances as well
as medical cover;

TOTAL EMPLOYEES BY LOCATION
June 2007

150

100

• Market rate salaries, benchmarked
annually;

GENERATION DEV’MENT

PERMANENT STAFF BY AGE AND GENDER
June 2007
200

understanding about the diversity of the
company. The value proposition for employees
takes a holistic view including:

FUEL DEVELOPMENT

Being an Employer of Choice is a strategic
goal for the company. It means continually
working hard to build a culture where
people enjoy their work, feel stretched
and challenged in their roles and have the
opportunitites to fulﬁl their potential.

RETENTION INITIATIVES

RETAIL

DEVELOP A CULTURE THAT WILL
SUPPORT OUR GOAL OF BEING
AN EMPLOYER OF CHOICE

Trend analysis from induction reviews and
exit interviews demonstrate a positive view
of the company

Launch a coaching programme to
better equip managers to enhance
employee performance

LEGAL SERVICES

These scholarships dovetail well with a range
of other support programmes which Genesis
Energy offer, to support skills development
in important areas, such as our Pre-Industry
Scholarships and a range of community grants
to local schools at Huntly, Tokaanu and Tuai.

Identify opportunities to employ
graduates and trainees and fill
vacancies with graduates and
trainees where appropriate

PRODUCTION

• Environmental Scholarship at Waikato
University to the value of $3,000 and open to
students in their 2nd or 3rd year

Continue implementation of
National Apprenticeship Programme

FINANCE/RISK/IS

• Engineering Scholarship at Canterbury University
to the value of $4,000 and open to students in
their 1st, 2nd or 3rd professional year

To have a diverse
workforce and meet
talent and skill
requirements

CORPORATE SERVICES

The three scholarships each year are:

Establish a process for monitoring
and reporting on training
hour spend

CORPORATE AFFAIRS

In 2007, Genesis Energy announced
scholarships at three New Zealand
universities. The objective is to encourage and
support students with their engineering and
environmental studies – both important skill
areas for the company.

Internal transfers account for 30 per cent
of vacancies filled

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

There are 19 apprentices in the programme
from the 2006 intake and they are due to
complete their apprenticeship in January 2009.
The next intake of 20 apprentices into the
programme will occur in January 2008.
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The success of these strategies is reﬂected
in the low annual turnover level (9.1 per cent)
and the number of roles ﬁlled by internal
transfer or promotion (41 per cent). Our overall
employee survey found 80 per cent agreed
Genesis Energy is a great place to work.
As the demographic characteristics of the
company’s workforce changes there is a
need for ﬂexibility in employment practices.
This is an area that will be further developed
to achieve the best outcomes for both the
organisation and its employees.

RECRUITMENT INITIATIVES
Employment branding plays a key role in the
recruitment strategy for Genesis Energy.
The employment brand reﬂects the organisation
culture and values and, as a result, attraction to
Genesis Energy as an employer of choice is high.
The use of web initiatives such as recruitment
advertising banners on various websites and
our own career website have proved successful
in attracting high-calibre candidates from
around the world. In a tight labour market
where there are shortages in some technical
areas, the innovative approaches we have
taken with career fairs, online advertising, and
targeted paper advertising have successfully
attracted the skills and talent needed.
An employer marketing strategy has included
greater engagement with schools, technical
institutes and universities. The awareness
of Genesis Energy as an employer and the
diversity of roles available in an exciting
progressive industry have been well-received
messages. This has included the introduction
of engineering and environment scholarships.

COMMUNITY CHALLENGE

OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION 2007-2008

To provide alternative
ways of working for
attraction, retention
and management
of changing
demographics

Ensure that difficult to fill jobs
(i.e. those that take longer than five
months to fill), comprise less than 20%
of total staff vacancies

Develop an alternative working
philosophy and supporting
policy guidelines

Build a score into the staff satisfaction
survey to measure success of alternative
working philosophy
Workforce diversity initiatives reflect the
diverse demographics targeted

To develop core
leadership and people
competencies that
fit with our business
and culture

Introduce and integrate new leadership
and people competencies by June 2008

• In a tight labour market being able to attract
from a wider pool including those who might
not otherwise participate in the workforce.

LEADERS
Leaders at all levels across the company
inﬂuence and shape our culture. Our in-house
Leadership Development Programme has
been running for a few years now. This year
we are looking to build on this approach by
developing coaching skills and providing more
opportunities for internal networking.

Pilot a 360 process
Run focus groups to develop
framework
Integrate framework into
Performance Management process

RETENTION, RENEWAL AND
EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT
In response to the target of undertaking an
employee survey every two years, ‘The Gauge’
survey was sent to all staff in September
2006, to which 71 per cent of staff responded.
Measures which received notably positive
responses (with a 74–80 per cent level of
agreement) include, ‘Overall this organisation
is a great place to work, ‘I intend to continue
working at this organisation for the next 12
months’, ‘I feel a sense of commitment to this
organisation’, ‘Overall I am satisﬁed with my
job’, and ‘I feel inspired to go the extra mile to
help this organisation succeed’.

needs clear cutting

During the ﬁnancial year, 135 vacancies were
ﬁlled including six roles with overseas candidates.

DIVERSITY
Genesis Energy has always sought the best
candidates for roles and, as a result, beneﬁts
from and enjoys a diverse workforce.
This diversity is requiring Genesis Energy to
focus on:
• Planning and catering for an ageing
workforce;
• Acknowledging differing needs within
our workforce;
• Managing the geographic spread of
our workforce;
• A growing demand for ﬂexible work
options for returning mothers and others;
and

2006 Leadership Development Programme.
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Areas identiﬁed which require development
include, ‘Look for opportunities to celebrate
success more’, ‘Ensure the company is
making full use of people’s skills and they
understand the career opportunities available’,
and ‘Continue to develop people’s ability to give
good feedback and coach others’.
Each quarter, Genesis Energy produces and
distributes a staff magazine, ‘illuminate’ which
tells staff about what is happening in each area of
the business. As well as promoting the corporate
values through articles in illuminate, Genesis
Energy ran a staff photo competition in November
2006 where staff submitted photographs they felt
represented the company’s values which include
Respect, Support, Imagine and Drive.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
The target of having 100 per cent of employees
with a complete set of key objectives was
achieved in 2006/2007. Objectives are reviewed
on a six-monthly basis and updated by
managers in consultation with their employees.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

TRAINING AND COUNSELLING
SERVICES

Genesis Energy has a strategic approach of
integrating a culture of health and safety
across the business. Our key performance
indicators for 2006/2007 were:

The company has a target of running a
high-quality, cost-effective in-house training
programme. This was achieved in 2006/2007
with a range of courses offered to staff including
Core Business Skills, Managing for Improved
Performance, a Leadership Development
Programme, Security Training for Front-Line
Staff, Presentation Skills and Business Writing.
The feedback rating from participants for all
these courses was at or above 80 per cent.

• Injury frequency rate 7.3 per 1,000,000
hours worked
• 28 days were lost due to work related injury.
• Absenteeism rate of 2.09 per cent
In reviewing our health and safety
performance we identiﬁed three key areas:

In accordance with the target of all staff having
access to conﬁdential counselling services,
Genesis Energy offers all permanent staff
access to an Employee Assistance Programme
which is contracted to Workplace Support.

1. Environment (engineering, tools,
equipment, machinery)
2. Practices (policies, standards and
procedures which guide behaviours)
3. People (attitudes, motivation,
professionalism, knowledge, experience
and skills)

LEADERSHIP
Genesis Energy has a commitment to
succession planning with 41 per cent of vacant
roles ﬁlled by internal candidates in 2007/2007.
The departure of two General Managers led to
the restructuring of the Executive Team, with
three new positions created and successfully
ﬁlled by internal candidates. To support the
development of the senior management
capability of the company, a senior manager
attended the London Business School
Advanced Executive Programme.

We believe we have robust policies, procedures
and processes; we have a sound maintenance
framework and the right people doing the right
thing most of the time.
To assist people further with their performance
a behavioural safety programme is being
introduced. The Zero Incident Process (ZIP) is
a process that empowers people to be able to
take control of their personal safety by giving
them insight into the way their brains work and
how they can use them more effectively to keep
themselves safe.

The Leadership Development Programme is
offered to employees who display leadership
potential. In 2006/2007 it was attended by 15
people who gave it an overall feedback rating
of 4.3 out of 5.

In acknowledging the growing pressures of the
social environment in which our employees
are exposed, a drug and alcohol programme
has been introduced that includes education,
monitoring and rehabilitation.

needs clear cutting

FATALITY

SERIOUS HARM

LOST TIME

MEDICAL
TREATMENT
BY GP
FIRST AID
TREATMENT BY
FIRST AIDER
OR SELF
TOTAL INJURY
EVENTS

Left: Our emergency team training.

60

GENESIS ENERGY ANNUAL REPORT 2007

COMMUNITY CHALLENGE

OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION 2007-2008

To eliminate or manage
hazards and workplace
practices that could
cause injury or illness to
people

Zero serious harm incidents for
the period 1 July 2007 to
30 June 2008

80 per cent attendance at monthly halfhour Safety Tool Box sessions
Undertake a number of emergency
response exercises at the generation sites
Launch ZIP behavioural safety programme
Operate a Health and Safety Committee at
each key site
Maintain ACC Tertiary Accrediation

Provide information and
educate employees on
health matters to enable
individuals and families
to make informed
choices about their
health

Wellness programme utilised by
80 per cent of staff

Roll out the enhanced Wellness
Programme

Sick leave < 3 per cent
(year-end 2007)

Encourage participation in the staff
Wellness Programme

Annual leave 8 per cent
(year-end 2007)

Encourage staff to take 20 days’ of annual
leave each year

OUR POLICY IS:
Genesis Energy is committed to creating a
drug and alcohol-free workplace to ensure the
safety, health and well-being of its employees.
This commitment supports the company values
and achieves a safer and healthier workplace.
The company has also introduced a Wellness
Programme (WellGen) which gives employees
and their families the opportunity to make
healthier lifestyle choices.
The programme includes educational
programmes around disease, nutrition,
exercise and weight management.
All employees are offered free medical checks
for high-risk health issues such as heart, lung,
hearing, eye sight and diabetes.
The programme also includes the
encouragement and support for activities such
as the Round the Bays event in Auckland and
Round Lake Taupo events.

UNIVERSITY CAREER
FAIRS
During April, May and June, Genesis Energy
took a highly visible role at the annual
student career fairs at the Universities of
Auckland, Waikato and Canterbury. Students
attending come from a wide range of
disciplines including engineering, science,
environmental studies and business.
The career fairs align with Genesis Energy’s
increasingly proactive approach to develop various
‘pipelines’ of potential recruits across a variety of
disciplines, including the national apprenticeship
programme and our university scholarships.
The career fairs attended so far have proved a big
success with hundreds of people coming to the
Genesis Energy stand.

KEVIN MAIHI
In August 2006, Kevin Maihi, a friend and
colleague to many people at the Huntly Power
Station passed away after a long illness.
Huntly Power Station was a large part of
Kevin’s life since he started working there
in 1983 as an apprentice mechanical ﬁtter.
Throughout his 23 years working at the Station,
he touched many people with his positive
attitude to life, sense of humour and vivacious
personality. He will be greatly missed.

PIP SCRIVENER
Pip Scrivener joined Genesis Energy in the
Information Services team in August 1999.
Sadly, Pip passed away in July 2007 after a
long battle with leukaemia.
Kenneth Scrivener or Pip, as he was known
(nicknamed after a character in Dickens’ Great
Expectations) emigrated to New Zealand in
1973 from the UK and met his wife Llyween
in Wellington.
A lifelong passion of Pip’s was nurtured in
Wellington where he coached the Diamond
United Soccer team. He was known for his
commitment to being ﬁt and healthy – he
ran marathons and played soccer as well as
coaching the National Under-21 and Under-16
sides. Pip coached the North Shore team and
was known there as a formidable centre back.
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PIKA HEMA - THE END
OF AN ERA
Genesis Energy recently farewelled our
longest serving employee, Pika Hema.

Pip Scrivener

Pip was diagnosed with leukaemia in
December 2003. Sadly, his wife Llyween
passed away from the same disease in August
2007. Pip is survived by his three young
children – seven-year-old twin boys and a sixyear-old girl, as well as three adult children.

Pika spent his career with Genesis Energy (in its
various forms) at the Meremere Power Station
which is located between Auckland and Huntly.
Pika’s career at Meremere spanned 48 years
and during this time he was a Labourer in the
mechanical team, worked his way up through
Operations as Auxiliary Plant Operator to Shift
Operator and ﬁnished off as Maintainer. Pika
has seen Meremere Power Station right through
its life cycle – from its construction, to when it
was operating as a 210MW plant, through to its
decommissioning subsequent deconstruction.

needs clear cutting

For us, seeing Pika leave is truly the end of an era.

62

GENESIS ENERGY ANNUAL REPORT 2007

Advanced meter installation.

INDIVIDUAL CHALLENGE

ACCESS TO
ENERGY

63

CUSTOMER
IMPACT
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INDIVIDUAL CHALLENGE

What we do is
ultimately centred
around people, on a
day-to-day basis.
Are we doing enough
to make sure people
can manage and
plan their lives in a
way New Zealand
would want?

The rising visibility of climate change
increases the need to deliver responsible
energy solutions to customers.
Genesis Energy has an array of initiatives
to enhance our services to customers and
deliver business growth while promoting
energy conservation, energy efﬁciency and
use of alternative energy sources that will
reduce carbon emissions.
The rising cost of energy has been a major
concern to all energy customers in recent
years. Genesis Energy’s approach to pricing is
to balance proﬁtability, competitiveness and
customer impact.
With 715,033 electricity and gas customer
accounts, Genesis Energy is New Zealand’s
largest retailer of electricity and gas.
As the largest retailer, Genesis Energy was,
understandably, questioned by a variety of
stakeholders over our policies and procedures
concerning customers using mains power for
medical equipment following the death of Mrs
Folole Muliaga, a Mercury Energy customer.
Genesis Energy has 901 customers registered
with us as medically dependent on mains
power. A further 401 customers have a ‘critical
code’ attached to their account details.
Genesis Energy had procedures in place to
avoid the need to disconnect these vulnerable
customers from mains power. Subsequent to
the death of Folole Muliaga, we have worked
with the Electricity Commission to develop
and implement stronger guidelines regarding
vulnerable customers.
Genesis Energy also led an industry campaign
to alert customers with a medical dependency
on power on the need to be registered with
their power companies. As a result of the
television commercial featuring Jonah Lomu,
another 100 customers were added to our
medical dependency database.

Te Awha Leevey at Huntly Power Station.
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Following this event, the Electricity
Commission released stronger guidelines
around disconnection policies. The guidelines
set out a range of requirements that must be
met before a disconnection can take place and
include:
• Regular communication to all customers
on their payment options
• Arranging debt recovery in a time-frame
that minimises hardship for the customer
• Ensuring customers enter into the most
appropriate contracts for their needs
• Providing customers the opportunity
to identify themselves as potentially
vulnerable
• Consultation with Work and Income to
assist customers unable to pay
• Visiting a customer’s home before ﬁnal
disconnection takes place

CUSTOMER
SATISFACTION
Genesis Energy strives to continually deliver
what is important to its customers. By
focusing on core areas of its retail operations
Genesis Energy is working to ensure it
continues to support the vision of ‘Making a
difference to New Zealand’.
A key customer strategy is to demonstrate
excellence in customer service
The company demonstrated excellence in
customer service with outsource partner
SITEL, winning three awards at the TUANZ
Contact Centre of the Year, namely the overall
‘Contact Centre of the Year Award’, ‘Contact
Centre Manager of the Year Award’ and
‘Outsourced Contact Centre of the Year Award’.
The selection process for the awards was in
three stages including a written submission,
a telephone interview and a site visit from
a panel of judges. The judges made their
decision based on Key Performance Indicators
and Business Process Indicators.
The key differentiator noted was the
introduction of the joint Genesis Energy and
SITEL ‘Customer Driven World’ programme
which had contributed to a change in culture
and thinking. The programme has three key
themes around which we base our interactions
with customers, including, ‘We will believe our
customers’, ‘We will listen to our staff’, and
‘We will add value’.

OBJECTIVE

TARGET

ACTION 2007/2008

To meet EC ‘Guidelines on
Arrangements to Assist Low Income
and Vulnerable Customers’, being
to reduce the number of avoidable
disconnections for non-payment by
vulnerable customers

Successful implementation
of Electricity Commission
Guidelines by 2 October 2007

Review current processes and
amend where necessary

UPGRADING THE CUSTOMER
INFORMATION SYSTEM (CIS) TO
REDUCE BUSINESS RISK AND
LEVERAGE NEW TECHNOLOGIES
The CIS upgrade will be implemented by the
end of the ﬁrst quarter 2008 and will enhance
the customer service experience people
receive from Genesis Energy. It will also greatly
enhance many retail business processes that
will increase business efﬁciency.

MINIMISING THE NUMBER OF
COMPLAINTS RECEIVED BY
THE ELECTRICITY AND GAS
COMPLAINTS COMMISSION (EGCC)
During the 2006/2007 year, Genesis Energy
received 2,174 complaints from customers.
In the same time period 1,099 complaints were
made to the EGCC, of which 11 ﬁles reached
deadlock. The company’s target was for no
more than 15 ﬁles to reach this stage.

Work closely with WINZ and
other social agencies to
assist consumers

CUSTOMER RESEARCH
A key strategy for Genesis Energy is to
increase our understanding of our customers.
This will ensure that customers’ needs are met
and exceeded which will increase customer
loyalty. At the core of our understanding is our
customer research programme.
Two of the key outputs from the research
programme include a measure of customer
satisfaction and understanding what is
important to customers, known as customer
equity analysis. Customer Equity analysis
seeks to understand what is important to a
customer (and ultimately what makes them
more loyal) and then rates Genesis Energy on
each of these factors. The customer equity
score complements the customer satisfaction
measure because it helps identify speciﬁc
things that affect customer satisfaction
therefore helping us to focus on the most
important things. Examples of customer equity
factors are: customer service, competitive
prices, company reputation, feeling rewarded
and energy efﬁciency advice.
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In line with these guidelines, Genesis Energy
will be enhancing its disconnection process
which will give customers more opportunities
to engage with the company to make payment
arrangements, including being referred to
Work and Income.
Other changes being implemented include
more detailed information in the new customer
‘Welcome Pack’ which gives details about medical
dependency and asks customers to advise the
company if they match the criteria. No customer
who has registered as medically dependent will
have electricity to their home disconnected.
Messages on the company’s website, in the
customer newsletter and through television
advertising have emphasised the need for
customers who are dependent on medical
equipment to advise their electricity retailer.
Genesis Energy took this event as an
opportunity to examine other practices in
dealing with vulnerable customers and has
changed its credit policy, increasing the
amount of debt customers can incur before
entering the credit management cycle.

MARKETING
COMMUNICATIONS
In order to maintain a high standard of
communication between Genesis Energy and
its customers, the company complies with legal
and industry requirements including those set
out under the Fair Trading Act, the Privacy Act
and the Electricity Code of Practice.
To ensure marketing communications are of a
consistently high standard, all written material
is taken through a rigorous internal sign off
process. The process ensures all customer
communications obtain approval from Legal,
Public Affairs and Customer Care teams as
well as managerial approval from the Sales
and Marketing team before the material
proceeds to the printing stage. This process
ensures customer communications align with
Genesis Energy’s corporate brand, are of a
high written standard and are not in breach of
any laws or codes of compliance.
Genesis Energy legal counsel host compliance
training workshops on an annual basis to
ensure staff are familiar with the company’s
legal obligations when developing customer
communication campaigns.

INDIVIDUAL CHALLENGE

NON-COMPLIANCE
In October 2006, Genesis Energy subsidiary,
Energy Online, pleaded guilty to a Commerce
Commission prosecution under the Fair
Trading Act. In October 2006, Genesis Energy
subsidiary, Energy Online, pleaded guilty to a
Commerce Commission prosecution under the
Fair Trading Act.
Energy Online had guaranteed customers
in a Price Freeze promotion launched in
2003 that the energy portion of customers’
electricity bills would be frozen. Energy Online
accepted that the promotional offer was
likely to be confusing for some customers
and that subsequent price changes for those
customers may have been inappropriate.
Approximately 4,800 customers in the Hawke’s
Bay and Waitemata regions were refunded the
amount of the price increases.

GET SMART
Genesis Energy is aiming to give customers
the freedom to manage their electricity
consumption. The company is working
towards installing ‘Advanced Meters’ in the
homes and businesses of its customers.
Advanced metering technology eliminates the
need for physical meter readings which will
remove barriers to a seamless billing cycle
currently faced by the company.
Advanced meters have the potential to
revolutionise the way Genesis Energy interacts
with its customers, by educating them about
peak and off-peak pricing and how modifying
consumption habits can lead to savings and
better electricity management for the country.
Tenders for the supply of advanced meters for
all households are being evaluated.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the financial statements of Genesis Power Limited (trading
as Genesis Energy) for the year ending 30 June 2007. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors:

BRIAN CORBAN QSO Chairman
27 August 2007

MIKE WILLIAMS Deputy Chairman
27 August 2007

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (for the year ended 30 June 2007)
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Group 2006

Group 2007

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$000s

Operating Revenue

1,773,674

1,986,665

1,682,506

1,898,159

1

Operating Expenses

(1,668,439)

(1,844,762)

(1,583,088)

(1,771,252)

2

Operating Surplus before Income Tax

105,235

141,903

99,418

126,907

Less Income Tax

(43,950)

(58,173)

(42,132)

(53,484)

NET SURPLUS

61,285

83,730

57,286

73,423

61,285

83,730

57,286

73,423

61,285

83,730

57,286

73,423

1,453,228

1,369,556

1,382,743

1,309,378

61,285

83,730

57,286

73,423

Comprising:
Operating Surplus from Continuing Activities

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY (for the year ended 30 June 2007)

OPENING EQUITY

$000s

Net Surplus
Movement in Asset Revaluation Reserve

(22)

TOTAL RECOGNISED REVENUES AND EXPENSES

61,263

Dividends Paid

(9,600)

EQUITY AT END OF YEAR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (as at 30 June 2007)

3

1,504,891

(58)
83,672
-

(22)
57,264

(58)
73,365

(9,600)

-

4

1,453,228

1,430,407

1,382,743

13

$000s

ASSETS
Current Assets

328,220

297,013

426,375

327,076

5

Non-Current Assets – Other

229,908

217,913

124,824

139,496

6

1,624,562

1,526,589

1,582,103

1,525,690

9

2,182,690

2,041,515

2,133,302

1,992,262

Current Liabilities

266,234

275,493

296,831

308,585

10

Non-Current Liabilities – Other

381,003

284,852

388,147

284,852

11

30,562

27,942

17,917

16,082

3

677,799

588,287

702,895

609,519

1,504,891

1,453,228

1,430,407

1,382,743

2,182,690

2,041,515

2,133,302

1,992,262

Non-Current Assets – Property, Plant and Equipment
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Non-Current Liabilities – Deferred Taxation
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

The above statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying statement of accounting policies and notes to the ﬁnancial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (for the year ended 30 June 2007)
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$000s

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:
Receipts from Customers
Interest Received
Taxation Credits

Cash was applied to:
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees
Interest Paid
Taxation Paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1,772,956

1,958,321

1,692,114

1,870,810

3,248

1,745

4,977

1,655

1,196

7,067

1,495

6,979

1,777,400

1,967,133

1,698,586

1,879,444

1,575,674

1,693,713

1,503,116

1,632,513

48,074

41,312

45,578

39,171

770

1,789

706

899

52,665

50,926

49,939

48,358

1,677,183

1,787,740

1,599,339

1,720,941

100,217

179,393

99,247

158,503

69

87

69

75

3,817

3,255

-

-

18

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Principal Repayments of Finance Lease
Advances and Loans Repaid

-

112

-

112

Proceeds from Disposal of Subsidiaries (2004)

-

21,000

-

-

Net Advances and Loans from Subsidiaries

-

-

-

6,961

3,886

24,454

69

7,148

Cash was applied to:
Gas Exploration and Development
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Capitalised Interest
Net Advances and Loans to Subsidiaries

NET CASH TO INVESTING ACTIVITIES

28,085

19,032

-

-

138,056

218,548

96,359

218,314

24,904

19,685

24,904

19,685

-

-

68,661

-

191,045

257,265

189,924

237,999

(187,159)

(232,811)

(189,855)

(230,851)

95,650

73,100

95,650

73,100

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:
Proceeds from Borrowings
Finance Lease

2,135

-

2,135

-

97,785

73,100

97,785

73,100

-

18,238

-

-

9,600

-

9,600

-

9,600

18,238

9,600

-

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

88,185

54,862

88,185

73,100

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HELD

1,243

1,444

(2,423)

Cash at Beginning of Year

9,609

8,165

7,697

6,945

CASH AT END OF YEAR

10,852

9,609

5,274

7,697

10,852

9,609

5,274

7,697

10,852

9,609

5,274

7,697

Cash was applied to:
Repayment of Principal on Borrowings
Dividends Paid

Composition of Cash:
Cash

4

752

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying statement of accounting policies and notes to the ﬁnancial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007)
These ﬁnancial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 1993, the Financial Reporting Act
1993 and the State-Owned Enterprises Act 1986.
REPORTING ENTITY
The Parent Company’s ﬁnancial statements are
for Genesis Power Limited (‘the Company’) as
a separate entity and the consolidated ﬁnancial
statements are for the Genesis Power Limited
Group (‘the Group’), which includes the Company
and all its subsidiaries. The signiﬁcant subsidiaries
are disclosed in Note 7.
CONSTITUTION, OWNERSHIP AND ACTIVITIES
The Company was incorporated and became a
state-owned enterprise on 16 December 1998
pursuant to the State-Owned Enterprises Act 1986.
The Company is wholly owned by Her Majesty the
Queen in Right of New Zealand (‘the Crown’).
The Group’s core business is the generation,
trading and retailing of energy in New Zealand.
GENERAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The general accounting policies recognised as
appropriate for the measurement and reporting of
results, cash ﬂows and ﬁnancial position under the
historical cost method have been followed in the
preparation of these ﬁnancial statements, with the
exception of Property, Plant and Equipment which
have been revalued.
PARTICULAR ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following particular accounting policies, which
signiﬁcantly affect the measurement of ﬁnancial
performance, ﬁnancial position and cash ﬂows,
have been applied:
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements are prepared
from the ﬁnancial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries, using the purchase method.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the Statement of
Financial Performance from the date of acquisition
or up to the date of disposal.
All transactions between Group companies are
eliminated on consolidation.
GOODWILL
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase
consideration over the fair value of the net tangible
and identiﬁable intangible assets on the acquisition
of a business or an equity interest in a subsidiary.
Goodwill is amortised on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the period of expected beneﬁts or 20
years. The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed
annually for impairment.
SUBSIDIARIES
Subsidiaries are those entities in which the
Company or another Group subsidiary holds a
controlling interest.

JOINT VENTURES
Joint ventures are arrangements with other
parties in which the Group has several liability in
respect of costs and liabilities, and shares in any
resulting output. The Group’s share of the assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses of joint ventures is
recognised in the ﬁnancial statements on a line by line
basis using the proportional consolidation method.
INVESTMENTS (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost.
Where the carrying value of the investment exceeds
the recoverable amount, the investment is written
down to its recoverable amount.
TRADING REVENUE
Revenue shown in the Statement of Financial
Performance comprises the amounts received
and receivable by the Group for electricity, gas and
energy-related services supplied to customers in
the ordinary course of business.
TAXATION
The Group follows the liability method of accounting
for deferred taxation on a comprehensive basis.
Future taxation beneﬁts attributable to timing
differences or losses carried forward are recognised
in the ﬁnancial statements only where there is virtual
certainty that the beneﬁts will be utilised by the Group.
Deferred income taxation is determined using taxation
rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income taxation asset is
realised or the liability is settled.
The taxation charge against the net surplus for the
year is the estimated liability in respect of that net
surplus after allowance for permanent differences.
GOODS AND SERVICES TAX
The Statement of Financial Performance and
Statement of Cash Flows have been prepared so
that all components are stated exclusive of GST.
All items in the Statement of Financial Position are
stated net of GST, with the exception of receivables
and payables, which include GST.
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable are stated at estimated
realisable value, after providing for debts where
collection is doubtful.
INVENTORIES
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on an average
cost basis.
DISTINCTION BETWEEN CAPITAL AND
REVENUE EXPENDITURE
Capital expenditure is deﬁned as all expenditure on
the purchase or creation of new property, plant and
equipment, and any expenditure, which results in a
signiﬁcant improvement to the original functionality
of an existing asset.
Revenue expenditure is deﬁned as expenditure that

restores an asset to its original operating capability
and all expenditure incurred in maintaining assets
used in operating the business.
RESOURCE CONSENTS
Costs incurred in obtaining a resource consent
are capitalised and recognised as a non-current
asset. These costs are amortised over the life of the
consent on a straight-line basis.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
All property, plant and equipment is initially
recorded at cost.
The cost of purchased property, plant and
equipment is the value of the consideration given
to acquire the assets and the value of other directly
attributable costs which have been incurred in
bringing the assets to the location and condition
necessary for their intended service.
The cost of assets constructed by the Group,
including capital work in progress, is the cost of all
materials used in construction, direct labour costs
of construction, resource consent costs, and an
appropriate proportion of applicable variable and
ﬁxed overheads. Financing costs on capital work
in progress are capitalised at the speciﬁc project
ﬁnance interest rate during the construction
period. Costs cease to be capitalised as soon as
the asset is commissioned.
REVALUATIONS
Generation assets are revalued to fair value as
determined by an independent registered valuer on a
periodic basis, not exceeding ﬁve years. Fair value is
determined using a discounted cash ﬂow model.
Any revaluation surplus arising on the revaluation
of a class of property, plant and equipment is
transferred directly to the asset revaluation reserve.
A revaluation deﬁcit in excess of the asset revaluation
reserve balance for the class of property, plant and
equipment is realised in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the period it arises.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is
disposed of, any gain or loss is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance.
LEASED ASSETS
LESSEE

The Group leases certain plant, equipment, land
and buildings. Leases under which the Group
assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership have been classiﬁed as
ﬁnance leases and are capitalised. All other leases
are classiﬁed as operating leases. The asset and
corresponding liability are recorded at inception of a
ﬁnance lease at the fair value of the leased asset, at
amounts equivalent to the value of minimum lease
payments, including residual values.
The cost of improvements to leasehold property is
capitalised and amortised over the estimated useful
life of the improvements, or over the unexpired
portion of the lease, whichever is shorter.
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Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over their
expected lives in accordance with rates adopted for
other similar asset categories.
Operating lease payments are representative of the
pattern of beneﬁts derived from the leased assets
and accordingly are charged to the Statement of
Financial Performance as incurred.
LESSOR

The Group leases certain plant and equipment to
others under ﬁnance lease arrangements.
Finance leases receivable are recorded in the
Statement of Financial Position at present value.
Periodic lease receipts are allocated between the
receivable and interest revenue on a yield-tomaturity basis.
DEPRECIATION
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
other than freehold land, is charged on a straightline basis so as to apportion the cost of the assets
less their estimated residual value over their
expected remaining useful lives.
ESTIMATED USEFUL LIFE
Generation Assets

10-50 years

Improvements

10-50 years

Other Freehold Buildings

10-50 years

Other Plant and Equipment
Leased Plant

3-15 years
20 years

PROVISION FOR MITIGATION COSTS
A provision for mitigation costs is recognised when
the Group has a legal or constructive obligation. The
provision is based upon contractual commitments
over the shorter of the contract period or the
life of the resource consent. The provision is
stated at the present value of the future net cash
outﬂows expected to be incurred. The provision is
reassessed at each balance date. Changes in the
present value of cash ﬂow estimates are recognised
as interest charges in the Statement of Financial
Performance. The provision is reduced by actual
expenditure incurred.
PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION
A provision for rehabilitation is recognised when
the Group has a legal obligation or has publicly
announced its intended rehabilitation policy for a
particular site. The provision is based on independent
engineering advice as to the appropriate action
to rehabilitate each site. The provision is stated at
the present value of the future net cash outﬂows
expected to be incurred, and is reassessed at each
balance date. Changes in the present value of cash
ﬂow estimates are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance with the provision being
reduced by expenditure incurred for site restoration.
LOANS
Loans in existence at 1 April 1999 were revalued
to fair value in accordance with the review of the

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

net assets acquired at 1 April 1999. New loans
obtained since 1 April 1999 are stated at face value
less non-amortised discounts, premiums and
prepaid interest.
Discounts, premiums and prepaid interest and
borrowing costs such as origination, commitment
and transaction fees are amortised to interest
expense on a yield-to-maturity basis over the
period of the borrowing.
FOREIGN CURRENCIES
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at
the exchange rates in effect at the date of the
transaction, except where hedging contracts are
taken out to cover short-term foreign currency
commitments, in which case the transaction is
translated at the rate contained in the hedging
contract.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
a foreign currency are translated at the rates of
exchange ruling at balance date.
Exchange differences on translation are taken to
the Statement of Financial Performance.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group has entered into transactions using
ﬁnancial instruments within predetermined policies
and limits in order to reduce risks from carrying out
its ongoing business.
TREASURY

The Group enters into various ﬁnancial instruments
to reduce its exposure to ﬂuctuations in foreign
exchange rates and interest rates. The instruments
are accounted for on the same basis as the
underlying position being hedged.
ENERGY CONTRACTS

The Group enters into ﬁnancial instruments to
manage its exposure to price ﬂuctuations on the
electricity spot market. The contract settlements
are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the same period in which the
purchase or sale of electricity occurs.
GAS OPERATIONS
MINING LICENCE

The acquisition costs of a mining licence are capitalised.
The licence costs of successful efforts are amortised
over the estimated life of the ﬁeld based on the unit of
production depletion method, commencing from the
ﬁrst year of commercial production from that ﬁeld.
Licence costs are reviewed annually for impairment.
Any impairment in value is taken to the Statement of
Financial Performance.
EXPLORATION EXPENDITURE

Exploration costs, including geological and
geophysical costs and costs of carrying unproved
properties, are included in the Statement of
Financial Performance.
Exploratory drilling costs are capitalised initially;
however, if it is found that an exploratory well did

not ﬁnd proved reserves, such capitalised costs are
charged to the Statement of Financial Performance,
as dry hole costs at that time.
The exploratory drilling costs of successful efforts
are amortised over the estimated life of the ﬁeld
based on the unit of production depletion method,
commencing from the ﬁrst year of commercial
production from that ﬁeld.
Exploration expenditure is reviewed annually for
impairment. Any impairment in value is taken to the
Statement of Financial Performance.
DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

Development costs are capitalised.
The development costs of successful efforts are
amortised over the estimated life of the ﬁeld
based on the units of production depletion method,
commencing from the ﬁrst year that a completed
development enters commercial production.
Development expenditure is reviewed annually for
impairment. Any impairment in value is taken to the
Statement of Financial Performance.
OIL OPTIONS

The Group enters into ﬁnancial instruments to
manage its exposure to price ﬂuctuations on
the oil spot market. The contract settlements
are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance in the same period in which the sale
of oil occurs. The premium paid is amortised over
the period of the options.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
The following are the deﬁnitions of the terms used
in the Statement of Cash Flows:
• cash is considered to be cash on hand and current
accounts in banks, net of bank overdrafts;
• investing activities are those activities relating
to the acquisition, holding and disposal of noncurrent assets and of investments;
• ﬁnancing activities are those activities that result
in changes in the size and composition of the
capital structure of the Group. This includes both
equity and debt not falling within the deﬁnition of
cash; and
• operating activities include all transactions and
other events that are not investing or ﬁnancing
activities.
Advances and loans to/from subsidiaries are stated
net in the Statement of Cash Flows because in
practice they are treated this way.
COMPARATIVE INFORMATION
Comparative information has been reclassiﬁed,
where necessary, to achieve consistency in
disclosure with the current year.
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
There have been no signiﬁcant changes in
accounting policies during the current year.
Accounting policies have been applied on a basis
consistent with prior year.
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Group 2006

Group 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. OPERATING REVENUE

TRADING REVENUE
Electricity
Gas

$000s
1,569,496

1,808,973

1,485,396

1,734,216

146,069

118,306

146,069

118,306

7,814

7,971

-

-

46,187

44,000

46,040

43,935

3,248

1,745

2,874

1,655

-

-

2,103

-

24

47

24

47

Finance Lease
Other
INVESTMENT REVENUE
Interest Received
Interest Received from Subsidiaries
OTHER REVENUE
Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Gain on Consolidation of Joint Venture

836

5,623

-

-

1,773,674

1,986,665

1,682,506

1,898,159

7

2. OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING EXPENSES INCLUDE:

$000s

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Generation Assets

38,775

39,341

38,775

39,341

Freehold Buildings

32

19

32

19

Improvements

80

69

80

69

14,063

11,800

13,813

11,558

-

-

-

-

52,950

51,229

52,700

50,987

Other Plant and Equipment
Leased Plant

Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

2,740

172

2,706

170

Amortisation of Investments

4,153

4,160

-

-

Amortisation of Goodwill

16,817

16,818

16,391

16,392

Amortisation of Intangibles

1,306

281

1,306

281

Operating Lease Expenses

6,004

4,153

4,851

3,913

Net Foreign Exchange (Gains)/Losses

1,005

32

Bad Debts Written Off

4,172

9,018

Increase/(Decrease) in Doubtful Debts Provision
Interest and Other Financing Costs

867

(5,144)

(2)
4,155
599

32
8,592
(5,129)

1,396

2,535

1,396

1,646

333

315

333

315

216

214

216

214

59

60

59

60

Donations

360

1,056

360

1,056

Sponsorship

183

1,919

183

1,919

Directors’ Fees
Auditor’s Fees
Audit Fees
Other Assurance Services

8

3. INCOME TAX

Operating Surplus before Income Tax

105,235

141,903

99,418

126,907

38,774

35,411

35,077

36,189

144,009

177,314

134,495

163,096

47,522

58,512

44,384

53,821

Tax at 33%
Prior Year Adjustments

307

(339)
-

311
(2,563)

(337)

Change in Corporate Tax Rate

(3,879)

-

TAX EXPENSE

43,950

58,173

42,132

53,484

31,451

49,603

30,862

46,967

Comprising:
Current Year Tax Provision
Underestimation in Prior Year

307

Movement in Deferred Income Tax Liability

16,071

Change in Corporate Tax Rate

(3,879)

TAX EXPENSE

(339)
8,909
-

311
13,522
(2,563)

(337)
6,854
-

43,950

58,173

42,132

53,484

Opening Balance

27,942

17,435

16,082

7,821

Movement in Current Year

16,071

8,909

13,522

6,854

Change in Corporate Tax Rate

(3,879)

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

Prior Year Adjustments

-

(2,563)

-

(9,572)

1,598

(9,124)

1,407

30,562

27,942

17,917

16,082

210,326

170,103

196,461

157,805

CLOSING BALANCE
IMPUTATION CREDIT ACCOUNT
Imputation Credits at Start of Year
Prior Year Adjustment

(1,129)

(2,668)

(1,129)

(1,665)

Income Tax Paid

52,665

50,926

49,939

48,358

-

60

-

58

Withholding Tax Paid
Use of Money Interest

-

Distributed and Disposed
IMPUTATION CREDITS AT END OF YEAR

(4,728)
257,134

284
(8,379)
210,326

(4,728)

284
(8,379)

240,543

196,461

On 17 May 2007 a bill was introduced to Parliament that changed the corporate tax rate to 30% with effect from 1 July 2008.
The deferred tax liability has been recalculated to reﬂect the portion that is likely to be realised at the new rate.
4. DIVIDENDS

Current Year Interim Dividend Paid
TOTAL DIVIDENDS PAID
The dividends are fully imputed.

$000s
9,600

-

9,600

-

9,600

-

9,600

-

notes

Parent 2006

$000s

Permanent Differences
EARNINGS SUBJECT TO TAX
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5. CURRENT ASSETS
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Parent 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

$000s

Cash

10,852

9,609

5,274

7,697

190,445

201,735

176,193

192,185

-

-

126,417

49,845

Taxation Receivable

23,243

13,163

23,735

13,209

Prepayments

11,427

12,752

11,295

12,518

Inventory – Fuel Stocks

77,367

46,781

77,367

46,781

5,995

4,654

5,835

4,494

260

348

259

347

Accounts Receivable
Inter-company Receivables

Inventory – Consumable Spares
Other Current Assets
Current Portion Finance Lease Receivable
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

8,631

7,971

-

-

328,220

297,013

426,375

327,076

17

6, 7

The interest rate for cash ranges from 0.0% to 7.46% per annum (2006: 0.3% to 6.9%).
6. NON-CURRENT ASSETS

$000s

Mining Licence

16,518

16,518

-

-

Development Expenditure

47,108

19,479

-

-

Exploration Expenditure

20,910

20,454

-

-

-

147

-

-

47,994

56,624

-

-

5, 7

-

-

29,753

37,538

7

Non-Current Mining Stores
Non-Current Finance Lease Receivable
Investments – Unlisted Subsidiaries
Investments – Other

125

125

125

125

85,782

102,599

83,475

99,866

Other – Intangibles

4,327

1,967

4,327

1,967

Options

7,144

-

7,144

-

229,908

217,913

124,824

139,496

Goodwill

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

7. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

JOINT VENTURES
KUPE JOINT VENTURE

SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES COMPRISE:
NAME OF ENTITY

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Genesis Power
Investments Limited

Holding Company for Kupe Holdings Limited

100%

Energy Online Limited

Energy Retailer

100%

Kupe Holdings Limited

Holding Company for Kupe Joint Venture Investment

100%

Kinleith Cogeneration
Limited

Special Purpose Finance Company

100%

GP No. 1 Limited

Holding Company for Gasbridge Joint Venture Investment

100%

GP No. 2 Limited

Holding Company for Kupe Joint Venture Investment

100%

GP No. 5 Limited

Holding Company for Kupe Joint Venture Investment

100%

Cardiff No. 1 Limited

Holding Company for Cardiff Joint Venture Investment

100%

Cardiff No. 2 Limited

Holding Company for Cardiff Joint Venture Investment

100%

All subsidiary companies have a 30 June balance date.

8

INTEREST HELD
BY GROUP

The Group has a 31 per cent interest in the
Kupe Joint Venture, formed for the purpose of
the exploration and, in the event of a discovery,
development of the Kupe (PML38146) gas
and condensate ﬁeld. The Kupe Joint Venture
partners committed to proceed with the
development of the ﬁeld on 29 June 2006.
Under the arrangement, costs are shared in
proportion to the respective interest held.
On 29 June 2006, GP No. 2 Limited, a subsidiary
company holding an 11 per cent non-participating
interest in the Kupe Joint Venture, agreed to
participate in the activities, assets and liabilities
of the joint venture. This decision resulted in a
net gain on consolidation of the joint venture of
$0.8 million (2006: $5.6 million).
Also included in the Group’s results is an
operating loss of $0.6 million (2006: Operating
proﬁt $0.07 million) for the year, which primarily
comprises foreign exchange conversion

CARDIFF JOINT VENTURE

The Group has a 40 per cent interest in respect
of the Deep petroleum rights in Petroleum
Exploration Permit 38738. The Group has the
right to purchase 100 per cent of the Deep gas
reserves. No capital commitment remains at
30 June 2007 (2006: $Nil).

Cardiff Joint Venture has a 31 December
balance date.

Kinleith Cogeneration Limited owns a
cogeneration plant at Kinleith which it leases
under a ﬁnance lease arrangement. The gross
investment in the lease at 30 June 2007 is $86.9
million (2006: $100.3 million) with unearned
income totalling $30.3 million (2006: $35.7
million), resulting in a net investment position of
$56.6 million (2006: $64.6 million).

GASBRIDGE JOINT VENTURE

In October 2006, GP No. 1 Limited acquired a 50
per cent interest in the Gasbridge Joint Venture.
The Gasbridge Joint Venture is investigating
the feasibility of developing facilities to import
Liquiﬁed Natural Gas at the Port of Taranaki.

Group 2007

Included in the Group’s results is an operating
proﬁt of $0.01 million (2006: Operating loss

Included in the Group’s results is an operating
loss of $0.9 million which reﬂects the ongoing
operations of the joint venture.
KINLEITH FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE

notes

Kupe Joint Venture has a 31 December
balance date.

of $0.012 million) for the year, which reﬂects
administration and exploration activities by the
venture. Development of the Cardiff No.2 Field is
yet to commence.

Parent 2006

differences, partly offset by investment revenues
earned by the joint venture.
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8. GOODWILL

$000s
Goodwill (gross) at Beginning of Year

181,508

181,508

177,249

177,249

Accumulated Amortisation at Beginning of Year

(78,909)

(62,091)

(77,383)

(60,991)

Unamortised Balance at Beginning of Year

102,599

119,417

99,866

116,258

Current Year Amortisation

(16,817)

(16,818)

(16,391)

(16,392)

85,782

102,599

83,475

99,866

Goodwill (gross)

181,508

181,508

177,249

177,249

Accumulated Amortisation

(95,726)

(78,909)

(93,774)

(77,383)

85,782

102,599

83,475

99,866

UNAMORTISED BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

2

Comprising:

6

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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$000s

GENERATION ASSETS
Cost
Valuation

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
NET BOOK VALUE

1,248,212

726,300

1,248,212

726,300

330,638

330,660

330,638

330,660

1,578,850

1,056,960

1,578,850

1,056,960

(76,423)

(37,521)

(76,423)

(37,521)

1,502,427

1,019,439

1,502,427

1,019,439

6,229

5,784

6,229

5,784

OTHER FREEHOLD LAND AND IMPROVEMENTS
Cost
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
NET BOOK VALUE

(584)

(313)

(584)

(313)

5,645

5,471

5,645

5,471

1,480

957

1,480

957

OTHER FREEHOLD BUILDINGS
Cost
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
BOOK VALUE

(224)
1,256

(90)
867

(224)
1,256

(90)
867

OTHER PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Cost
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
NET BOOK VALUE

93,672

75,799

91,853

74,340

(60,577)

(49,213)

(59,767)

(48,653)

33,095

26,586

32,086

25,687

2,676

-

2,676

-

-

-

-

-

2,676

-

2,676

-

79,463

474,226

38,013

474,226

1,431,732

1,283,066

1,388,463

1,281,607

330,638

330,660

330,638

330,660

1,762,370

1,613,726

1,719,101

1,612,267

LEASED PLANT
Cost
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
NET BOOK VALUE

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Cost
Valuation

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
TOTAL NET BOOK VALUE
LATEST RATEABLE VALUE OF FREEHOLD LAND

(137,808)

(87,137)

(136,998)

(86,577)

1,624,562

1,526,589

1,582,103

1,525,690

5,927

5,927

5,927

5,927

VALUATION INFORMATION

CAPITALISED INTEREST

All existing generation assets were revalued to a fair value of $1,056
million at 30 June 2005, including capital works in progress amounting to
$37.2 million. This was a Directors’ valuation based on an independent
review of future cash ﬂows. The independent review was carried out by
First NZ Capital.

During the past two ﬁnancial years Genesis Power Limited has constructed
various plant and equipment. Finance costs that are directly attributable
to the cost of an asset are included in the initial cost. The ﬁnance costs
capitalised during the year to 30 June 2007 amounted to $24.9 million
(2006: $19.7 million), of which $0.7 million (2006: $18.8 million) was
capitalised to capital work in progress, $22.6 million (2006: $0.9 million)
was capitalised to generation assets and $1.6 million (2006: $Nil) was
capitalised to intangible assets.

As a consequence of the revaluation, accumulated depreciation on revalued
assets was reset to nil at 30 June 2005. Depreciation resumed as normal
from that date and the current year’s depreciation charge on the revaluation
amounted to $9.3 million (2006: $10.5 million).

10. CURRENT LIABILITIES

notes

Parent 2006

Parent 2007
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$000s

Accounts Payable

10,727

4,417

3,887

1,169

Accrued Liabilities

192,635

205,244

178,897

192,682

3,413

3,780

3,323

3,721

Employee Entitlements
Inter-company Payables

-

-

51,853

49,348

Other Current Liabilities

16,249

17,824

15,661

17,437

Electricity Hedge Contracts Due Within One Year

-

Loans Repayable Within One Year

38,642

Provisions Due Within One Year
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
11. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

(55)
39,000

38,642

17

(55)
39,000

11
12

4,568

5,283

4,568

5,283

266,234

275,493

296,831

308,585

403,150

307,500

403,150

307,500

2,135

-

2,135

-

$000s

General Purpose Loans
Finance Lease
TOTAL BORROWINGS

405,285

307,500

405,285

307,500

(38,150)

(39,000)

(38,150)

(39,000)

Repayable Within One Year
General Purpose Loans
Finance Lease

(492)

-

(492)

-

(38,642)

(39,000)

(38,642)

(39,000)

366,643

268,500

366,643

268,500

Provision for Rehabilitation

8,223

10,028

8,223

10,028

12

Provision for Mitigations

6,137

6,324

6,137

6,324

12

TERM LIABILITIES

Options

-

-

7,144

-

381,003

284,852

388,147

284,852

Between One and Two Years

545

175,000

545

175,000

Between Two and Five Years

93,500

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

10

PRINCIPAL REPAYMENT SCHEDULE
291,098

93,500

291,098

Later than Five Years

75,000

-

75,000

-

TOTAL REPAYMENTS

366,643

268,500

366,643

268,500

INTEREST RATES
Loans have interest rates ranging from 6.8% to 8.9% per annum (2006: 6.9% to 8.9%).
RE-PRICING ANALYSIS

LOAN BALANCES SUBJECT TO RE-PRICING
Within One Year

169,878

79,228

178,150

87,500

Between One and Two Years

68,272

105,466

60,000

100,000

Between Two and Five Years

90,000

102,806

90,000

100,000

Later Than Five Years

75,000

20,000

75,000

20,000

403,150

307,500

403,150

307,500

The re-pricing analysis incorporates relevant derivative contract maturities.
SECURITY
The general purpose loans are secured by a negative pledge deed over
Genesis Power Limited (Parent).
COMMITTED FUNDING FACILITIES
At 30 June 2007, the Company had a maximum committed funding facility of
$675.0 million (2006: $675.0 million) from a syndicate of major New Zealand
trading banks. In addition, there are fully issued medium-term notes of
$75.0 million (2006: $Nil).

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLE
Genesis Power Limited leases the substation extension at Huntly under a
ﬁnance lease arrangement. The gross investment in the lease at 30 June
2007 is $2.4 million (2006: $Nil) with unearned interest totalling $0.3
million (2006: $Nil), resulting in a net investment position of $2.1 million
(2006: $Nil).
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$000s

PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION
Balance at Beginning of Year

12,688

21,927

12,688

21,927

Rehabilitation Expenses Incurred

(2,415)

(9,239)

(2,415)

(9,239)

10,273

12,688

10,273

12,688

(2,050)

(2,660)

(2,050)

(2,660)

8,223

10,028

8,223

10,028

8,947

9,181

8,947

9,181

Current Portion This Year
BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

10

PROVISION FOR MITIGATIONS
Balance at Beginning of Year
Current Year Provision
Mitigation Expenses Incurred

Current Portion This Year
BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

599

1,454

599

1,454

(890)

(1,688)

(890)

(1,688)

8,656

8,947

8,656

8,947

(2,519)

(2,623)

(2,519)

(2,623)

6,137

6,324

6,137

6,324

10

PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION

PROVISION FOR MITIGATIONS

A provision of $10.3 million (2006: $12.7 million) has been recognised for site
rehabilitation. These costs are expected to be incurred over six years.
The provision has been estimated using existing technology, at current prices
and discounted to reﬂect net present value given the appropriate risks.

A provision of $8.7 million (2006: $8.9 million) has been recognised for
mitigation costs. These costs are expected to be incurred over the period
of the resource consent. The provision has been estimated based upon
contracted expenditures, discounted to reﬂect net present value.

13. EQUITY

$000s

Issued and Fully Paid-up Share Capital

540,565

540,565

540,565

540,565

Asset Revaluation Reserve

330,638

330,660

330,638

330,660

Balance Sheet Reset Reserve

226,500

226,500

188,313

188,313

Retained Earnings
TOTAL EQUITY
As at 30 June 2007 there were 540,565,002 (2006: 540,565,002) shares
issued and fully paid to the extent of $1.00 each. All shares rank equally
with one vote attached to each share.

ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENT IN RESERVES

407,188

355,503

370,891

323,205

1,504,891

1,453,228

1,430,407

1,382,743

The Company is a state-owned enterprise and all shares are owned by
the Crown, as represented by the Shareholding Ministers Hon. Dr Michael
Cullen, Minister of Finance, and Hon. Trevor Mallard, Minister for StateOwned Enterprises.
$000s

ASSET REVALUATION RESERVE
Balance at Beginning of Year

330,660

Disposal of Revalued Assets
BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

(22)

(58)

330,660
(22)

330,718
(58)

330,660

330,638

330,660

21,320

46,103

21,320

46,103

Within One Year

10,546

7,810

10,235

7,611

Between One and Two Years

10,408

6,873

10,094

6,869

Between Two and Five Years

29,844

19,314

28,930

19,314

Later than Five Years

58,755

39,114

58,374

39,114

109,553

73,111

107,633

72,908

14. COMMITMENTS

330,638

330,718

$000s

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
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OTHER COMMITMENTS

COAL TRANSPORTATION COMMITMENT

JOINT VENTURE COMMITMENTS

FUEL COMMITMENTS

The Company has contracted an independent
third party to provide coal transportation facilities
from the Port of Tauranga to the Rotowaro rail
receipt facility for a ﬁxed annual charge of $1.0
million per annum, plus a per tonne freight cost
for coal transported. The contract extends out
13 years to 26 December 2019, with a right of
renewal for a further three ﬁve-year terms.

KUPE JOINT VENTURE

The Company has contracted to purchase coal
and gas supplies for thermal generation and
retail gas sales. The contracts are for varying
periods, annual quantities and prices. The coal
contracts include a supply of approximately
228.2 PJ (2006: 277.0 PJ) of coal with one major
contract extending out to 30 June 2014.
In addition, at 30 June 2007 the coal stockpile
was approximately 19.5 PJ (2006: 12.7 PJ). The
ﬁrm gas contracts amount to approximately 345.7
PJ (2006: 340.0 PJ) with two contracts extending
out 15 years from 2009.

COAL RECEIPT FACILITY COMMITMENT

The Kupe Joint Venture partners committed
to proceed with the development of the Kupe
ﬁeld on 29 June 2006. Under the arrangement,
costs of development are shared in proportion
to the respective interest held. As a joint venture
participant, the Group has ongoing commitments
of $216.4 million (2006: $Nil) in order to develop
the Kupe ﬁeld.

The Company has committed to a ﬁxed annual
rental and service fee of $1.7 million charged
over the life of the contract for coal receipt
facilities. The contract extends out seven years
to 30 June 2014.

CARDIFF JOINT VENTURE

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

CURRENCY RISK

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is subject to a number of ﬁnancial risks
which arise as a result of its operational activities.

POLICIES

It is Group policy to manage exposure to interest
rate risk via the use of interest rate swaps and to
maintain a ﬁxed/ﬂoating proﬁle within parameters
prescribed by the Group Treasury Policy.

To manage and limit the effects of those ﬁnancial
risks, the Board of Directors has approved policy
guidelines and authorised the use of various
ﬁnancial instruments. The policies approved, and
ﬁnancial instruments being utilised at balance
date, are outlined below:
REVENUE RISK
As part of its energy supply business, the Group
has entered into electricity price hedges with
third parties. These hedges expire at various
dates up to August 2010. Under these contracts,
the Group enters into forward rate electricity
contracts. Any difference on maturity between
the ﬁxed hedge price and the spot price is settled
between the parties.
UNRECOGNISED BALANCES

As at balance date, the aggregate face value of
electricity hedge contracts amounted to $297.2
million (2006: $176.4 million) with terms up
to four years. The comparative carrying value
reﬂects the unamortised balance of electricity
contracts acquired in 2001.

Trading in foreign exchange is permitted only to
support speciﬁed normal business purposes.
This includes purchase or sale of foreign
currency for the purpose of ﬁxing the price of
goods and services in New Zealand Dollars.
Company policy requires all signiﬁcant
transactions which are required to be settled
in a foreign currency to be covered at the time
of commitment by either purchase of the
appropriate foreign currency, or the purchase of
forward cover.
Trading in foreign currencies and related
ﬁnancial instruments for speculative purposes is
not permitted by Company policy.
UNRECOGNISED BALANCES

The notional or principal contract amounts
of foreign exchange instruments outstanding
at balance date is $248.9 million principally
denominated in US Dollars, Japanese Yen and
Australian Dollars (2006: $166.2 million).
The cash settlement requirements of the forward
exchange contracts equals the notional amounts
shown above.

As a joint venture participant, the Group has
ongoing commitments of $1.6 million (2006: Nil)
in order to maintain the Cardiff permit, as part of
their normal operations.

UNRECOGNISED BALANCES

The notional contract amounts of interest rate
hedge instruments outstanding at balance date is
$258.3 million (2006: $248.4 million) with terms
up to ﬁve years.
RE-PRICING ANALYSIS
The following tables identify the periods in which
interest rates are subject to review on interestbearing ﬁnancial assets and liabilities, and provides
the current weighted average interest rate of each
item. The effective interest rate incorporates the
effect of the relevant derivative contracts.
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10,852

-

-

-

10,852

-

-

-

190,705

190,705

Total $000

More than
2 Years $000

Non-Interest
Bearing $000
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1-2 Years
$000

Current $000

Effective
Interest Rate
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
GROUP 2007

ASSETS
Cash

5.9%

Receivables
Investments
Finance Lease Receivable

19.2%

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Payables and Accrued Liabilities

-

-

-

125

125

8,631

9,211

38,783

-

56,625

19,483

9,211

38,783

190,830

258,307

-

-

-

223,024

223,024

General Purpose Loans (Floating)

7.4%

38,150

-

365,000

-

403,150

Finance Lease

7.6%

492

544

1,098

-

2,134

38,642

544

366,098

223,024

628,308

9,609

-

-

-

9,609

-

-

-

202,083

202,083

TOTAL LIABILITIES
GROUP 2006

ASSETS
Cash

4.5%

Receivables
Investments
Finance Lease Receivable

18.7%

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Payables and Accrued Liabilities
General Purpose Loans (Floating)

7.4%

TOTAL LIABILITIES

-

-

-

125

125

3,818

9,729

27,502

23,546

64,595

13,427

9,729

27,502

225,754

276,412

-

-

-

231,210

231,210

39,000

175,000

93,500

-

307,500

39,000

175,000

93,500

231,210

538,710

5,274

-

-

-

5,274

-

-

-

176,452

176,452

PARENT 2007

ASSETS
Cash

6.1%

Receivables
Investments
Inter-company Receivables

7.2%

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Payables and Accrued Liabilities

-

-

-

29,878

29,878

126,417

-

-

-

126,417

131,691

-

-

206,330

338,021

-

-

-

201,768

201,768

Inter-company Payables

7.2%

51,853

-

-

-

51,853

General Purpose Loans (Floating)

7.4%

38,150

-

365,000

-

403,150

Finance Lease

7.6%

492

544

1,098

-

2,134

90,495

544

366,098

201,768

658,905

7,697

-

-

-

7,697

-

-

-

192,532

192,532

TOTAL LIABILITIES
PARENT 2006

ASSETS
Cash

4.8%

Receivables
Investments
Inter-company Receivables

7.2%

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Payables and Accrued Liabilities

-

-

-

37,663

37,663

49,845

-

-

-

49,845

57,542

-

-

230,195

287,737

-

-

-

214,954

214,954

Inter-company Payables

7.2%

49,348

-

-

-

49,348

General Purpose Loans (Floating)

7.3%

39,000

175,000

93,500

-

307,500

88,348

175,000

93,500

214,954

571,802

TOTAL LIABILITIES

The Group incurs credit risk from transactions
with trade customers and ﬁnancial institutions in
the normal course of its business.
The counterparties used for banking and
ﬁnance activities are ﬁnancial institutions with
commercially acceptable credit ratings.
The Company’s credit policy includes the
requirement for an assessment of the:
• size and nature of the Group’s aggregate credit
exposure at any point of time;

carrying value of these items is equivalent to
their fair values.

• credit concentration risk.

• foreign currency forward exchange contracts
are based on valuations, estimated using the
mark to market methodology;

The Group does not have any signiﬁcant
concentration of credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying value of each ﬁnancial asset in the
Statement of Financial Position.

• interest rate swaps are based upon valuations,
estimated using the mark to market
methodology;
• electricity hedge contracts are based upon
valuations, estimated using discounted future
cash ﬂows; and

FAIR VALUES
METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair value of each class of
ﬁnancial instruments:
• cash at bank, bank overdraft, borrowings, term
deposits, receivables and trade creditors – the
Group 2007
Carrying Value

• credit risk appropriate to the size and nature of
the relevant transaction. Where the customer
or counterparty does not meet the Group’s
minimum credit quality, appropriate security

is required, for example bond, guarantee or
prepayment; and

FAIR VALUE SUMMARY

• crude oil price hedge options are based upon
valuations, estimated using the mark to
market methodology.

notes
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Fair Value
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Group 2006
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$000s

ASSETS
Options
Investments*

7,144

4,137

-

-

125

125

125

125

833

Foreign Exchange Contracts

-

(28,576)

-

5,263

Interest Rate Swaps

-

5,892

-

1,291

ASSETS
Options
Investments*

Fair Value

55

Parent 2006
Carrying Value

(1,624)

Fair Value

-

Parent 2007
Carrying Value

Electricity Hedge Contracts

$000s
7,144

4,137

-

-

29,878

-

37,663

-

(4,137)

-

-

LIABILITIES
Options

(7,144)

UNRECOGNISED
Electricity Hedge Contracts

-

(1,624)

55

833

Foreign Exchange Contracts

-

(28,576)

-

5,263

Interest Rate Swaps

-

5,884

-

1,468

*It is not practical to estimate the fair value of the investments in unlisted shares.
For cash, receivables, the ﬁnance lease receivable, payables, accruals and borrowings, the fair values are equivalent to their carrying values and therefore
have been excluded from the tables above.

notes

UNRECOGNISED
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The ultimate shareholder of the Company is the
Crown. The Group undertakes many transactions
with state-owned enterprises and government
departments, carried out on an arm’s-length
basis. Because it is considered that these do not
fall within the intended scope of related party
disclosures, they have not been treated as such
in these ﬁnancial statements.
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND MEMBERS
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

All members of the Group are considered to be
related parties of Genesis Power Limited.
This includes the subsidiaries and the joint
ventures identiﬁed in Note 7. Inter-company
balances outstanding at year-end are listed in
Note 17.
During the year, the Parent loaned its
subsidiaries $74.1 million (2006: $12.2 million).
Net interest paid by the Parent during the year
was $2.1 million (2006: $0.3 million).

The Group has entered into a sponsorship
agreement with the Genesis Oncology Trust.
The annual sponsorship to be paid to the Trust
amounted to $0.2 million (2006: $0.2 million).
In 2007 the Group made additional donations
of $0.3 million (2006: $1.0 million). The total
amount outstanding at year-end was $0.2 million
(2006: $1.0 million).
The Group provides the Trust with accounting and
administrative support free of charge.
Murray Jackson (Chief Executive of Genesis
Power Limited) is the Chairman of the Trust.
Maureen Shaddick (General Counsel and
Company Secretary of Genesis Power Limited) is
the Deputy Chair of the Trust.
No related party debts have been written off or
forgiven during the year.

2007

Each company within the Group maintains an
Interests Register in which members of the
Board record all entities and transactions in
which they have, or may have, a potential or

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

GENESIS ONCOLOGY TRUST

17. INTER-COMPANY BALANCES (PARENT ONLY)

notes

CROWN

actual self-interest. John Stace is the Chairman
and a minority shareholder of Methodware
Limited which provided services to the Parent
for $12,860 (2006: $11,915). During the year,
no other transactions took place between the
Directors and the Group or Parent.

2006

16. RELATED PARTIES
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$000s

INTER-COMPANY RECEIVABLES
Cardiff Holdings No. 1 Limited

10,767

11,280

Cardiff Holdings No. 2 Limited

5,798

6,074

Energy Online Limited

8,760

-

GP No. 1 Limited

2,345

-

GP No. 2 Limited

37,611

8,713

GP No. 5 Limited

9,640

-

-

13,414

51,496

10,364

126,417

49,845

Kinleith Cogeneration Limited
Kupe Holdings Limited

5

INTER-COMPANY PAYABLES
Energy Online Limited

12,185

7,178

Genesis Power Investments Limited

28,371

27,040

Kinleith Cogeneration Limited

11,297

15,130

51,853

49,348

10

18. RECONCILIATION OF NET SURPLUS TO NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

notes

Parent 2006

Parent 2007

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group 2006
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Group 2007
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$000s
61,285

83,730

57,286

73,423

52,950

51,229

52,700

50,987

Movement in Deferred Tax Provision

2,620

10,507

1,835

8,261

Movement in Rehabilitation Provision

(2,415)

(9,239)

(2,415)

(9,239)

Amortisation of Goodwill

ADD/(LESS) NON-CASH ITEMS AND NON-OPERATING ITEMS
Depreciation

16,817

16,818

16,391

16,392

Amortisation of Finance Lease Receivable

4,153

4,160

-

-

Net Loss/(Gain) on Sale of Assets

2,716

125

2,682

123

2,379

5,278

Transfer of Tax Losses to Parent

-

Other Non-Cash Items

(2,985)
73,856

(747)

(2,985)

(747)

72,853

70,587

71,055

12,204

2,621

15,992

(17,475)

1,325

(2,146)

1,223

(2,542)

(31,927)

12,350

(31,927)

12,328

ADD/(LESS) MOVEMENTS IN WORKING CAPITAL ITEMS
Decrease/(Increase) in Accounts Receivable
Decrease/(Increase) in Prepayments
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets

88

Decrease/(Increase) in Taxation Receivable
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities

88

135

(10,139)

3,807

(10,526)

(1,434)

(9,096)

37,613

(13,241)

33,582

55

Increase/(Decrease) in Options Purchased

134

(3,034)

55
-

(3,034)

(7,144)

-

(44,634)

51,345

(38,336)

21,560

-

9,710

(7,535)

9,710

(7,535)

-

(21,000)

-

9,710

(28,535)

9,710

179,393

99,247

ADD/(LESS) ITEMS CLASSIFIED AS INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital Expenditure reclassified as Investing Activities
Proceeds from Disposal of Subsidiaries (2004)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

100,217

(7,535)
158,503

19. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

LAWSUITS AND OTHER CLAIMS

20. RESOURCE CONSENTS

The following matters have not been reﬂected
in the ﬁnancial statements because of the
uncertainty associated with their outcomes:

CARTER HOLT HARVEY

Carter Holt Harvey Limited commenced proceedings
in May 2001 in the High Court against Genesis Power
Limited as ﬁrst defendant and Rolls Royce New
Zealand Limited as second defendant in connection
with a cogeneration agreement between ECNZ
and Carter Holt Harvey signed in 1995. Carter Holt
Harvey alleges failure to deliver in accordance with
the agreement, and also alleges defects in the
Kinleith Cogeneration plant and seeks damages.

The Group requires land, air and water consents,
obtained under the Resource Management Act
1991, to enable it to operate its wind, hydro and
thermal power stations. The duration of the
consents varies up to a maximum of 35 years.
The current resource consents within which the
power stations operate are due for renewal at
varying times. The renewal dates are ﬁxed by the
expiry date of the consent. Most consents are
subject to periodic reviews.

EFFECT ON OPERATIONS

21. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Board of Directors cannot reasonably estimate
the adverse effect (if any) on Genesis Power Limited
if any of the foregoing claims are ultimately resolved
against Genesis Power Limited’s interest, or any
contingent or currently unknown costs or liabilities
crystallise. There can be no assurances that such
litigation or costs will not have a material adverse
effect on Genesis Power Limited’s business, ﬁnancial
condition or results of operations.

The Group operates predominantly in one
industry – the generation, trading and retailing
of electricity and gas. Its operations are carried
out in New Zealand and are, therefore, within one
geographical segment for reporting purposes.

LAND CLAIMS
Genesis Power Limited acquired interests in land
and leases from ECNZ on 1 April 1999.
These interests in land and leases may be subject
to claims to the Waitangi Tribunal and may be
resumed by the Crown. Genesis Power Limited
would expect to negotiate with the new Maori
owners for occupancy and usage rights of any sites
resumed by the Crown. Certain claims have been
brought to or are pending against Genesis Power
Limited, ECNZ and the Crown under the Treaty
of Waitangi Act 1975. Some of these claims may
affect land and leases purchased by the Company
or its subsidiaries from ECNZ. In the event that
land is resumed by the Crown, there is provision for
compensation to Genesis Power Limited.

22. SIGNFICANT EVENTS AFTER BALANCE DATE

No signiﬁcant events took place after balance date.
(2006: Kupe Holdings assigned a 4 per cent interest
in the Kupe Joint Venture to GP No. 5 Limited.)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All derivative contracts including electricity
hedges will be recorded in the Statement of
Financial Position at fair value under NZ IFRS
and be adjusted against opening equity.
Any movements in the fair value of these
instruments from year to year will have the
potential to affect the Statement of Financial
Performance and the Statement of Financial
Position, the extent to which will depend
on whether hedge accounting is adopted.
Currently not all derivatives are recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance and
Statement of Financial Position.

GOODWILL
Under NZ IFRS, goodwill is not amortised but
is reviewed annually for impairment. Currently,
goodwill is amortised over the period of expected
beneﬁts or 20 years, whichever is the shorter.
This will impact the Statement of Financial
Position by removing the annual amortisation.
Any impairment adjustments will also be
reﬂected in the Statement of Financial Position.
The impact on the ﬁnancial statements as they
would apply as at 30 June 2006 are summarised
in the following table.

540,565

355,503

330,660

226,500

Total Equity

NZ IFRS 1 requires that an opening Statement of
Financial Position be created at the start of the
earliest period for which full NZ IFRS comparative
information is presented in an entity’s ﬁrst NZ
IFRS-compliant ﬁnancial statements (i.e. date of
transition). Upon adoption of NZ IFRS, comparative
information will be restated for the year from

FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

Cash Flow
Hedging Equity
Reserve

The Group will adopt NZ IFRS from 1 July 2007
for the year ending 30 June 2008. Transition from
existing NZ GAAP to NZ IFRS will be made in
accordance with NZ IFRS 1 ‘First-Time Adoption
of New Zealand Equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards’.

Resources have been allocated to analyse the
impact of the transition to NZ IFRS. A project team
has been established which reports progress
regularly to the Audit Committee. The key areas
that are likely to have an impact on the ﬁnancial
statements of the Group are listed below:

Balance Sheet
Reset Reserve

In December 2002 the New Zealand Accounting
Standards Review Board (ARSB) announced that
New Zealand entities required to comply with
New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (NZ GAAP) under the Financial
Reporting Act 1993 would be required to apply
NZ IFRS for ﬁnancial periods commencing on
or after 1 January 2007, with earlier adoption
permitted from 1 January 2005.

The NZ IFRS basis of accounting for deferred
taxation is conceptually different to current NZ
GAAP. Currently, deferred taxation is calculated
using an income statement approach whereas
under NZ IFRS deferred taxation will be calculated
based on a balance sheet approach. This method
recognises deferred taxation balances where
there is a difference between the carrying value
of an asset or liability and its taxation base. The
most signiﬁcant impact for the Group will be
the recognition of a deferred taxation liability in
relation to the revaluation of generation assets.

Asset
Revaluation
Reserv

REPORTING STANDARDS (NZ IFRS)

DEFERRED TAXATION

1 July 2006 to 30 June 2007 and the impact that
adoption of NZ IFRS has had on the Group’s
ﬁnancial statements will be disclosed.

Retained
Earnings

EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL

Share Capital

23. IMPACT OF ADOPTING NEW ZEALAND
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$000s
CLOSING EQUITY UNDER NZ FRS (PREVIOUS NZ GAAP) AT 30 JUNE 2006

-

1,453,228

835

834

Recognition of Interest Rate Derivative Financial Instruments

1,291

1,291

Recognition of Foreign Exchange Derivative Financial Instruments

5,259

5,259

ADJUSTMENTS RESULTING IN AN INCREASE IN EQUITY
Recognition of Energy Derivative Financial Instruments

(1)

ADJUSTMENTS RESULTING IN A DECREASE IN EQUITY
Recognition of Finance Lease
De-recognition of Time of Use Hedge Provision
Increase in Deferred Taxation Liability

(2,157)

(2,157)

(55)

(55)

(84,629)

(112,409)

(2,437)

(199,475)

ADJUSTMENTS RESULTING IN A MOVEMENT WITHIN EQUITY
Reclassification of Balance Sheet Reset Reserve

226,500

Reclassification of Asset Revaluation Reserve Deficit
Net Decrease in Equity
OPENING EQUITY UNDER NZ IFRS AT 1 JULY 2006

(9,971)

(226,500)

-

9,971

-

129,687

(102,438)

540,565

485,190

228,222

(226,500)
-

4,948
4,948

(194,303)
1,258,925

This summary should not be taken as an exhaustive list of all the differences between current NZ GAAP and NZ IFRS. The actual impact of adopting NZ IFRS
may vary from the information presented and that variation may be material.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDIT REPORT TO THE READERS OF GENESIS
POWER LIMITED AND GROUP’S FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
The Auditor-General is the auditor of Genesis Power Limited (the Company)
and Group. The Auditor-General has appointed me, Bruce Taylor, using
the staff and resources of Deloitte, to carry out the audit of the ﬁnancial
statements of the company and group, on his behalf, for the year ended
30 June 2007.
UNQUALIFIED OPINION
In our opinion:
• The ﬁnancial statements of the Company and Group on pages 69 to 85:
- comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand;
and
- give a true and fair view of:

We evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
ﬁnancial statements. We obtained all the information and explanations we
required to support our opinion above.
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDITOR
The Board of Directors is responsible for preparing ﬁnancial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand.
Those ﬁnancial statements must give a true and fair view of the ﬁnancial
position of the Company and Group as at 30 June 2007. They must also give
a true and fair view of the results of operations and cash ﬂows for the year
ended on that date. The Board of Directors’ responsibilities arise from the
State-Owned Enterprises Act 1986 and the Financial Reporting Act 1993.
We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the ﬁnancial
statements and reporting that opinion to you. This responsibility arises from
section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001 and section 19(1) of the State-Owned
Enterprises Act 1986.

- the Company and Group’s ﬁnancial position as at 30 June 2007; and

INDEPENDENCE

- the results of operations and cash ﬂows for the year ended on that
date.

When carrying out the audit we followed the independence requirements of
the Auditor-General, which incorporate the independence requirements of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand.

• Based on our examination the Company and Group kept proper
accounting records.
The audit was completed on 27 August 2007, and is the date at which our
opinion is expressed.
The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the
responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Auditor, and explain our
independence.

In addition to the audit, we have carried out an assignment in the area of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) component evaluation
review, which is compatible with those independence requirements. Other
than the audit and this assignment, we have no relationship with or interests
in the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BASIS OF OPINION
We carried out the audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the New Zealand Auditing Standards.
We planned and performed the audit to obtain all the information and
explanations we considered necessary in order to obtain reasonable
assurance that the ﬁnancial statements did not have material
misstatements, whether caused by fraud or error.
Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and
disclosures that would affect a reader’s overall understanding of the
ﬁnancial statements. If we had found material misstatements that were not
corrected, we would have referred to them in our opinion.
The audit involved performing procedures to test the information presented
in the ﬁnancial statements. We assessed the results of those procedures in
forming our opinion.
Audit procedures generally include:
• determining whether signiﬁcant ﬁnancial and management controls are
working and can be relied on to produce complete and accurate data;
• verifying samples of transactions and account balances;
• performing analyses to identify anomalies in the reported data;
• reviewing signiﬁcant estimates and judgements made by the Board of
Directors;
• conﬁrming year-end balances;
• determining whether accounting policies are appropriate and consistently
applied; and
• determining whether all ﬁnancial statement disclosures are adequate.
We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete
accuracy of the ﬁnancial statements.

BRUCE TAYLOR
DELOITTE
ON BEHALF OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL
HAMILTON, NEW ZEALAND

STATUTORY INFORMATION

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST
The general disclosures of interest, as at 30 June 2007, made by the
directors of Genesis Power Limited trading as Genesis Energy (‘Genesis
Energy’) or (‘Company’), pursuant to section 140(2) of the Companies
Act 1993 are shown below. There were no declarations of interest made
pursuant to section 140(1) of the Companies Act 1993 entered in the
Interests Registers of Genesis Energy or its subsidiary companies.
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No director of Genesis Energy is a shareholder of Genesis Energy or any of
its subsidiary companies.
INTEREST REGISTER ENTRIES
In accordance with section 211(1)(e) of the Companies Act 1993, particulars
of the entries in the Interests Register of Genesis Energy made during the
period are as set out below:

DIRECTOR

POSITION

ORGANISATION

Brian Corban, QSO

Chairman and Shareholder

Corban Consultants Limited

Chairman and Shareholder

Lindsay Corban Associates Limited

Chairman and Shareholder

Ngatarawa Wines Limited

Chairman and Trustee

Corban Estate Arts Centre

Chairman

Radio New Zealand Limited

Chairman

Melanesian Mission Trust Board

Chairman

Corbans Viticulture Limited

Chairman

West Auckland Trust Services Limited

Chairman

Butts Bainbridge and Weir, Accountants

Chairman

Languages International Limited

Chairman

Frontier Global Limited

Director

Frontier Mapping (NZ) Limited

Consultant

Corban Revell Lawyers

Trustee

Royal New Zealand Navy Museum

Trustee

West Auckland Hospice Foundation Trust

Trustee

Waitakere Enterprise Board

Advisory Council Member

Church of Melanesia

President

New Zealand Labour Party

Chairman

Transport Board Reference Group

Director

Institute of Geological and Nuclear Sciences

Director

Auckland Regional Transport Authority

Director

New Zealand Railways Corporation

Director

The New Zealand Picture Company

Trustee

Waitakere Enterprise Board

Authority Member

Transit NZ Limited

Member

Energy Efficiency and Conservation Authority

Trustee

Royal New Zealand Ballet Trust

Trustee

Meridian Energy Katherine Mansfield Fellowship

Senior Legal Advisor

New Zealand Historic Places Trust

Partner

Simpson Grierson

Honorary Consul

Mexico

Deputy Chairman and Board Member

New Zealand Committee of the Pacific Economic Co-Operation Council

Member

Advisory Board of the New Zealand Centre for Latin American Studies
at Auckland University

Council Member

Inter Pacific Bar Association

Director

Companies associated with the partnership of Simpson Grierson

Director

Tacron Investments Limited

Director

Hopper Fiji Limited

Kenneth Michael (Mike) Williams

Geraldine Baumann

Denis McNamara
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Ian Kusabs

Annabel Cotton

Nicola (Nicki) Crauford

John Stace

Joanna Perry

Chairman

Lake Taupo Sustainable Management Group

Member

Lake Taupo Management Board

Advisor

Ngati Tuwharetoa Maori Trust Board

Fisheries Associate

Wildland Consultants

Fisheries Associate

Mitchell and Associates

Member

Lake Taupo Protection Project Joint Committee

Member

Lake Taupo Liaison subcommittee

Director

Merlin Consulting Limited

Director

Equity Products Limited

Director

Kingfish Ltd and subsidiaries

Director

Barramundi Ltd and subsidiaries

Member

Securities Commission

Director and Shareholder

Crauford Robertson Consulting Limited

Director and Shareholder

Martin Crauford Limited

Director and Minority Shareholder

iYomu Limited

Director

Centre for Advanced Engineering

Director

Institution of Professional Engineers New Zealand

Chief Executive

The Institute of Directors, New Zealand

Non-Executive Chairman and Minority
Shareholder

Methodware Limited

Chairman and Shareholder

Triplejump Limited

Director

The Kiwi Expat Association Incorporated

Member

New Zealand Trade and Enterprise, Beachhead Advisory Board

Chairman

Financial Reporting Standards Board

Director and Shareholder

JMGP Limited

Director

Kiwi Income Property Limited

Director

PSIS Limited

Director

Pod Limited

Member

Australian Accounting Standards Board

Member

Securities Commission

Member

Audit and Risk Committee of the Office of the Auditor-General

Member

New Zealand Regional Council for Financial Services Institute of
Australasia

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

USE OF COMPANY INFORMATION

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with section 162 of the Companies
Act 1993 and the Company’s constitution, Genesis
Energy has indemniﬁed and arranged insurance
for all current and former executive ofﬁcers of
the Company and its subsidiary companies in
respect of all liabilities to persons (other than
the Company or a related body corporate) to the
extent permitted by law which arise out of the
performance of their normal duties as directors
or executive ofﬁcers unless the liability relates to
conduct involving a lack of good faith.

No notices have been received by the Board
of Genesis Energy under section 145 of the
Companies Act 1993 with regard to the use of
Company information received by directors in
their capacities as directors of the Company or its
subsidiary companies.

Shareholding Ministers advise the Board
of the total allowance for fees available to
directors of Genesis Energy and its subsidiary
companies. The following table sets out the
total remuneration (including remuneration for
standing committee membership) and the value
of other beneﬁts received or receivable from
Genesis Energy by each director of the Company
during the period 1 July 2006 to 30 June 2007.

STATUTORY INFORMATION

NAME

TOTAL $

Brian Corban

76,922

Mike Williams

37,557

Geraldine Baumann*

37,753

Denis McNamara

37,753

Annabel Cotton

38,039

Ian Kusabs

33,039

Nicki Crauford
John Stace
Joanna Perry

33,039
33,039
6,339

* as at 30 June 2007, $286 was payable to Geraldine Baumann

During the year in review, Joanna Perry was
appointed as a director of Genesis Energy,
with effect from 1 May 2007, and no directors
of Genesis Energy ceased to hold ofﬁce.
Genesis Energy has 10 wholly owned subsidiary
companies (detailed below). The directors of nine
those companies are Messrs Brian Corban and
Murray Jackson. The directors of Energy Online
Limited are Messrs Murray Jackson and Mark
Anderson, and Dean Carroll who was appointed
with effect from 25 August 2006 replacing Vince
Hawksworth who resigned as a director from
28 July 2006.

SUMMARY OF EARNINGS OVER $100,000

GENESIS ENERGY ANNUAL REPORT 2007

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

$940,000-950,000

1

$410,000-420,000

1

$360,000-370,000

1

$330,000-340,000

1

$320,000-330,000

1

$310,000-320,000

1

GP No. 4 Limited

$260,000-270,000

1

GP No. 5 Limited

$220,000-230,000

3

Kinleith Cogeneration Limited

$210,000-220,000

1

Energy Online Limited

$200,000-210,000

1

Cardiff Holdings No. 1 Limited

$180,000-190,000

3

Cardiff Holdings No. 2 Limited

$170,000-180,000

1

$160,000-170,000

1

$150,000-160,000

4

$140,000-150,000

8

$130,000-140,000

4

$120,000-130,000

23

$110,000-120,000

39

$100,000-110,000

52

TOTAL

Genesis Energy’s wholly owned subsidiary
companies are:
Genesis Power Investments Limited
Kupe Holdings Limited
GP No. 1 Limited
GP No. 2 Limited

147

Messrs Murray Jackson and Mark Anderson are
directors of Gasbridge Limited in connection
with Genesis Energy’s 50 per cent ownership of
Gasbridge Limited.
None of the directors of the subsidiary companies
received any speciﬁc remuneration or other
beneﬁts during the period in relation to their
duties as directors of these companies.
REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES
In accordance with section 211(1)(g) of the
Companies Act 1993, the number of employees,
or former employees of Genesis Energy and/or
members of the Company who, during the period
received remuneration and other beneﬁts the
value of which exceeded $100,000 is as follows:

BRIAN CORBAN QSO Chairman
27 August 2007

MIKE WILLIAMS Deputy Chairman
27 August 2007
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT
The following is an overview of Genesis Energy’s
main corporate governance practices. Genesis
Energy has a strong focus on corporate
governance and aims to comply
with internationally recommended best
corporate governance practices as they apply in
New Zealand.
SHAREHOLDERS

Genesis Energy is a state-owned enterprise
pursuant to the State-Owned Enterprises Act
1986 and is wholly owned by Her Majesty the
Queen in Right of New Zealand (“Crown”).
The Crown’s shareholding is held by the shareholding Ministers who as at 30 June 2007 were:
Hon.
Dr Michael Cullen

Minister of Finance

Hon. Trevor Mallard

Minister for StateOwned Enterprises

Shareholding Ministers appoint the Board of
Directors. The Board provides Shareholding
Ministers with a Statement of Corporate Intent
(‘SCI’) on an annual basis outlining goals,
objectives and business plans in respect of
the relevant ﬁnancial year and each of the
immediately following four ﬁnancial years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management of the Company to the Chief
Executive.

with section 36 (1)(a)(i) of the Companies Act 1993
and the Company’s constitution.

In discharging its duties the Board requires
management to submit annually, for its
consideration, a business plan embracing the
Company’s resource requirements. The Board
also requires an annual budget based on the
adopted business plan to be submitted for
approval.
The Board monitors actual ﬁnancial results
compared to budget and forecasts on a monthly
basis, and on a quarterly basis it reviews the
Company’s performance compared to its
business plan objectives.
The Board recognises the particular importance
of and the need to comply with legislation
controlling the environment and management
of natural resources and health and safety
of employees. For that reason, it monitors
the Company’s compliance with the statutes
concerned through consideration of regular
reports from management.
BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The Board comprises nine non-executive
directors. All appointments to the Board are
made by Shareholding Ministers in accordance

Genesis Energy’s constitution requires that
directors be appointed to the Board for a ﬁxed
term not exceeding three years. Shareholding
Ministers may choose to renew an appointment
for further ﬁxed terms of up to three years.
The Board includes some of the country’s
most experienced business professionals and
advisers. Directors’ qualiﬁcations and special
responsibilities, including standing committee
membership, are set out in the table below.
COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

During the year Mike Williams was appointed
Deputy Chairman, with effect from 1 May 2007,
and Joanna Perry was appointed as a director of
the Company, also with effect from 1 May 2007.
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The directors support the principles set out in the
Code of Proper Practice for Directors issued by
the Institute of Directors in New Zealand.
While recognising that the Code expresses principles
and does not purport to determine the detailed course
of conduct by directors on any particular matter, the
directors support the need for the highest standards
of governance, behaviour and accountability.

ROLE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTOR

SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for the proper direction
and control of the activities of Genesis Energy
and its subsidiaries. Generally, the principal
functions of the Board are to:

Brian Corban, QSO
MA (Hons), LLB, FInstD, FNZIM
Appointed: 21 December 1998

• Deputy Chair of the Board of Directors from 15 February
1999
• Chair of the Board of Directors from 11 May 1999
• Member of Audit Committee

• conﬁrm corporate objectives, establish policy
and approve major strategies;
• ensure business risks are appropriately
identiﬁed and controlled;

• Acting Chair of the Board from 15 April to 10 May 1999

• Acting Chair Audit Committee from May 2006
• Member of Remuneration Committee
Mike Williams, MA (Hons)
Appointed: 27 November 2002

• Member of Remuneration Committee from March 2005

Geraldine Baumann, LLB
Appointed: 28 April 2002

• Member of Audit Committee from March 2003

Denis McNamara, LLB (Hons)
Appointed: 29 April 2002

• Member of Remuneration Committee from March 2003

• appoint directors to subsidiary companies.
The Board holds an annual strategic planning
workshop with management, and reviews
strategic initiatives throughout the year.

Annabel Cotton
BMS (Accounting and Finance), ACA, CSAP
Appointed: 8 June 2004

• Member of Audit Committee from August 2004

Joanna Perry MA Econ (Cantab), FCA
(ICAEW), FCA (NZICA)
Appointed: 1 May 2007

• Member of Audit Committee from May 2007

• oversee processes for ﬁnancial reporting and
compliance and ensure the integrity of the
management information system;
• select and review the performance of the Chief
Executive and review succession planning; and

While the Board acknowledges that it is
responsible for the overall control framework
of Genesis Energy, it recognises that no costeffective internal control system will preclude
all errors and irregularities. The system is
based on written procedures, policies and
guidelines, organisational structures that
provide an appropriate division of responsibility,
a programme of internal audit, and the careful
selection and training of qualiﬁed personnel.

Ian Kusabs
MA (Hons) Biological Sciences
Appointed: 3 June 2004
Nicki Crauford
BSc (Hons), PhD, FIPENZ, MInstD
Appointed: 1 January 2005
John Stace
Appointed: 1 May 2006

• Deputy Chairman from May 2007

• Chairman of Remuneration Committee from March 2005

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board schedules 11 meetings of directors
each year at which directors review and update
the Company’s Directors’ Interests Register and
receive monthly reports from the Chief Executive
and senior management and reports on matters
requiring directors’ approval and information
reports. Each year, two or three of the meetings
of directors will be held away from the corporate
ofﬁce and combined with an opportunity for
directors to meet stakeholders and business
partners of the Company.
BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board may constitute standing committees
that focus on speciﬁc areas of the Board’s
responsibility. The Board also reserves the
right to constitute temporary non-standing
committees to consider agreed business or
projects of the Company. The current standing
committees comprise the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is scheduled to meet no
less than four times a year, with additional
meetings being convened when required.
The role of the Audit Committee is to:
• assist the Board in the proper and efﬁcient
discharge of its responsibilities relating
to ﬁnancial reporting; that is, in producing
accurate ﬁnancial statements in compliance
with the law and accounting standards;

• oversee, review and enhance the Company’s
external ﬁnancial reporting procedures; and
• monitor and enhance the Company’s internal
ﬁnancial systems and controls.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to
meet no less than twice a year, with additional
meetings being convened when required. The role
of the Remuneration Committee is to oversee,
review and monitor the remuneration of the Chief
Executive and to act in an advisory capacity to
the Chief Executive, as requested by the Chief
Executive in respect of terms and conditions of
employment, including remuneration for
senior executives.
STAKEHOLDERS

The Board recognises that the Company has a
large number of stakeholders interested and
affected by different aspects of its business.
The Board ensures opportunities are provided
for engagement between the Company and its
stakeholders and arranges for independent
stakeholder audits to be carried out.
RISK MANAGEMENT

Genesis Energy has developed a comprehensive,
enterprise-wide risk management framework.
The Company’s management actively participates
in the identiﬁcation, assessment, and monitoring
of new and existing risks. Particular attention
is given to the market risks that could impact
on Genesis Energy. All trading activities are
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consistent with the policies and procedures
stipulated in the Company’s Market Risk Policy
and credit risks arising in the retail business are
managed through the Credit Risk Policy. Both of
these policies are subject to regular oversight
by a committee of senior management and
management undertakes regular reporting to
apprise the Board of the Company’s risks and the
treatment of those risks.
INTERNAL AUDIT

Genesis Energy has established an outsourced
internal audit function that is responsible for
monitoring the Company’s internal control
systems and the integrity of the ﬁnancial
information reported to the Board. Internal audit
reports its ﬁndings to the Audit Committee.
Internal audit liaises closely with the external
auditors, who review the systems of internal
control to the extent necessary to support their
audit opinion. Both the internal auditors and the
external auditors have unrestricted access to the
Audit Committee and to the Board.
PERFORMANCE-BASED REMUNERATION

A percentage of the Chief Executive’s total
remuneration and that of each of the Company’s
senior executives is linked to the achievement
of performance targets which are agreed and
reviewed on an annual basis.
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STATEMENT OF
CORPORATE INTENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2007
STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT
(SUMMARISED)

The Statement of Corporate Intent (SCI) for the
period 1 July 2006 to 30 June 2009 was submitted
by the Board of Directors of Genesis Power
Limited (‘Genesis Energy’) in accordance with
section 14 of the State-Owned Enterprises Act
1986 (‘the Act’). The SCI, as required by the Act,
speciﬁes information in respect of the ﬁnancial
year in question and each of the two immediately
following ﬁnancial years. Genesis Energy also
voluntarily provides information for an additional
two years above the Act requirement (i.e. SCI
covers the period 1 July 2006 to 30 June 2011).
This summary reports on performance against
SCI targets for the year ended 30 June 2007.
NATURE AND SCOPE OF ACTIVITIES

RATIO OF CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS’
FUNDS TO TOTAL ASSETS
Consolidated Shareholders’ Funds is comprised
of the paid-up equity capital of the Company,
together with any revaluation reserves and
retained earnings of the Company. Retained
earnings is comprised of the net after-tax proﬁts
of the business less dividends paid, computed in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
practice in New Zealand (GAAP).
Total assets is the aggregate net book value
of the assets of the Company computed in
accordance with GAAP. In particular, Total
assets include the results of the revaluation
process required by the shareholders upon the
establishment of Genesis Energy in 1999.
DEBT TO DEBT PLUS EQUITY

In recommending dividends payable to
Shareholding Ministers, Genesis Energy will
comply with the solvency levels speciﬁed in
the Companies Act 1993 and will follow the
procedures generally adopted by directors
of publicly listed companies. Under ordinary
business circumstances the dividend to be
declared will be determined by reference to:
• Genesis Energy’s working capital
requirements;
• Genesis Energy’s medium-term ﬁxed asset
expenditure programme;
• Genesis Energy’s investment in new business
opportunities; and
• Genesis Energy’s risk proﬁle, taking into
account the sustainable ﬁnancial structure
for the business and considering predictions
of short and medium-term economic and
market conditions.
The ﬁnancial performance targets outlined in the SCI
assume annual dividend payments being made at a
payout ratio of 40 per cent of Net Proﬁt after Tax.

Net Operating Profit After Tax to Average Debt Plus Equity

2.8%

3.3%

Net Profit After Tax to Average Shareholders’ Funds

3.3%

4.1%

Earnings Before Interest and Tax to Average Total Assets

4.7%

5.0%

40% of NPAT

$9.6m 2007
Interim Dividend paid
year to date

Debt to Debt Plus Equity

33%

21%

Consolidated Shareholders’ Funds to Total Assets

60%

69%

0

4

1

Trainees as a Percentage of Workforce

10%

12.5%

2

Customer Satisfaction

85%

86%

3

Power Station Availability
• Hydro
• Thermal

98%
92%

92.1%
86.2%

4
5

notes

SCI Actual

Debt is comprised of all short and long-term
borrowings. Equity is issued capital plus
retained earnings.

DIVIDEND POLICY

SCI Target

Genesis Energy’s primary business activities
involve electricity generation, trading and retailing
and gas supply and retailing in New Zealand.
Within these primary activities, Genesis Energy

pursues a range of initiatives to ensure that the
Company’s existing capital assets, energy sources
and human resources are used efﬁciently.

SCI RESULTS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE TARGETS

Dividend Payout

NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE TARGETS
Number of Significant RMA Non-compliances

NOTES
1: ‘Signiﬁcant’ refers to those incidents which are more than minor and for which it is appropriate to notify the consent authority (over and above standard notiﬁcation of
minor consent non-compliances in consent monitoring reports).
2: Trainees as a percentage of the workforce is above target due to the second intake of the National Apprenticeship Programme with a total of 35 apprenticeship positions
now being ﬁlled.
3: Based on a survey completed in May 2007: “How do you rate the performance of your energy supplier?” Percentage of customers rating Genesis Energy good, very good
or excellent.
4: Hydro was below target due to low inﬂows.
5: Thermal was under target for the year due to various changes to planned outages and unscheduled maintenance.

PHYSICAL ASSETS
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PHYSICAL ASSETS
THERMAL

HUNTLY POWER STATION

With a present output of 1,440MW, Huntly is
New Zealand’s largest thermal power station.
It has four separate generating units of 250MW
utilising conventional boiler and steam turbine
technology. Each unit is capable of burning coal,
natural gas or a combination of the two.

HYDRO

Unit 6 is a nominal 48MW open-cycle gas
turbine has been commissioned at Huntly.
Unit 5, a high-efficiency combined-cycle gas
turbine power plant has been commissioned.
This 400MW plant is about 50 per cent more
energy efficient than existing technology.

of more than 2,600 sq km and uses a series of
lakes, canals and tunnels to bring water to the
two stations that typically generate 1,300GWH
p.a. – about four per cent of the country’s
total generation.

CO-GENERATION

1440MW

Generation units:

250MWx4, 1x400MW,
1x48MW

Fuel:

coal / gas

Chimney height:

150m

Site area:

71 ha

Tokaanu
1973

Rangipo
1983

Total capacity:

360MW

Generation units:
Tokaanu
60MWx4

Rangipo
60MWx2

Years commissioned:

WAIKAREMOANA HYDRO SCHEME

The Waikaremoana Hydro Scheme includes
the Tuai (60MW), Piripaua (42MW) and Kaitawa
(36MW) hydro stations. The Waikaremoana
storage reservoir was created by a landslide
that closed off the valley and provided the

1981

Capacity:

Years commissioned:

TONGARIRO POWER SCHEME

The Tongariro Power Scheme gathers water
from the mountains of the central volcanic
plateau in the North Island. The water passes
through two power stations – Tokaanu (240MW)
and Rangipo (120MW) – before entering into
Lake Taupo. The scheme has a catchment area

Year commissioned:

opportunity to implement flood control while
creating the characteristics for a high-head
hydro scheme.

Tuai
1929

Piripaua
1943

Total capacity:

138MW

Generation units:
Tuai
20MWx3

Piripaua
21MWx2

KOURARAU HYDRO SCHEME

Year commissioned:

1923

Capacity:

1MW

Fuel:

hydro

TE AWAMUTU COGENERATION PLANT

Year commissioned:

1995

The plant is based on a 54MW Pratt and
Whitney aero-derivative Twinpak gas turbine
exhausting into a heat recovery boiler to raise
steam for process use.

Electrical output
in cogeneration mode:
in open-cycle plus

KINLEITH COGENERATION PLANT

This plant is located at the Carter Holt Harvey
Pulp and Paper Plant at Kinleith, Tokoroa. It is
fuelled by wood waste biomass supplemented
as necessary with gas or coal. Biomass fuel
is considered a renewable energy source

because it can be replenished by planting more
plantations. The fuel is burnt in a boiler to
produce steam for a 40MW steam turbine and
for process use.

HAU NUI WIND FARM

Harnessing the strong and consistent winds
of the South Wairarapa coast, the wind farm is
aptly named ‘Hau Nui’ – which means ‘strong
wind’ in Maori.

27MW

Electrical output
cogeneration mode:

GAS

Kaitawa
18MWx2

This scheme in the Wairarapa hills consists of two small power stations.
Each station is fed by a small artificial reservoir that was formed by the
damming of the Kourarau Stream.

This plant has been developed under a
partnership between Fonterra and Genesis
Energy, to provide electricity and steam to the
major milk-processing site at
Te Awamutu.

WIND

Kaitawa
1947/8

Hau Nui’s present 15 wind turbines provide
enough power for around 4,200 homes in
the South Wairarapa. Hau Nui has excellent
availability, recording 48 per cent capacity
factor over the period since commissioning.

54MW

Year commissioned:

1998

Electrical output:

40MW

Wood waste burnt
tonnes per year:

400,000 700,000

Year commissioned:

1996

Total capacity:

8.65MW

KUPE GAS PROJECT

CARDIFF

Genesis Energy owns 31 per cent of the proven oil
and gas field of Kupe, located 30km offshore from
South Taranaki. Pictured is construction of the
Kupe Production Station.

Genesis Energy holds 40 per cent equity interest in
respect of the deep petroleum rights in Petroleum
Exploration Permit 38738.
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GRI INDEX

GRI INDEX
This content index indicates which G3 indicators are applicable for us to report, where they are reported on in the report and to what extent they are reported.
Decisions regarding which indicators to report were also guided by the process we undertook to identify key issues and identify them according to their
materiality. For example, many of the Human Rights indicators do not apply to a New Zealand company with no offshore operations.
= YES

= PARTIALLY

= NO

PROFILE DISCLOSURE

STATUS

PG REFERENCE

PROFILE STRATEGY AND ANALYSIS

= INTEND TO REPORT NEXT YEAR

PROFILE DISCLOSURE

STATUS

PG REFERENCE

GOVERNANCE

1.1

Statement from the CE and Chairman

5-9

4.1

Governance structure of the organisation

92

1.2

Description of key impacts, risks and
opportunities

Throughout
report

4.2

Indicate whether the Chair of the highest
governance body is also an executive
officer

87-88

4.3

Independence of the Executive Board

87-88

4.4

Mechanisms to provide recommendations
to the Board

4.5

Linkage between performance and
compensation

87-88

4.6

Avoiding conflict of interest

87-88

4.7

Qualifications and expertise of the
members of the Board

4.8

Corporate missions and values

4.9

Board-level processes for identifying and
managing risks and opportunities

ORGANISATIONAL PROFILE
2.1

Name of reporting organisation

Cover Page

2.2

Primary brands, products and/or services

5, 83, 89

2.3

Operational structure of the organisation

92

2.4

Location of the organisation’s
headquarters

92

2.5

Countries in which the organisation
operates

5

2.

Nature of ownership and legal form

71

2.7

Nature of markets served

11

2.8

Scale of the reporting organisation

11, 89

2.9

Significant changes in size, structure
or ownership

31

2.10 Awards received in the reporting period

65

REPORTING PARAMETERS
3.1

Reporting period

16

3.2

Date of most recent previous report (if any)

16

3.3

Reporting cycle (annual, biennial etc)

16

3.4

Contact point for questions regarding the
report or its questions

92

3.5

Process for defining report content

16

3.6

Boundary of the report

16

3.7

Specific limitations on the scope or
boundary of the report

16

3.8

Basis for reporting on joint ventures,
subsidiaries, leased facilities, outsourced
operations and other entities

16

3.9

Data measurement techniques and the
basis of calculations

3.10 Explanation of the effect of any
restatements
3.11 Significant scope, boundary
or measurement changes

41, 50

4.10 Processes for evaluating the Board’s own
performance
4.11 How the precautionary principle is
addressed
4.12 External charters
4.13 Memberships in associations

22, 47

4.14 List of stakeholder groups engaged by the
organisation

17

4.15 Identification and selection of stakeholders

17

4.16 Approaches to stakeholder engagement

17, 50-61

4.17 Key topics and concerns from stakeholder
engagement

17, 50-61

MANAGEMENT APPROACH AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS – ECONOMIC
DISCLOSURE ON MANAGEMENT APPROACH

5-9

EC1 Direct Economic value

2-3

EC2 Financial implications and other risks and
opportunities from climate change

5-9, 20-21

Throughout
report

EC4 Significant financial assistance received
from government

26

Throughout
report

EC7 Procedures and practice for local hiring

16

EC8 Infrastructure investments and services

51, 53

NA

GRI CONTENT
3.12 GRI Index table

94

3.13 External assurance policy and practice

16

GRI INDEX

PROFILE DISCLOSURE

STATUS

PG REFERENCE

ELECTRICITY SECTOR SUPPLEMENT
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PROFILE DISCLOSURE

STATUS

PG REFERENCE

EN29 Transport

23

EU13 Long-term planning for securing water
resources

45

EU3 Long-term reliability, social, economic and
environmental performance criteria are
used in investment decisions

33

EU4 Methodologies to assess existing and
future demand

30, 31

EU5 Planned capacity against projected
electricity demand

30-37

LA1 Total workforce by employment type,
employment contract, and region

56, 57

EU8 Approach to research and development

22
21-22

LA2 Total number and rate of employee
turnover: age group, gender, and region

58

EU11 System efficiency. Generation efficiency

LA7 Rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost
days, and absenteeism, and number of
work-related fatalities by region

59

LA8 Programmes to assist workforce members,
their families, or community members
regarding serious diseases

59-60

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT APPROACH AND INDICATORS

LABOUR MANAGEMENT APPROACH AND INDICATORS
DISCLOSURE ON MANAGEMENT APPROACH

DISCLOSURE ON MANAGEMENT APPROACH

40

EN1 Materials used by weight or volume

6

EN2 Percentage of recycled input materials
used

41

EN3 Direct energy consumption by primary
energy source

6, 23

EU24 Processes to ensure retention and renewal
of skilled workforce

EN5 Energy saved: conservation and efficiency
improvements

23

HUMAN RIGHTS MANAGEMENT APPROACH AND INDICATORS – N/A

EN6 Initiatives to provide energy-efficient
or renewable energy-based products
and services, and reductions in energy
requirements as a result of these
initiatives

24-26

SOCIETY MANAGEMENT APPROACH AND INDICATORS

EN8 Report water used for processing

45

EN9 Water sources significantly affected by
withdrawal of water

46

EN11 Land owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent
to, protected areas and areas of high
biodiversity value outside protected areas

42

EN12 Impacts on biodiversity

42-47

EN13 Habitats protected and restored

42-47

EN14 Strategies for managing impacts on
biodiversity

ELECTRICITY SECTOR SUPPLEMENT
56-58

DISCLOSURE ON MANAGEMENT APPROACH

51

SO1 Report on specific social issues related to
electric utilities sector

50-61, 64-66

SO5 Public policy positions and participation in
public policy development and lobbying

27, 37

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
DISCLOSURE ON MANAGEMENT APPROACH
PR3 Type of product and service information
required by procedures and percentage of
significant products and services subject to
such information requirements

66

42-47

PR5 Customer satisfaction practices and
measures

65

EN15 IUCN Red List species and national
conservation list species with habitats in
areas affected by operations, by level of
extinction risk

42-43

PR6 Programmes for adherence to laws,
standards, and voluntary codes related
to marketing communications, including
advertising, promotion and sponsorship

66

EN16 Report emissions intensity by generation
type

22

65

EN18 Initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions and reductions achieved

20-23

PR7 Total number of incidents of non-compliance
with regulations and voluntary codes
concerning marketing communications,
including advertising, promotion and
sponsorship by type of outcomes

EN20 Emissions effluents and waste

44-45

EN22 Total weight of waste by type and disposal
method

41

EN23 Total number and volume of significant spills

Website

EN23 Water bodies and related habitats significantly
affected by the reporting organisation’s
discharges of water and runoff

45

EN25 Identity, size, protected status, and
biodiversity value of water bodies and related
habitats significantly affected by the reporting
organisation’s discharges of water and run-off

45

EN26 Initiatives to mitigate environmental
impacts of products and services, and
extent of impact mitigation

24-26

DRAFT ELECTRICITY SECTOR SUPPLEMENT
EU30 Access: Programmes to assist
underprivileged, low-income or vulnerable
customers to afford electricity connection
and consumption

64-65

EU31 Flexible billing arrangements, timely
reconnection and other practices to assist
customers to manage debt and avoid
electricity disconnection

64-65

EU37 Demand-side management programmes

24-26

EU38 MWh saved through demand-side
management programmes

96

INDEX
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INDEX
A

G

About this report

14

Advanced meters

62, 66

P

Gasbridge

36

Port Taranaki

Gateway project

56

PFS engineering
Performance overview

Auckland Regional Council (ARC)

33

Generation performance

10

AWATEA

22

Genesis Oncology Trust

54

Green RIG

55

R

Greenhouse gas emissions

24

Research and development

Greenpeace

22

Resource consent compliance

GRI index

95

Resource Consents
Management System (RCMS)

B
Blue Duck (Whio)

42

Board of Airline Representatives
New Zealand (BARNZ)

25

Board of Directors

10

H

Books in Homes project

53

Hapu Restoration Trust

Carbon dioxide

21

Carbon emissions

21

Carbon intensity

22

Chief Executive’s report
Climate action teams

5
7
27

24

Helensville Information Centre

34

Helensville Medical Centre

53

Helensville Wastewater Reuse Project

34

Huntly Power Station

44

21

Continuous Emissions Monitoring Systems
(CEMS)
45
Corporate Social Responsibility Strategy
(CSR)
Curtain Bank

25
50
48, 53

D
Didymo

Air quality

44

Ash management

52

Biodiversity challenges

46

Coal stockpile

52

Contribution to climate change

20

Engagement with local iwi

51

Protest at

22

Water quality

46

I
ICLEI

43

E

33, 34

Huntly P48 Stage II

Communities for climate protection (CCP-NZ)26

Coolstore seminar

59, 60

Heat pumps

Climate change management, approach to 20
Climate change strategy

52

Health and Safety

C

Chairman’s report

Retail market share

26

K
Kupe Gas Field

37

E3p

20

L

E3p commissioning

31

Lahar

43

Ecobulbs™

24

LNG

36

Electricity and Gas Complaints Commission
(EGCC)
65

M

Electricity demand

Mangaio mini-hydro

30, 33

ElectroCity

53

Energy audits

24

Medical dependency

Energy Online

66

Meremere Power Station

Mangatoa gas prospect

11
33, 34

Rodney Power Station

32-34

S
Schoolgen

25

Senior management

12

SITEL

65

Staff
Stakeholder Communication Strategy

57, 58, 59
40

T
Tangata Whenua (engagement with)

51

Tongariro Power Scheme (TPS)

42

Engagement with iwi

51

Trout

43

Turangi Health Centre

53

Turangi Retroﬁt Project

55

U
University Career Fairs

60

University Scholarships

57

V
65

W
42
47

35

Wairehu canel

35

36

Wanganui Splash Centre

53

64

Waste management

41

47

Weldgen

56

Wind farm development

32

Moawhango Willow removal

43

Mokau coal prospect

37

68-93

40

Waikato RiverCare

Environmental values

Financial statements

22
44,47

Waikaremoana Power Scheme (WPS)

Mitigation strategies

F

32
10-11

Rodney District Council

Vulnerable customers

Environmental Management System (EMS) 40
41

36

42, 44, 46

N

Fuel supply

25

National Apprenticeship Programme

Future-Proof Building

24

New Zealand Energy Strategy (NZES)

37

Non-generation activities

23

56

FEEDBACK FORM
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GENESIS ENERGY: THE WHOLE STORY 2007 FEEDBACK FORM
Please tear out and post to:
Richard Gordon
PO Box 17188, Greenlane, Auckland
Or email any comments on this report to richard.gordon@genesisenergy.co.nz
1. What is your relationship with Genesis Energy (e.g. customer, NGO, journalist, shareholder, generation community
member?)

2. Did our 2007 The Whole Story report provide the information you were looking for?
Yes

No

If no, please state what information you were looking for:

3. How would you rate our 2007 The Whole Story report?
Excellent

Good

Average

Poor

4. Do you believe that the Objectives and Targets in our report respond to all the main social, environmental and
ethical challenges Genesis Energy will face over the next ﬁve years?
Strongly agree

Agree

Not sure

Disagree

Strongly disagree

5. If you replied disagree or strongly disagree to Question 4, what targets should our report identify?
(Please specify)

6. What information would you most like to see in our next sustainability report?
(You can tick more than 1 answer)
External and internal stakeholder voices
Independent stakeholder and assurance commentary
Veriﬁed data
More details on management systems
A greater number of Global Reporting Initiative performance measurements
Other (Please specify)

7. Do you have any other comments on our report?
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM

ADDRESS OF OFFICE

CHAIRMAN
Brian Corban, QSO

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Murray Jackson

CORPORATE OFFICE
602 Great South Road
PO Box 17188
Greenlane

DIRECTORS

GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
Maureen Shaddick

Telephone: 64 9 580 2094

Mike Williams (Deputy Chair)
Denis McNamara
Geraldine Baumann
Annabel Cotton
Ian Kusabs
Nicki Crauford
John Stace
Joanna Perry

Facsimile: 64 9 580 4894

GM FINANCE
Mark Anderson
GM RETAIL
Dean Carroll

AUDITOR

GM CORPORATE AFFAIRS
Malcolm Alexander

Bruce Taylor of Deloitte has been appointed
to perform the audit on behalf of the AuditorGeneral.

GM GENERATION DEVELOPMENT
Richard Pearce

BANKER

GM CORPORATE SERVICES
Peggy Molyneux
GM FUEL DEVELOPMENT
Allan Melhuish
GM PRODUCTION
Bob Weir
GM ENERGY ONLINE
Nic McCondach

Westpac

SOLICITORS
Russell McVeagh
For further information email:
feedback@genesisenergy.co.nz

The editoral section of our Annual Report has
been printed on Novatech paper, renowned for
its characteristics of supporting high-quality,
full-colour photography and images. Novatech
stock is manufactured using Elemental
Chlorine Free (ECF) pulp sourced from
sustainable, well-managed forests.
The latter part of the report (the ﬁnancial
statements) were printed on Mohawk Options
paper, which is manufactured at a Forest
Stewardship Council certiﬁed mill using 100
per cent post-consumer waste.

